
 

REVISED 
AGENDA 
 
 
 

MEETING VENUE: 
 

Council Chamber Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding 

 

 Contact: Democratic Services 

Direct Dial: 01775 764454 

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 
 

Date: 15 November 2022 

 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of the DISTRICT COUNCIL will be held in the Council Chamber, Council 
Offices, Priory Road, Spalding on Wednesday, 23 November 2022, commencing at 
6.30 pm at which your attendance is requested.  
 

Yours faithfully, 

      
Rob Barlow 

Chief Executive  
(Quorum:13) 

A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 28 
September 2022 (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
5 - 14) 

3.  Declaration of Interests.  
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation.) 
 

 

4.  Chairman's Announcements.   



 
5.  Announcements by Leader and Members of the Cabinet.  

 
 

6.  Questions asked on notice under Standing Order 6  
 

 

7.  Questions asked without notice under Standing Order 7  
 

 

8.  Committee Minutes  
To receive the minutes of the following Committees and Panels:- 
 
Performance Monitoring Panel - 14 September 2022 
 
Governance and Audit Committee - 22 September 2022 
 
Policy Development Panel - 4 October 2022 
 
Planning Committee - 5 October 2022 
 
Performance Monitoring Panel - 19 October 2022 
 
Planning Committee – 9 November 2022 
 

 

9.  Key Decision Plan  
To receive the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
15 - 24) 

10.  Report from Cabinet meeting on 15 November 2022  
To consider the recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of: 
 
a) UK Shared Prosperity Funding and Rural England Prosperity 

Funding – To seek agreement to recommendations necessary to 
progress the delivery of South Holland District Council’s UKSPF 
programme, and progress decisions required to secure the Council’s 
Rural England Prosperity Funding (Cabinet minute 46) (Cabinet 
agenda item 8). 

 
b) South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Strategy – To 

consider the South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety 
Strategy 2022 – 25 prior to adoption (Cabinet minute 47) (Cabinet 
agenda item 9) 

 

(Pages 
25 - 82) 

11.  Implementation of revised HR Policies  
To seek Council’s approval for revised HR Policies (report of the 
Assistant Director – Corporate enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
83 - 
126) 

12.  Special Urgency - Non-Key Decisions - Application of Call-In  
To report to Council reasons for urgency relating to a Non-Key Decision, 
as required by the Council’s Constitution (report of the Assistant Director 
– Governance (Monitoring Officer) enclosed).   
 

(Pages 
127 - 
132) 

13.  Nominations for Committees and other Seats and Proposed Changes to 
the Constitution.  
To receive, from political groups, nominations for any changes to 

 

https://democracy.sholland.gov.uk/documents/g3041/Printed%20minutes%2014th-Sep-2022%2018.30%20Performance%20Monitoring%20Panel.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.sholland.gov.uk/documents/g3047/Printed%20minutes%2022nd-Sep-2022%2016.00%20Governance%20and%20Audit%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.sholland.gov.uk/documents/g3037/Printed%20minutes%2004th-Oct-2022%2018.30%20Policy%20Development%20Panel.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.sholland.gov.uk/documents/g3023/Printed%20minutes%2005th-Oct-2022%2018.30%20Planning%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.sholland.gov.uk/documents/g3071/Printed%20minutes%2019th-Oct-2022%2018.30%20Performance%20Monitoring%20Panel.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.sholland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=3024&Ver=4


Committees and other seats and to consider any proposed changes to 
the Constitution. 
 

14.  Health Scrutiny for Lincolnshire Report  
To provide South Holland District Council with an update following the 
latest meeting of the Health Scrutiny for Lincolnshire Committee (report 
of Councillor Glynis P Scalese enclosed).  
 

(Pages 
133 - 
138) 

15.  Purchase of 38 S106 affordable homes in Weston  
To seek a decision on whether the authority should purchase 38 S106 
affordable homes from the developer of a site in Weston (report of the 
Assistant Director – Strategic Growth and Development)  
 

(To 
Follow) 

16.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent  
 
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 

circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the items(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

 

17.  To consider resolving that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
 

 

18.  Restricted Minute  
To sign as a correct record the restricted minute for the meeting of 
Council held on 28 September 2022. 
 

(Pages 
139 - 
140) 

19.  Purchase of 38 s106 affordable homes in Weston  
Exempt appendix to the report at agenda item 15 (to follow) 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 23 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL held in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 28 
September 2022 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
P A Redgate (Chairman) 

A R Woolf (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

B Alcock 
J R Astill 
J Avery 
F Biggadike 
M D Booth 
C J T H Brewis 
P E Coupland 
A C Cronin 
T A Carter 
A Casson 
H Drury 
 

R Gambba-Jones 
R A Gibson 
R Grocock 
M Hasan 
J L King 
C J Lawton 
J D McLean 
N H Pepper 
G A Porter 
J L Reynolds 
G T D Rudkin 
 

M D Seymour 
S-A Slade 
E J Sneath 
G J Taylor 
A C Tennant 
J Tyrrell 
S C Walsh 
D J Wilkinson 
C N Worth 
 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors A C Beal, 
H J W Bingham and G P Scalese. 
 
In Attendance:  The Joint Chief Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive - Corporate 
Development (S151), the Deputy Chief Executive (Programme Delivery), the 
Assistant Director (Corporate), the Assistant Director – Governance and Monitoring 
Officer, the Lead Electoral Officer and the Democratic Services Team Leader. 
 
 
 Action By 

39. THE PASSING OF HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN ELIZABETH II   

  

 Following the recent passing of Her Majesty the Queen Elizabeth 
II, Full Council was up standing in holding a two minute silence in 
her memory. 
 
The Chairman thanked all members and officers for their hard 
work and support in the successful undertaking of Operation 
London Bridge at a local level. 
 
Councillor Astill reiterated the Chairman’s words, and specifically 
thanked Democratic Services for their work both locally and in 
supporting the partnership councils, as well as their support of the 
Chairman in his official role within Operation London Bridge at a 
local level. 

 

   

40. THE PASSING OF COUNCILLOR ANGELA NEWTON MBE   

  

 Following the recent passing of Councillor Angela Newton MBE,  

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



- 24 - 
 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 September 2022 

 

 

Full Council was up standing in holding a minute silence in her 
memory. 
 
The Chairman invited members to pay their tributes to Councillor 
Newton. 
 
The Leader paid tribute to Councillor Newton on behalf of all 
members, both past and present.  She had been South Holland 
District Council’s longest serving Councillor and for around 20 
years had been the Leader of the largest opposition group.  The 
fact that the Authority had been so successful and innovative was 
in part due to how well she had managed her role as Leader of 
the opposition group whilst working jointly to ensure positive 
results and holding the Council Chamber together in a positive 
way.  She had always engaged positively with all items that she 
dealt with, even when she had disagreed.  She had contributed 
and supported numerous community initiatives such as Spalding 
in Bloom and the Voluntary Car Scheme and had worked 
tirelessly for the community.  She would be a very hard act to 
follow, and the Leader wished it to be recorded how sorely she 
would be missed. 
 
Councillor Alcock commented that all members knew what 
Councillor Newton had done within the Council, and that all she 
did should be celebrated.  Privately, she had been devoted to her 
family – she regularly spoke about them, and her passing was a 
sad loss for them. The Independent Group would greatly miss 
her, and he commented that she was ‘nearly’ unique. 
 
Councillor Brewis commented how highly she was regarded, and 
of her great knowledge of what was going on in the town and the 
surrounding villages.  Her influence extended further than the 
District, as a result of her work with the National Association of 
British Market Authorities (NABMA).  The subject of markets was 
one on which she had held a huge amount of knowledge, and a 
fitting memorial to her would be to ensure the success of markets 
within the South Holland area. 
 
Councillor Booth had known Councillor Newton for some 60 
years.  She was the most dedicated, honest and hard-working 
person that he had known, and he would miss her greatly. 
 
Councillor Lawton worked with Councillor Newton on many 
occasions, predominantly on gardening projects, and they often 
talked of their families. She was a force of nature and would be 
greatly missed. 
 
Councillor Sneath stated that she had known Councillor Newton 

Page 6



- 25 - 
 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 September 2022 

 

 

all her life but had got to know her better since being elected as a 
District Councillor.  They had worked together on many projects. 
Residents had lost a great champion. She also commented on 
how greatly her family mattered to her.  She would be greatly 
missed. 
 
Councillor Gibson commented that he also wished to associate 
himself with the Leader’s comments.  He thanked all Councillors, 
staff and the public for their kind comments following Councillor 
Newton’s passing. 
 
Councillor Gambba-Jones acknowledged that he and Councillor 
Newton had disagreed on many occasions however, she had 
posthumously gained a victory with regard to the former 
Pennygate Surgery whose closure had resulted in the movement 
of patients to the GP surgery at Johnson Community Hospital.  
When it had become known that this was also to be closed, she 
had again taken up this cause on behalf of patients, in demanding 
a new surgery for them.  Very recently, it had been announced 
that a Beechfield West Surgery would be achieved in order to 
accommodate the patients – a result she had sadly not lived to 
see. It was suggested that recognition and acknowledgement of 
all Councillor Newton had achieved be placed within the new 
surgery. 
 
Councillor Biggadike stated that although he had known 
Councillor Newton for many years, he had not had occasion to 
work with her often.  However, he had recently worked alongside 
her on the South Holland Centre Task Group, a venue that was 
very dear to her heart. 
 
Councillor Woolf commented that he had recently been at a 
meeting regarding the newly reinstated Spalding Flower Parade, 
and the organiser had commented how keen she had been to 
assist in any way that she could.  This typified her as a person 
constantly supporting her community. 

   

41. MINUTES   

  

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of Full 
Council held on 27 July 2022. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That the minutes be signed as a correct record. 

 

   

42. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   

  

Page 7



- 26 - 
 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 September 2022 

 

 

 There were none.  

   

43. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS.   

  

 The Chairman made the following announcements: 
 

• The Chairman thanked members for their support of him and 
some members of the Democratic Services Team in their 
recent skydive in aid of raising funds for the Chairman’s 
Charity - £2054 had been raised. 

• A MacMillan Coffee Morning had been held on 8 September 
2022, and £400 had been raised. 

• The Chairman’s Civic Service was being held on 16 October 
2022 at St Mary’s Church, Whaplode 

• Long Sutton In Bloom were congratulated on gaining a Silver 
award; 

• The Chairman reminded members that the Chairman’s Quiz was to 
be held on 10 November 2022 at the Elizabethan Centre, Whaplode 
Drove. 

 

   

44. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE 
 CABINET.  

 

  

 The Leader had no announcements to make. 
 
There were no announcements from the Cabinet. 

 

   

45. QUESTIONS ASKED ON NOTICE UNDER STANDING ORDER 
 6  

 

  

 There were none.  

   

46. QUESTIONS ASKED WITHOUT NOTICE UNDER STANDING 
 ORDER 7  

 

  

 Question to:  Councillor Porter 
Question from: Councillor Brewis 
Subject: Council Tax charge for empty properties  
 
Councillor Brewis referred to an issue around Council Tax 
charging for empty properties that had been raised under 
Questions Without Notice at the last two meetings of the Council, 
and his view that the policy around charging on this issue was 
unfair.  Councillor Porter replied that he would ensure that this 
issue was looked at outside of the meeting. 

 

   

47. COMMITTEE MINUTES   

  

Page 8



- 27 - 
 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 September 2022 

 

 

 The minutes of the following Committees and Panels were noted: 
 

• Policy Development Panel – 12 July 2022 

• Planning Committee – 20 July 2022 

• Governance and Audit Committee – 28 July 2022 
• Planning Committee – 7 September 2022 

 

   

48. KEY DECISION PLAN   

  

 Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan. 
 
Councillor Grocock provided an update on the third item on the 
Key Decision Planner, ‘Acquisition of seven S106 affordable 
homes in Holbeach’.  He stated that SHDC was negotiating with a 
developer to purchase the seven S106 homes in Holbeach and 
that the item had been added to the Plan to ensure a prompt 
decision should the negotiations prove successful.  However, the 
developer had accepted another offer and this particular scheme 
would therefore not be brought forward by SHDC.  Affordable 
homes would still be provided. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That the Key Decision Plan be noted. 

 

   

49. REPORT FROM CABINET MEETING ON 21 SEPTEMBER 2022   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet which sought 
approval for the Cabinet’s recommendations. 
 
2021/22 Provisional Financial Outturn 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance presented the report, and 
commented that since the start of the pandemic, the Council has 
seen numerous impacts on its finances.  In addition, increased 
living costs had impacted on the public and also made it difficult 
for the Authority to budget. There had been significant changes as 
South Holland District Council had separated from its partnership 
with Breckland Council and joined the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership.  It had been a challenging year 
for the Finance Team and the Portfolio Holder thanked the Deputy 
Chief Executive (Corporate Development) for her great 
leadership, and the Finance Team for their dedicated work. 
 
DECISION: 
 
1) That the outturn position for 2021/22 as detailed in Table 1 be 

financed from the Council Tax Reserve; 

 

Page 9



- 28 - 
 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 September 2022 

 

 

 
2) That the following reserve movements be approved: 

 

a) A contribution of £1,419,065 to the Earmarked Grants 
reserve of additional section 31 grants received in year 
which are required to fund the Collection Fund Deficit in 
2022/23; 

b) A contribution from the Earmarked Grants Reserve of 
£2,922,033 which is required to drawdown section 31 
grants received in 2020/21 but are required to fund the 
Business Rates deficit in 2021/22; 

 
3) General Fund capital position – That the 2021/22 capital budget 

carry forward to 2022/23 due to slippage/re-profiling, as detailed in 
column 3 of Table 8, be approved; and 

 
4) HRA capital position – That the budget carry forward due to 

slippage/re-profiling, as detailed in column 3 in Table 12, be 
approved. 

   

50. IMPLEMENTATION OF SALARY SUPPLEMENT FOR LOWEST 
 PAID EMPLOYEES  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director 
(Corporate) which sought member approval to implement a salary 
supplement for the lowest paid employees.  The report was 
presented to members by the Portfolio Holder Corporate and 
Communications. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That from 1 April 2022, the Council implements a pay supplement 
to raise pay to £9.90 per hour for all Council employees on the 
National Joint Council (NJC) pay rate currently paid below this 
sum. 

 

   

51. SOUTH & EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 
 PERFORMANCE  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director 
(Corporate) which provided a six-monthly update on Partnership 
performance.  The report was presented to members by the 
Leader. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That the following be noted: 
 

• The progress of Phase 2 of the Partnership (section 2 of the 

 

Page 10



- 29 - 
 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 September 2022 

 

 

report); 

• The peer review update (section 3 of the report); 

• The Annual Delivery Plan (ADP) update (section 4 of the 
report); 

• The updates from the Priority Partnerships (section 5 of the 
report); and 

• The update on the joint Scrutiny work (section 6 of the report) 

   

52. ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2021/22   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Interim Treasury and 
Investments Manager (PSPS) which provided the Annual 
Treasury Management Review for 2021/22 financial year for 
review and approval, as required by the Local Government Act 
2003 and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management.  The 
report was presented to members by the Portfolio Holder Finance, 
Commercialisation and Partnerships. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That the Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22 be 
received and approved, as required by the Local Government Act 
2003, following scrutiny by the Governance and Audit Committee 
at their meeting on 28 July 2022. 

 

   

53. COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 
Governance (and Monitoring Officer) which asked the Council to 
consider a request for a Community Governance Review (CGR) 
for the Parish of Tydd St Mary, to decrease the number of 
Councillors from nine to seven.  The report was presented to 
members by the Portfolio Holder Corporate and Communications. 
 
DECISION: 
 
1) That it be approved to undertake a Community Governance 

Review for the Parish of Tydd St Mary; 
 
2) That delegated powers be given to the Monitoring Officer to 

carry out the Review; 
 
3) That the timetable for the review, as attached at Appendix A 

be agreed; and 
 

4) That the Monitoring Officer report the findings of the Review to 
Council for final decision. 

 

Page 11



- 30 - 
 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 September 2022 

 

 

   

54. APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 
Governance (and Monitoring Officer) to appoint the Independent 
Remuneration Panel for a further four-year term.  The report was 
presented to members by the Portfolio Holder Corporate and 
Communications. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That the members of the Independent Remuneration Panel be 
appointed for a further four-year term. 

 

   

55. NOMINATIONS FOR COMMITTEES AND OTHER SEATS AND 
 PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION.  

 

  

 There were none.  

   

56. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
 URGENT  

 

  

 There were none.  

   

57. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

  

 Under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
press and public were excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 4 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

 

   

58. RESTRICTED MINUTE   

  

 Consideration was given to the restricted minute from the meeting 
of Full Council held on 27 July 2022. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That the restricted minute be signed as a correct record. 

 

   

59. SERVICE REVIEW - CORPORATE   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director 
(Corporate) which sought member approval to implement a 
Partnership-side service structure in the ‘Corporate’ Directorate.  
The report was presented to members by the Portfolio Holder 
Corporate and Communications. 

 

Page 12



- 31 - 
 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 September 2022 

 

 

 
DECISION: 
 
That the recommendations detailed within the exempt report be 
approved. 

   

 
(The meeting ended at 7.26 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 

 

    

KEY DECISION PLAN 
 

Issued – 11 November 2022 

  

 

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to:  

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.   
 
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.” 
 
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies) 
 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 9.

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
2 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for People, 
Places, Economy 
(Councillor 
Charles Nicholas 
Worth) 
 
 
UK Shared 
Prosperity/Rural 
Prosperity Fund 
 

To seek approval to 
move forward with the 
required Programme 
Management model and 
approach to delivering 
the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund and 
sub-funding additional 
funding via Rural 
England Prosperity 
Fund. 
 

N/A 
 
N/A 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Cabinet 15 Nov 2022, or 
Leader 

Lydia Rusling, 
Assistant 
Director – 
Economic 
Growth, 
Lydia.Rusling@e
-lindsey.gov.uk  

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
 
Approval of the 
Lincolnshire 
Homelessness 
Strategy 2022-
2027 
 

Approval of the new 
Lincolnshire 
Homelessness Strategy 
(also incorporating the 
Rough Sleeper Strategy) 
which will replace the 
current county-wide 
strategy 2017-2021 
(extended for 1 year until 
the end of 2022) 
 

Stakeholders 
Public 
Service users 
Members including 
Portfolio Holder 
Voluntary sector 
 
Draft strategy has been 
through a formal 6 week 
consultation process and 
was also discussed at 
Policy Development Panel 
on 04.10.22. 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for HRA & 
Private Sector Housing, or 
Leader 
 
Not before 18th Nov 2022 

Gemma 
Johnson, 
Homeless 
Reduction and 
Private Sector 
Improvement 
Manager 
gemmajohnson
@sholland.gov.u
k  

P
age 16

mailto:Lydia.Rusling@e-lindsey.gov.uk
mailto:Lydia.Rusling@e-lindsey.gov.uk
mailto:gemmajohnson@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:gemmajohnson@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:gemmajohnson@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
3 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
Purchase of 3 
affordable homes 
in Moulton 
Chapel 
 

To consider the 
purchase of 3 S106 
affordable homes from a 
developer, on a site in 
Moulton Chapel. 
 

 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Not before 22nd Nov 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
Purchase of 4 
homes in 
Moulton Chapel 
 

To consider the 
purchase of 4 newbuild 
market dwellings in 
Moulton Chapel. 
 

 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Not before 22nd Nov 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

P
age 17

mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
4 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
Purchase of 7 
homes in 
Moulton Chapel 
 

To consider the 
purchase of 7 newbuild 
homes in Moulton 
Chapel 
 

 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Not before 22nd Nov 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
Purchase of 7 
houses in 
Crowland, from a 
developer 
 

To consider purchasing 
7 newbuild homes on a 
site in Crowland, from a 
developer 
 

Ward members 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Not before 30th Nov 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

P
age 18

mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
5 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for 
Environmental 
Services 
(Councillor 
Roger Gambba-
Jones) 
 
Procurement of 
Fuel Supplier 
 

To provide details of the 
preferred supplier for the 
fuel required for South 
Holland District Council 
fleet vehicles 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for 
Environmental Services, or 
Leader  
 
Before 30 Nov 2022 

Charlotte Paine, 
Head of 
Environmental 
and Operational 
Services 
cpaine@sholland
.gov.uk  

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
Contract for 
Kitchen and 
Bathroom 
upgrades 
 

To award a contract to 
commence on 1st April l 
2023 for the provision of 
works for the kitchen 
and bathroom upgrade 
programme to the 
Housing stock. 
 

Portfolio holder HRA and 
Private Sector Housing 
Assistant Director Housing 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation  
 
Not before 5th Dec 2022 

David Higgs, 
Technical 
Contracts Officer 
David.Higgs@sh
olland.gov.uk  

P
age 19

mailto:cpaine@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:cpaine@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
6 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
Heating Upgrade 
Contract 
 

To award a contract to 
commence on the 1st 
April 2023, for works 
associated with the 
heating upgrade 
programme to the 
housing stock 
 

Portfolio Holder HRA and 
Private Sector Housing 
Assistant Director Housing 
Christine Marshall 
John Medler 
Sam Knowles 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation  
 
Not before 5th Dec 2022 

David Higgs, 
Technical 
Contracts Officer 
David.Higgs@sh
olland.gov.uk  

Deputy Leader of 
the Council 
(Councillor 
Charles Nicholas 
Worth) 
 
Land at 
Holbeach FEZ 
 

To consider a decision 
relating to land at the 
Holbeach FEZ, linked to 
the delivery of the site 
 

 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Deputy Leader of the 
Council, or Leader  
 
Not before 7th Dec 2022 

Matthew Hogan, 
Assistant 
Director - 
Strategic Growth 
and 
Development 
Matthew.Hogan
@sholland.gov.u
k  

P
age 20

mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Hogan@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Hogan@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Hogan@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
7 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Public 
Protection 
(Councillor 
Anthony Casson) 
 
Environmental 
Crime 
Enforcement 
Contract Award 
 

Decision to award 
contract for 
environmental crime 
enforcement to preferred 
supplier 
 

Consultation has taken 
place with former MO, 
Legal and Procurement 
 
Consultation has taken 
place with former MO, 
Legal and Procurement 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Public 
Protection, or Leader  
 
Not before 12th Dec 2022 

Donna Hall, 
Head of Public 
Protection 
Donna.Hall@sho
lland.gov.uk  

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
Aids and 
Adaptations 
 

Carrying out aids and 
adaptations work for 
assisted living purposes 
to the Councils housing 
stock. 
 

Jason King 
Christine Marshall 
John Medler 
Sam Knowles 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation  
 
Before 31 Dec 2022 

Darren Tyrie, 
Projects 
Surveyor, David 
Higgs, Technical 
Contracts Officer 
dtyrie@sholland.
gov.uk, 
David.Higgs@sh
olland.gov.uk  

P
age 21

mailto:Donna.Hall@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Donna.Hall@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:dtyrie@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:dtyrie@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
8 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Communities 
& Facilities 
(Councillor Gary 
John Taylor) 
 
S&ELCP Crowd 
Funding Scheme 
 

To seek approval to set 
up a S&ELCP Crowd 
Funding Scheme, 
maximising funds raised 
for community based 
initiatives 
 

 
 
Portfolio Holder 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Cabinet 10 Jan 2023, or 
Leader 

Nichola 
Holderness, 
Empowering 
Healthy 
Communities Co-
ordinator, 
Nichola.Holderne
ss@boston.gov.u
k  

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
Sheltered 
Housing Digital 
Alarm Upgrade 
 

Upgrading of the 
sheltered housing hard 
wired pull cord system 
from an analogue to a 
digital system. 
 

Tenants; Portfolio Holder 
and informal all member 
briefing 
 
Formal and informal 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation  
 
Before 28 Feb 2023 

Jason King, 
Assistant 
Director - 
Housing, 
JasonKing@sholl
and.gov.uk  

 
 
 

*Cabinet Membership 

P
age 22

mailto:Nichola.Holderness@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Nichola.Holderness@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Nichola.Holderness@boston.gov.uk
mailto:JasonKing@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:JasonKing@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
9 

 

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader) 
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor P E Coupland (Deputy Leader of the Cabinet) 
Councillor J Astill (Portfolio Holder 
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Grocock (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor E Sneath (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder) 

 
 

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 

Telephone: 01775 764451 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 
 

P
age 23

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: South Holland District Council 

DATE: Wednesday, 23 November 2022 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE:  

Report from Cabinet meeting on 15 November 2022 

To consider the recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of: 

a) UK Shared Prosperity Funding and Rural England Prosperity 
Funding – To seek agreement to recommendations necessary to 
progress the delivery of South Holland District Council’s UKSPF 
programme, and progress decisions required to secure the 
Council’s Rural England Prosperity Funding (Cabinet minute 46) 
(Cabinet agenda item 8). 

 
b) South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership 

Strategy – To consider the South and East Lincolnshire 
Community Safety Strategy 2022 – 25 prior to adoption 
(Cabinet minute 47) (Cabinet agenda item 9) 

KEY DECISION: No 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder for People, Places, Economy 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Cabinet 

Christine Morgan 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report provides Members of the Council with details on issues considered by the Cabinet at 

its meeting on 15 November 2022, which require decisions by Full Council. Relevant extracts 

from the Cabinet minutes are detailed at Section 2 below, and the relevant Cabinet reports and 

appendices are attached as appendices to this report. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

UK Shared Prosperity Funding and Rural England Prosperity Funding 

Page 25

Agenda Item 10.



a) That, subject to Government approval, Full Council agree receipt of the 2022/23 £326,822 

grant funding, and the creation of a budget for 22/23 for use in accordance with the UKSPF 

investment plan 

South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership Strategy 

b) Note the contents of the report and the work of partners in addressing crime and disorder in 
South and East Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire as a whole. 

 
c) That Council agree to adopt the Community Safety Strategy and identified priorities for the 

SELCSP for the period 2022-25. 
 

d) That Council agrees to provide delegated authority for the Deputy Chief Executive 
(Communities) to finalise with the relevant Portfolio Holders a programme for the 
development of a Community Safety Action Plan.  

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The reasons for recommendations are detailed within the individual reports attached and are 

summarised in the relevant Cabinet minutes below. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Other Options considered are detailed within the individual reports attached and are 

summarised in the relevant Cabinet minutes below. 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution provides that only the full Council may exercise the 

functions of approving, adopting or amending the policy framework and budget, adopting 

or changing the Constitution. Staffing matters are also a Council function. The Cabinet 

however has responsibility for advising the Council on such matters. At its meeting on 15 

November 2022, the Cabinet made recommendations to Council in respect of the above 

items which may affect budget and policy framework, constitution or compromise staffing 

issues 

1.2 The remainder of this report details the recommendations of the Cabinet which must be 

read in conjunction with the individual reports to Cabinet, copies of which are attached as 

appendices. 

 

2. UK SHARED PROSPERITY FUNDING AND RURAL ENGLAND PROSPERITY FUNDING 

Consideration was given to the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Growth) which sought 
agreement to recommendations necessary to progress the delivery of South Holland 
District Council’s UKSPF programme, and progress decisions required to secure the 
Council’s Rural England Prosperity Funding. 
 
The following points were raised: Page 26



 

• A member raised a concern about the lack of apparent reference to Parish Council 
involvement in the UKSPF process. 

o The Portfolio Holder for People, Places and Economy referred to the section in 
the report that stated parishes had been involved in both a) consultation during 
the preparation of the investment plan; and b) would be represented in the 
Local Partnership Group.  The Portfolio Holder also confirmed that a workshop 
was planned to support parish councils in understanding the fund and 
supporting them in accessing it.  

• Members responded that to ensure that it could be demonstrated that all Parish 
Councils had been involved in the process, that where no suggestions were put forward, 
the Parish Council respond to confirm this.  It was also suggested that the Chairman of 
each Parish Council be copied into any correspondence to the clerk on this matter, that 
ideas of what the funding could be spent on be provided when contacting them, and 
that all members had an opportunity to raise the profile of this process to the Parish 
Councils with which they were involved. 

 

• Members asked whether the UKSPF funding could be used to assist with rural public 
transport? 

o It was confirmed that central government had confirmed that the UKSPF funding 
could be used toward rural public transport and mobility initiatives.   

 

• Members commented that where possible, local contractors be used to deliver projects. 
 
DECISION: 
 
1) That subject to Government approval of the Investment Plan, the Investment Plan be 

supported and the Council acts as the accountable body for UK Shared Prosperity 

Funding and Rural Prosperity Funding. 

2) That subject to receiving formal approval from government of the anticipated funding 

allocation of £326,822, it be agreed to recommend to a future meeting of Council the 

receipt of the grant monies and the creation of a budget for 2022/23, for use in 

accordance with the UKSPF investment plan. 

3) That the Deputy Chief Executive (Growth) be authorised in consultation with the 

relevant Portfolio Holder to submit an addendum to the UKSPF Investment Plan for 

Rural England Prosperity Funding. 

4) That the Deputy Chief Executive (Growth)be authorised in consultation with the 

relevant Portfolio Holder to establish the Local Partnership Group for South Holland. 

5) That the Deputy Chief Executive (Growth) be authorised in consultation with the 
relevant Portfolio Holder(s) to work collaboratively as the South and East Lincolnshire 
Councils Partnership on the development of bidding prospectuses, and where 
appropriate enter into grant funding agreements with delivery partners. 

 
(Other options considered: 

• Do nothing – under this option, the necessary decisions sought would not be progressed, 
impacting upon progress towards the council being able to mobilise against the delivery 
of UKSPF; 

Reasons for decision: 

• To progress decision required to further prepare and mobilise the council for the delivery 

of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund and Rural England Prosperity Fund in South Holland). Page 27



 

3. SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP STRATEGY 

 

Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – Wellbeing and Community 
Leadership, which requested consideration of the South and East Lincolnshire Community 
Safety Strategy 2022-25 prior to adoption. 
 
The following points were raised: 
 

• Members requested that under the ‘How you can help us’ section of the Strategy, 
contact details to report anti-social behaviour be added.  Officers confirmed that this 
could be added. 

 

• Members asked why, when Hate Crime had increased nationally, it appeared to have 
decreased in Lincolnshire. 

o Officers advised that it was difficult to pinpoint exactly why this was going down 
in the area, but work was being undertaken to address Hate Crime in the area by 
ensuring that the message was being communicated in a suitable way to the 
right groups by using available data.   

• Members responded that if the figures became significantly lower than the national 
figure, that it may be possible to access additional Home Office funding to assist in this 
work. 

 
DECISION: 
1) Note the contents of the report and the work of partners in addressing crime and 

disorder in South and East Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire as a whole. 

2) Recommend that Council agree to adopt the Community Safety Strategy and identified 

priorities for the SELCSP for the period 2022-25. 

3) Recommend that Council agrees to provide delegated authority for the Deputy Chief 

Executive (Communities) to finalise with the relevant Portfolio Holders a programme for 

the development of a Community Safety Action Plan.  

 (Other options considered: 

• Continue to operate the SELCSP without producing a formal plan, at the expense of 
recognising the work undertaken locally to address crime and disorder across the 
S&ELCP; 

Reasons for decision: 
To communicate the commitment of the SELCSP in supporting the SLP to meet the 

statutory duties set out in the Crime & Disorder Act 1998, and address crime and 

disorder at the local level). 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Cabinet Agenda Item 8 – UK Shared Prosperity Funding 

and Rural England Prosperity Funding covering report 

Page 28



APPENDIX B Cabinet Agenda Item 8 – UK Shared Prosperity Funding 

and Rural England Prosperity Funding (Appendix A to 

original Cabinet report) 

APPENDIX C Cabinet Agenda Item 9 – South and East Lincolnshire 

Community Safety Partnership Strategy covering report 

APPENDIX D Cabinet Agenda Item 9 – South and East Lincolnshire 

Community Safety Partnership Strategy (Appendix A to 

original Cabinet report) 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

Cabinet 15 November 2022 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Christine Morgan 

cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

Signed off by: The individual reports have previously been signed 

off by the relevant Director and Portfolio Holders 

Approved for publication: As above. 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

APPENDIX A 

REPORT TO: South Holland District Council -  Cabinet  

DATE: November 15th 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

UK Shared Prosperity Funding and Rural England Prosperity 

Funding 

To seek agreement to recommendations necessary to progress the 

delivery of South Holland District Council’s UKSPF programme, and 

progress decisions required to secure the council’s Rural England 

Prosperity Funding 

KEY DECISION: YES 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER/S: Cllr Nick Worth 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Michelle Sacks, Deputy Chief Executive 

Lydia Rusling, Assistant Director for Economic Growth 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: All 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report presents the Investment Plan for South Holland for UK Shared Prosperity Funding. It 

outlines the process for the Council to manage this funding as the accountable body and to put 

forward an investment plan to government for additional funding through the Rural Prosperity 

Fund. 

The report summarises the aims of the funding, the engagement and consultation that has 

taken place to date, and proposes working collaboratively as the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils Partnership and with established bodies to strengthen capacity, maximise match 

funding and meet the needs of local businesses, parish councils and communities. 

It seeks to secure formal approval from Cabinet to recommend to Council the creation of a 

budget for spend of UKSPF funds in 2022/23, subject to government providing confirmation of 

the council’s Investment Plan and its funding allocation. 

The report also seeks approval to the establishment of a Local Partnership Group consisting of 

local stakeholders and community representatives, as required by government in accordance 

with the UKSPF programme. It also seeks approval to progress with the preparation of bidding 

Page 31



2 
 

prospectuses for the local fund, to guide and assist communities and stakeholders in 

understanding how they can access the funds and for what purposes.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Subject to Government approval of the Investment Plan, Members are requested to 

support the Investment Plan and recommend the Council acts as the accountable body 

for UK Shared Prosperity Funding and Rural Prosperity Funding. 

2. That subject to receiving formal approval from government of the anticipated funding 

allocation of £326,822, Cabinet agrees to recommend to a future meeting of Council the 

receipt of the grant monies and the creation of a budget for 2022/23, for use in 

accordance with the UKSPF investment plan. 

3. To authorise the Deputy Chief Executive (Growth) in consultation with the relevant 

Portfolio Holder to submit an addendum to the UKSPF Investment Plan for Rural England 

Prosperity Funding. 

4. To authorise the Deputy Chief Executive (Growth) in consultation with the relevant 

Portfolio Holder to establish the Local Partnership Group for South Holland. 

5. To authorise the Deputy Chief Executive (Growth) in consultation with the relevant 

Portfolio Holder(s) to work collaboratively as the South and East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership on the development of bidding prospectuses, and where appropriate enter 

into grant funding agreements with delivery partners. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To progress decision required to further prepare and mobilise the council for the delivery of the 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund and Rural England Prosperity Fund in South Holland. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Do nothing. Under this option, the necessary decisions sought will not be progressed, impacting 

upon progress towards the council being able to mobilise against the delivery of UKSPF 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) is a central pillar of the UK Government Levelling 
Up Agenda and replaces the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) and European 
Social Fund (ESF). Its primary goal is to build pride in place and increase life chances. There 
are three key investment priorities of communities and place; supporting local business; 
and people and skills. 

 
1.2 Unlike other funds, it is not a competitive process and all areas will receive a funding 

allocation. The total value of the fund is £2.6bn, of which South Holland’s allocation is 
£2.7m. The fund will run until March 2025, and is anticipated to be profiled along the 
following lines;  

Page 32



3 
 

 

• 2022/23 - £326,822 

• 2023/24 - £653,653 

• 2024/25 - £1,712,574 
 

1.3 In addition, the Rural England Prosperity Fund is integrated with the UKSPF and provides 
top-up of funding to eligible local authorities. It succeeds EU funding from LEADER and the 
Growth Programme, which were part of the Rural Development Programme for England. 
South Holland District Council has been allocated £0.7 million over 2023/24 and 2024/25. 
The profile for this funding has not yet been confirmed.  
 

1.4 In order to access the UKSPF fund, it requires the formation of a Local Partnership group of 
stakeholders and the submission of an Investment Plan that sets out the challenges the 
area faces, along with how the UKSPF investment will help address these.  
 

1.5 South Holland District Council approved the draft Investment Plan on 19 July and delegated 
authority to the Deputy Chief Executive (Growth), in consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
for People, Places and Economy to make any amendments that might arise prior to the 
submission to Department of Levelling Up, Communities and Housing. The Investment Plan 
was submitted for the deadline of 1 August 2022. 
 

1.6 To access the Rural Fund, the Council is required to provide specific additional information 
as an addendum to the South Holland UKSPF investment plan. 

 
REPORT 

2.1 This report outlines the aims of each new fund and the Council’s proposed approach 

through its submission of an Investment Plan and external engagement. 

 

2.2 The UK Shared Prosperity Fund specific aims include: boosting productivity, pay, jobs and 

living standards by growing the private sector, especially in those places where they are 

lagging; Spread opportunities and improve public services, especially in those places where 

they are weakest; Restore a sense of community, local pride and belonging, especially in 

those places where they have been lost; Empower local leaders and communities, 

especially in those places lacking local agency 

 

2.3 There are three priority areas for UKSPF:  

Communities and place - enabling places to invest to restore their community spaces and 

relationships and create the foundations for economic development at the neighbourhood-

level. The intention of this is to strengthen the social fabric of communities, supporting in 

building pride in place. 

Supporting local business - enabling places to fund interventions that support local 

businesses to thrive, innovate and grow. 

People and skills - helping to reduce the barriers some people face to employment and 

support them to move towards employment and education. Places can also target funding 

into skills for local areas to support employment and local growth.  

Page 33



4 
 

2.4 UKSPF Guidance sets out that each local authority is tasked with working with a range of 

diverse local and regional stakeholders to achieve the outcomes for their area. A Local 

Partnership Group is required for consultation.  

 

2.5 The Government guidance states the Local Partnership Group needs to include local 

stakeholders such as a representative cross section of Parish and Town Councils, local 

business representatives, county and district councillors, and local voluntary sector 

organisations. Ideally, it should encompass not more than 15-20 representatives. Its role 

will be to add its comments to the proposed allocation of funding to applicants and to 

suggest connections and linkages with other local activities and priorities. The Council will 

have the ultimate say so whilst this group is important and required by the guidance its role 

will be advisory.  

 

2.6 The Investment Plan is evidence led and linked to national and local strategies and policies. 

See Appendix A. Meaningful engagement with stakeholders was required and 

opportunities for collaboration with other districts are encouraged. 

 

2.7 The UKSPF public consultation for South Holland formed part a wider ‘Have Your Say’ 

campaign led by the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership between 13 June and 

8 July. The core objectives underpinning the consultation were to present details about the 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund together with project themes that address the area’s challenges 

and fit with local priorities, and to gather ideas from stakeholders and residents about what 

they would like the money to be spent on and what they think will work best locally.  

 

2.8 The consultation was widely promoted with letters to stakeholders, social media posts and 

adverts in the local press. There was also a project website - www.selcp-haveyoursay.co.uk 

– that hosted information about the proposal. A newsletter was produced which was 

emailed to stakeholders and made available at community events. People were invited to 

provide feedback via an online survey on the website, email, social media, Freepost or 

Freephone. Hard copy versions of the survey were available upon request.  Copies of the 

newsletter and survey were also sent to council offices and selected libraries to display.  

The engagement included a series of online and face-to-face meetings with key 

stakeholders and a range of community events held at market stalls across the area.   

 

2.9 Across the Consultation for the sub-region key themes were identified: 

• Business ideas linked to health and well-being, food production, tourism, culture and 

the arts, transport, environmental businesses and the digital sector 

• Social enterprises, i.e. businesses which have a social purpose and make a profit in a 

way that directly benefits society 

• Projects on the Lincolnshire Coast which help more people between 16-64 to become 

economically active 

• Projects which bring imaginative new activities and adapt buildings to breathe new life 

into town centres 

Page 34

http://www.selcp-haveyoursay.co.uk/


5 
 

• Programmes for smaller places which will improve and widen the use of community 

buildings including village halls 

• Projects which increase the availability of decent broadband connectivity in rural places 

 

2.10 In addition to the public consultation, stakeholder engagement workshops have been held 

with potential strategic delivery partners who can bring support, expertise and added value 

to the UKSPF programme. The UKSPF funding allocation is split into three themes, focused 

on skills, business and place and we propose forming three expert clusters from established 

bodies who have a track record of currently delivering against these themes. They will 

support with writing the bidding prospectus for each theme using their expertise. They will 

assist with evaluating bids, particularly looking at how they can bring match funding and 

encouraging individual bids to align with other activities and projects to reduce duplication 

and improve outcomes. 

 

2.11 The strategic partners and agencies supporting the theme groups will not be paid for their 

support and they do not have the final decision for distribution of funding. They will be able 

to bring forward their own project ideas whilst declaring an interest as appropriate. The 

recommendations from each bidding round will be reported to the Local Partnership Group. 

The Council’s Executive will have the final decision, subject to further delegation to officers 

in consultation with the relevant portfolio holder. 

 

2.12 Whilst keeping a focus on 3 separate funding pots for each local authority, the South and 

East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership will consider applications to all three areas as a whole 

through an integrated approach rather than running three separate systems. We have 

invested far more time and effort to significant acclaim in consulting on how to deliver 

UKSPF than other authorities locally. We are working in partnership with current grant 

management organisations (like the Community Foundation) and thematic bodies like 

Active Lincolnshire to ensure we attract matched resources and avoid duplication. 

2.13 The intent is that the administration of the process will be undertaken by a council team 

and paid for by a 4% allocation (maximum allowable) from the UKSPF funds. The 4% will pay 

for the cost of delivery over the next 2.5 years from the fund, including any additional 

capacity required. A detailed resourcing strategy is being developed. However, this report 

proposes South Holland works collaboratively as the South and East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership, using a single team to manage the funds across all three areas so as to provide 

efficiency and resilience. A detailed resourcing strategy is being developed. Each local 

authority has different funding allocations, including £4.4m for East Lindsey and £2.2m for 

Boston. Therefore, if we take the collective amount of UKSPF and REPF across the three 

Councils, the total 4% administration allocation is approaching £480,000. 

2.16 It is proposed that council staff will lead the process and the Council’s Executive will have 

the final decision on grant awards, subject to any further delegation to officers in 

consultation with the relevant portfolio holder. As part of the bidding process the Council 

can put forward their priorities and projects. 

Page 35



6 
 

 

2.17 We intent to operate in as agile a way as possible – using one team to manage the funds 

across all three areas and harnessing the expertise of the partner organisations to shape the 

programme at no additional cost for delivery. A detailed resourcing strategy is being 

developed. 

 

2.18 The Council will need to consider how it maximises impact and outcomes through the 

available funding. It will not be possible to do everything, and so a process of prioritisation 

will be required. Working with delivery partners will not exclude Council-led initiatives, 

which will also be actively encouraged in consultation with relevant Portfolio Holders. 

 

2.19 The funding is ring-fenced for each Council but it is possible to combine funding for joint 

schemes, and the Guidance actively encourage collaboration and working across 

geographical boundaries. 

 

2.20 Spend can occur at risk from 1st April 2022 until the Investment Plan is approved (expected 

in November). 

 

2.21 The Rural Prosperity Fund is integrated into the UKSPF and is a rural top-up to UKSPF 

allocations. It supports both the aims of the Government’s Levelling Up White Paper and 

the Future Farming Programme. The funding is aimed at capital projects for small 

businesses and community infrastructure to improve productivity and strengthen the rural 

economy and rural communities. 

 

2.22 The Rural Funding is for capital grants for business or community purposes. Projects must 

be in a rural area – towns, villages or hamlets with populations below 10,000 or a 

market/hub town with populations of up to 30,000, if they serve as a centre for 

employment or services to rural areas. 

 

2.23 An addendum to the South Holland UKSPF Investment Plan is required to be submitted 

prior to 30 November. The assessment period will run between November 2022 and 

January 2023 with first payments expected to lead authorities by April 2023. The funding 

period is April 2023 to March 2025. 

3. CONCLUSION 

3.1 This reports presents the Investment Plan for South Holland for UK Shared Prosperity 

Funding at Appendix A.  

3.2 It outlines the role of the Council to manage this funding as the accountable body and to 

draw down additional funding through the Rural Prosperity Fund.  

3.3  The report summarises the aims of the funding, the engagement and consultation that has 

taken place to date, and proposes working with delivery partners to strengthen capacity, 

maximise match funding and meet the needs of local businesses and communities. 

Page 36



7 
 

3.4 Council-led initiatives will be encouraged and will form part of a prioritisation process to 

meet the requirements of the Investment Plan and South Holland’s corporate priorities. 

3.5 The Government guidance also requires the establishment or designation of a Local 

Partnership Group. Comprehensive and balanced local partnerships are a core component 

of how the Fund is administered locally, providing advice on strategic fit and deliverability.  

3.6       Finally the report recommends that subject to receiving formal approval from government 

of the anticipated funding allocation of £326,822, Cabinet agrees to recommend to Council 

the creation of a budget for 2022/23, for use in accordance with the UKSPF investment 

plan.  

IMPLICATIONS SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

In delivering the UKSPF Programme, it is antipated that a collaborative approach will be taken 

across the SECLP with a view to bring about resilience, sharing of ideas and capacity to support the 

programme. However, in taking this collaborative approach, it is also recognised that each 

authority within the SECLP has different needs and priorities. Therefore, it is expressly intended 

that investment of SHDC’s UKSPF funds will directly support local priorities and objectives within 

the district of South Holland.   

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

The Investment Plan reflects the Corporate Priorities identified in South Holland’s Corporate 

Strategy, including Your Place and Your Opportunity.  

STAFFING 

See Financial section below. 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None arising from the report. 

DATA PROTECTION 

None arising from the report. 

FINANCIAL 

South Holland District Council will receive £2.7m from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. The fund is 
profiled over three years with a minimum spend on capital each year. A total of 4% of the fund can 
be used for administration purposes. As the Council is the lead authority for administering the 
fund, the council will have a significant amount of work to do to oversee the programme of 
projects and meet the regular reporting requirements to government. The 4% of the UKSPF fund is 
the equivalent to £108,000 over the three years (increasing to £136,000 including 4% from REPF). A 
detailed resourcing strategy incorporating the use of these funds is being developed.  
 
If an underspend occurs in year, authorities will be expected to provide the government with 
credible spending plans on how any underspend will be utilised within the following year, and the 
government may withhold payments of the next years allocation in the absence of a credible plan. 
All of the fund must be spent by March 2025, and any underspends at this point would need to be 
repaid to the government. 
 

Page 37



8 
 

The report seeks agreement that, subject to receiving formal approval from government of the 

anticipated funding allocation of £326,822, Cabinet agree to recommend to Council the creation of 

a budget for 2022/23, for use in accordance with the UKSPF investment plan. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The risks related to this proposal are: 

Financial Risk. The Investment Plan requires the Council to set out the outputs and deliverables 

from the funding, and ongoing monitoring will take place through the life of the fund. If those 

outputs are not achieved, the Council may be required to pay back the funding. However, the 

Council and South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership have wide experience of delivering 

projects of these types so it is not anticipated that this will present significant risk. 

Reputational Risk. When embarking on any projects, there is a risk that if what is delivered is not in 

line with expectations – whether realistic or not - the Council may suffer an impact to its 

reputation. To ensure that residents and others are clear as to what can be expected and what will 

be delivered, there will be a clear communications strategy and programme put into place before 

commencement. A contractual structure will be developed, to support the payment of grants 

awarded under the scheme 

STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

Prior to the submission of the investment plan for UKSPF, substantial public engagement was 

undertaken to seek thoughts, views and ideas from members of the community on the use of the 

fund. This engagement included members of the public, businesses and parish councils. Going 

forward, there is both a need and an expectation from government to maintain community 

engagement to support with the delivery of the UKSPF. The formation of a Local Partnership 

Group, as recommended and detailed within this report, will seek to bring together local 

stakeholders to oversee the delivery of the UKSPF programme. It is anticipated that this group will 

including business representatives, different tiers of local government (including parish council 

representation) and local interest groups.  

Coupled with the Local Partnership Group, engagement has also taken place with a SELCP-wide 

group of potential strategic partner agencies who officers anticipate will be able to bring value to 

the programme through expertise, support for bidding groups and potential access to 

complementary sources of funding.  

In terms of timescales, the plans set out within this report are dependent upon central government 

confirming and approving SHDC’s UKSPF investment plan, and finalising any necessary grant 

agreements with central government concerning the council’s role as accountable body.  

REPUTATION 

See Risk Management above. 

CONTRACTS 

Once the funding is awarded, the Council will have flexibility over how they deliver the Fund. They 

may wish to use a mix of competitions for grant funding (which is the default approach set out in 

Cabinet Office Grants Standards), procurement, commissioning or deliver some activity through in-

house teams. For example, some community level interventions may require a commissioning or 

Page 38



9 
 

in-house approach, recognising that competitions for grant may create barriers to participation in 

left behind communities. 

All spend associated with the Fund must be assessed in advance to ensure that proposed 

investment is compliant with Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and follows local constitution and 

grant rules, processes, and procedures as and where relevant. 

The Council should also design their project selection and contracting processes so they have 

mechanisms to recover funding where beneficiaries do not comply with fund parameters, UK law 

or any local requirements. 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None arising from the report. 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

None arising from the report. 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

The UKSPF is intended to build pride in place and increase life chances. Such investments will assist 

the health of the population and improve general wellbeing of residents. 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Investment made under the UK Shared Prosperity Fund should demonstrate: 

The extent of contribution to net zero and nature recovery objectives, including the UK’s legal 

commitment to cut greenhouse gas emissions to net zero by 2050, wider environmental 

considerations, such as resilience to natural hazards and the 25 Year Environment Plan 

commitments. 

Support for green growth and how projects can work with the natural environment to achieve 

project objectives, and – at a minimum – consider the project’s impact on our natural assets and 

nature. 

LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

MISSIONS 
This paper contributes to the follow Missions outlined in the Government’s Levelling Up White 

paper. 

Skills By 2030, the number of people successfully completing high-quality skills 
training will have significantly increased in every area of the UK. In 
England, this will lead to 200,000 more people successfully completing 
high-quality skills training annually, driven by 80,000 more people 
completing courses in the lowest skilled areas. 

Health By 2030, the gap in Healthy Life Expectancy (HLE) between local areas 
where it is highest and lowest will have narrowed, and by 2035, HLE will 
rise by 5 years. 

Wellbeing By 2030, well-being will have improved in every area of the UK, with the 
gap between top performing and other areas closing. 

Pride in Place By 2030, pride in place, such as people’s satisfaction with their town centre 
and engagement in local culture and community, will have risen in every 

Page 39



10 
 

area of the UK, with the gap between the top performing and other areas 
closing. 

 

ACRONYMS 

• UKSPF (UK Shared Prosperity Fund) 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A South Holland UKSPF Investment Plan 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

  

  

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Lydia Rusling, Assistant Director Economic Growth 

Signed off by: Michelle Sacks, Deputy Chief Executive 

Approved for publication: Cllr Nick Worth 

 

Page 40



Response ID ANON-QPA8-9P1F-T

Submitted to Submit an investment plan to the UK Shared Prosperity Fund in England
Submitted on 2022-07-28 17:07:35

Investment priorities

Navigating your investment plan submission

About your investment plan

Get help

Your location

In which region is the lead authority based?

East Midlands

Your location: East Midlands

Select the lead authority

Select the lead authority:
South Holland

Your details

Full Name

First name and surname:
Matthew Hogan

Email address

Email address:
matthew.hogan@sholland.gov.uk

Phone number

Phone number:
07776240766

Organisation

Organisation:
South Holland District Council

Local challenges and opportunities

Local challenges and opportunities: Communities and Place

Are there any local challenges you face which fall under the Communities and Place investment priority ?

Yes

Local challenges and opportunities: Communities and Place

Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible

Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible:

South Holland has a range of complex issues that provide community development and economic regeneration challenges. It is set in a rural milieu and 
most of its population has poor access to services. It is in the lowest 40% of all local authority areas in England in relation to the Barriers to Service 
domain for the English Indices of Deprivation 2019. Overall a combination of the rural, mono-sectoral and demographical profile of the area combine to 
put it in the lower 50% of all local authorities in terms of deprivation according the English Indices of deprivation. 

Page 41



Like neighbouring Boston Borough, South Holland has flat fertile fenlands with many of its hectares reclaimed from the sea. Hence despite being part of
the ‘drier side of the country’, the area (like Boston Borough) has flood risks. Notwithstanding this high level of flood risk the area has a long tradition of
effective drainage board activity, nonetheless the area is externally characterised as challenged by a high risk of flooding. 
 
In the past the area was the main grower of tulips and today it is a nationally and internationally recognised grower and supplier of food for retail (locally,
nationally and internationally), grain production, animal feed, and horticulture products, that includes ongoing growth of flowers on a commercial scale.
Whilst horticulture is a defining feature of the area it is recognised as being somewhat mono-sectoral with a need, whilst building on its economic
strength, to diversify its economic profile. 
All the towns in South Holland feature strong community identities and activities, but there are opportunities to greater realise and utilise community
assets, attract additional business diversity, and create higher-level professional occupations and retain workforces. 
 
All of the towns are challenged by vacant town centre premises, declining footfall and a lack of investment in the traditional high street offer. 
Overall, the population is deemed to be expanding with ONS reporting a 7.7% increase between the census of 2011 and 2021, a similar level to that of the
East Midlands region. However the area has a disproportionately high and rapidly growing stock of older residents. The population increase can be
broken down further. Comparing 2021 Census data with that of 2011, there has been an increase of 14.4% in people aged 65 years and over, an increase
of 4.5% in people aged 15 to 64 and 9% for children aged under 15 years. 
 
As of 2020 there were 95,900 residents in South Holland (source ONS) and estimates project that the population will reach 105,400 by 2041 (South
Holland District Council Corporate Plan 2019-2023, 2019). 58% of the population are aged between 16-64 years of age. 46,300 residents aged 16 to 64 are
economically active (76.2%), a slightly lower proportion for the East Midlands region (77.6%) and the country (Great Britain) at 78.4%. 
 
In summary the challenges facing the area in terms of the community and place priority are: an economy heavily orientated towards one sector,
perceived to be challenged by flood risk, with a distributed population pattern with limited access to services, a demographically skewed population
towards older resident and moderately higher levels of economic inactivity than the national average, in place based terms these issues track through to
relatively high vacancy rates and commercial challenges to the functionality of the district’s town centres.

Local challenges and opportunities: Communities and Place

Are there any local opportunities which fall under the Communities and Place investment priority that you intend to support?

Yes

Local challenges and opportunities: Communities and Place

Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible

Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible:

Recognised as a hub for UK agriculture, food manufacturing and logistics, South Holland has proud heritage as a major part of the food production
capacity of the UK. The district is home to a modern-day horticulture industry of national significance and in terms of the narrative relating to its unique
history it has major unrealised visitor potential.

South Holland has a significant cultural, entertainment and arts community, including the South Holland Centre, a multi-functional venue for people of
various age groups offering live theatre, music, cinema and several clubs and workshops based in the Georgian town of Spalding.

The history of the area is core to developing its role in the visitor economy, with attractions that include Ayscoughfee Hall and museum gardens (a grade
1 listed house in 5 acres of beautiful gardens), Chain Bridge Forge (a working blacksmiths workshop), Moulton Windmill (the highest windmill in England),
Pinchbeck Engine (which provides insight into land drainage), Crowland Abbey (a church that also had ancient ruins which date back to the 11th Century),
Spalding Gentleman’s Society and Burtey Fen (a privately owned music hall). There are also plans to re-establish and invigorate the Spalding Flower
Festival which showcases large-scale industry alongside artisan crafts.
The district’s leading role in food technology and farming innovation has gained significant recognition – a catalyst for enhancing career development,
training and skills that are locally accessible through a University of Lincoln satellite campus in Holbeach which acknowledges the role of local enterprise
and its national and international importance.

South Holland District Council also operates a number of housing related activities which form a development point in the context of UKSPF these include
innovative schemes to develop high quality affordable homes for purchase, shared ownership and rent. The corporate plan also sets out the commitment
of local people who work in South Holland District Council and partner agencies to support vulnerable members of the community.

The distributed framework of small towns across the district particularly: Donington, Holbeach, Long Sutton, Sutton Bridge and Crowland provide a set of
key “nodes” for investment and have high residential desirability which responds to the new post pandemic pattern of how people choose to live and
work. There are a significant number of opportunities, which have been referenced through the public consultation associated with our approach to
UKSPF engagement, to build the “live/work” capacity of these settlements.

Key Communities and Place investment themes include:
• Projects which build the residential desirability of the area, drawing wider attention to its history, heritage and assets.
• Projects which bring imaginative new activities and adapt buildings to breathe new life into town centres.
• Programmes for smaller places which will improve and widen the use of community buildings and assets, including village halls.
• Projects which build on the visitor offer of the South Holland area.

Page 42



Local challenges and opportunities: Supporting Local Business

Are there any local challenges you face which fall under the Supporting Local Business investment priority ?

Yes

Local challenges and opportunities: Supporting Local Business

Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible

Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible:

There are 3955 businesses in South Holland which represents a slightly higher stock of businesses in relation to the head of population than the East
Midlands average, 24.25 people per business compared to 25.75 people. There is also a modestly higher number of micro – 0 to 9 employee businesses
in the district than the regional average. 90.4% compared to 89.4%. (ONS)

The high sectoral bias of the district towards food processing and agriculture accounts in part for the micro-nature of the business base. Physical distance
from market, high labour market demand pressures and increasing raw material and fuel prices all of which have a disproportionate impact because of
its sectoral focus on our business base are key challenges facing our local businesses.

This small business focus and the relatively sparsely populated nature of the district allied to a significant distance from market leads to the principle
challenge facing South Holland businesses being around workforce skills and availability. Notwithstanding this shortage of labour as it is focused on the
lower skills end of the labour market wages are also lower than the regional and national average (approaching 12.5%).

Whilst there are a number of high skilled occupations in the area overall this situation leads to a relatively low skill, low wage economy, which affects the
supply of labour and provides a dampening factor in terms of the capacity of people to develop new businesses.

In addition to food processing there is a strong associated logistics and haulage cluster in the area and the relatively poor road infrastructure,
notwithstanding planned investments from the Levelling Up Fund, provides an ongoing challenge to the functionality of these businesses, many of which
are only based in the area as a consequence of their long term association with its food businesses.

More widely the sparsely populated nature of the area and the stronger economic pull of settlements such as Boston, Grantham, Peterborough and Kings
Lynn lead to a high prevalence of market failure which detracts from business investment in a wider service portfolio (outside of food) of businesses. One
approach to addressing this is the potential to develop social enterprises. More investment and know how support needs to be deployed to realise the
potential offered by social enterprises to the area.

Whilst there is a significant overall stock of business premises in the area there is only a modest availability of space orientated towards office and
non-industrial related activity. Due to the small and relatively isolated nature of the settlements in the area it is not currently well served with the sort of
contemporary workspaces which reflect post pandemic approaches to business working in the service sector such as town centre based “pop up” and
bookable business space.

In summary the area has a narrow industrial base, poor access to markets, a poorly functioning and low skilled labour force and relative competitive
disadvantages compared to major adjoining centres of population and investment. This is reflected in a current lack of contemporary and high quality
workspaces for new and small scale businesses.

Local challenges and opportunities: Supporting Local Business

Are there any local opportunities which fall under the Supporting Local Business investment priority that you intend to support?

Yes

Local challenges and opportunities: Supporting Local Business

Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible

Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible:

South Holland has a highly distinctive and specialised food processing and logistics sector, with wider ancillary activities linked to horticulture and the 
growing of ornamentals. This provides a real opportunity to work with key facilities such as the National Centre for Food Manufacturing (NCFM) to grow 
the distinctive and specialised business stock through encouraging new business starts and to enhance the productivity and competitiveness of 
businesses in the area. 
 
The NCFM campus is situated in the South Lincolnshire Food Enterprise Zone and is part of a multi-million-pound business park and strategic investment 
for the Agri-food sector. It presents a prime location from where businesses can grow, with demand for labour market skills being fulfilled by the National 
Centre for Food Manufacturing (NCFM), in addition to the University of Lincoln as a whole. The NCFM’s £10m campus includes an Innovation Centre with 
labs, test kitchen, sensory suite, teaching rooms and a Digital Food Manufacturing Technologies Centre, part of the Lincolnshire Institute of Technology 
that complements Food Automation, Robotics and Processing Research Centre on Park Road. 
 
The Centre presents opportunities to generate further impact in areas both allied to and separate from farming and food production, creating a demandPage 43



for increasingly varied educational experiences, skills development and employability for local people, in turn attracting more people into the area.
Business, employment and community development opportunities exist that are yet to be fully capitalised on, with scope to include building transferable
skills in the local working population. Potential exists for this to take place alongside a fostering greater business diversity which, for instance, extends to
knowledge-based sectors. 
 
The UK Food Valley Campaign provides a very strong impetus to achieve this potential and UKSPF can be used to supplement and complement its
activities. It is a campaign of activity which recognises the internationally significant nature of the food growing and processing sector in South Holland.
Greater Lincolnshire currently supports around 75,000 food sector jobs, 18% of jobs in the area compared to 4% of the UK workforce. At the heart of our
food clusters, this concentration is much higher in the South Holland District which focuses on fresh produce and logistics. The wider sector and its
supply chain accounts for 42% of the local workforce and 38% of GVA. 
 
Key priorities for the UK Food Valley, are: 
 
• Accelerating food chain automation and digital technology adoption to deliver productivity growth and high value jobs; 
• Delivering low carbon food chains from farm to fork by focusing on low carbon technologies for production, processing and distribution; 
• Developing the market potential of naturally healthy and nutritious foods, as well as new sources of protein, such as fish, vegetables, salads, fruit, pulses
and lean meat, in which Greater Lincolnshire specialises. 
 
More widely there are opportunities to build on the current track record of the local authority, South Holland District Council have a strategic
commitment in their corporate plan to serve as a business partner, facilitating local enterprise along with inward investment by providing signposting and
support services, highlighting available business grants and supporting applications. 
 
The council has a key role in enhancing workforce skills, modernising training provision by offering apprenticeships, graduate schemes and working with
schools and universities by facilitating placements. Through taking a commercial approach, the council aspires to become less dependent on government
funding, enabling continuing delivery of discretionary services that support the health and wellbeing of residents. 
 
The local authority leads on the Grants4Growth project. Starting in 2017, Grants4Growth has supported SME’s operating across Greater Lincolnshire,
providing grants for capital equipment and machinery ranging from £1000 and £25000. Since its launch it has provided over £3.1 million of investment
with over 355 SME’s. The Grants4Growth portal is part of the Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Growth & Efficiency Programme, managed by South
Holland District Council. A dedicated local business broker is embedded within the delivery team to help businesses access grants. This means that South
Holland District Council is well-placed and exceptionally experienced in delivery business grant support to local businesses. 
 
Our consultation associated with the UKSPF has identified significant interest in the development of social enterprises. This model of business formation
and activity is a potent means of addressing market failure and there are already some significant examples of success in the area to build on for
example Tonic Health which provides a hub for health and well-being in Spalding: https://tonic-health.co.uk/ 
 
In summary there are key sectoral initiatives linked to the work of the LEP (in the context of the Food Valley initiative) and the University of Lincoln in
relation to the NCFM along with a well-established tradition of positive interventions through the Grants4Growth programme which provide a starting
point for addressing the business growth challenges facing the area. There is scope to build on these to address issues which respond to the lack of
labour and the provision of more premises to support activities which diversify the business base of the local economy.

Local challenges and opportunities: People and Skills

Are there any local challenges you face which fall under the People and Skills investment priority?

Yes

Local challenges and opportunities: People and Skills

Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible

Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible:

Businesses and public sector bodies engaged in the economic development agenda in South Holland cite people and skills as the key priorities for the 
economic development of the area. 
 
The local labour market is concentrated in lower skilled occupations, more so than the region or country. Key roles include the processing end of food 
manufacturing, caring, leisure and other service occupations. 
 
Most stark is the gap around those who fill management, director or senior official roles 36% compared to 43.6% (regionally) and 49.7% (nationally). For 
professional occupations the percentages are 15%, 20.1% and 23.7% respectively. 
 
Whilst there is infrastructure for providing upskilling activities and post-16 engagement in education and vocational training, the levels of qualifications 
achieved falls significantly behind regional and national levels. For the January 2021 and December 2021 period just 18% had a qualification at NVQ level 
4 or above. For the region this was 36.5% and Great Britain 43.5%. 
 
The top three industries by number of jobs are: 
 
• Manufacturing (8000 jobs) Page 44



• Wholesale and retail trade; Repair of Motor Vehicles and Motorcycles (7000 jobs) 
• Administrative and Support Service Activities (6000 jobs) 
 
The district has more economic inactivity 13,400 people (23.8%) compared to the region and country (22.4% and 21.6% respectively). Whilst the sample on
which ONS projections are made lacks sufficient granularity for making conclusions about the type of economic inactivity (e.g., from factors such as being
in education, permanently or temporarily sick, a carer or retired). 11,600 of the 13,400 who are economically inactive are not seeking a job. 
 
Average gross weekly pay for residents in full time work is £575.70, slightly higher than for the region, but still just over £37 less than Great Britain. The
hourly rate of pay for full time workers (not including overtime) is low at £13.63, and there is disparity when accounting for the gross weekly wage and
hourly rates of pay between men and women, with men having higher rates of pay (a pattern replicated at regional and national levels). 
 
In addition, whilst there is coverage of skills providers to advance residents skills and qualifications there are shortages of people who achieve NVQ Level
four and above. This includes graduates and post-graduates. Integrating education, training and employment opportunities with business aspirations in
the district is integral to creating places where people want to invest, upskill and live. This includes attracting inward migration of skilled people from
outside the district, wider county and country. 
One positive consequence of these workforce challenges is the impact of the profound demand for labour in terms of a very low level of unemployment. 
 
South Holland’s figures for claimants relating to the main out of work benefits are significantly better than regional and national levels, standing at 6.5%
compared to 8% for East Midlands and 8.4% for Great Britain. Main out of work benefits includes jobseekers, ESA and incapacity benefits, lone parents
and others on income related benefits. 
 
In terms of training and development there is no indigenous FE provider in South Holland although FE Colleges have out-stationed staff. The consequence
of this situation is that travel times and more widely access to learning for post 16 learners are severely constrained. This situation has a
disproportionately negative impact on vocationally focused children who are not academically orientated. 
 
The dysfunctionality of the local labour market has a knock on effect in terms of the broader health and well-being challenges of the area. There is a
well-established relationship between low wages and ill health. South Holland has a history of poorer population health outcomes. For example between
2015 and 2017 it had levels of premature death that were significantly worse than those of the regional and national populations, notwithstanding that a
high proportion of deaths from cardiovascular diseases were deemed preventable (Health and Wellbeing Strategy).

Local challenges and opportunities: People and Skills

Are there any local opportunities which fall under the People and Skills investment priority that you intend to support?

Yes

Local challenges and opportunities: People and Skills

Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible

Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible:

South Holland has two major assets upon which to build the economic potential of its people and skills agenda. The National Centre for Food 
Manufacturing and the Food Valley Initiative. Both of these projects focus attention on skills development as part of their core rationale. 
 
These two initiatives have attracted a significant level of engagement around workforce issues from employers and provide a powerful starting point for 
the development of an agenda around addressing the challenges facing the area: 
 
• increasing the availability of workers, particularly by driving down levels of economic inactivity 
• driving up skills levels, particularly for the less academic cohort of the area and increasing 
 
There is already a good representation of training and skills providers who are active in the area. Boston College has a well-established presence and has 
recently agreed a key role in supporting the NCFM to deliver a new Centre for Fresh Food and Produce Logistics which will open up new learning 
opportunities in the South East Lincolnshire area, with key elements of the delivery of this initiative being based in South Holland. 
NCFM is also a participant in the Lincolnshire Institute of Technology which will provide remote learning opportunities from 7 academic partners across 
Lincolnshire and Humberside and there are opportunities to work with key players engaged in this initiative as a means of engaging learners in new 
opportunities for personal and economic development. 
 
The current Building Better Opportunities which concentrates on supporting those individuals furthest from the labour market has a well-established 
footprint in South Holland, it is currently planning the next stage of its evolution and there are real opportunities to consider how to most effectively tap 
into the development of the legacy approach of this project. 
 
Our consultation with the local community as part of the development of the UKSPF process has identified significant interest in the development of local 
training hubs based in redundant buildings in terms of town centres and in villages in community buildings. 
 
There is also significant interest in the development of social enterprises which have the capacity to support the training and development of people 
arising from the consultation process and we intend to explore further how this model of economic activity can contribute to the people and skills 
agenda. The social enterprise model has demonstrated an ability in other settings to overcome market failure and provide services and community 
development opportunities as a consequence of its ability to mobilise volunteers and work with community organisations as part of the management ofPage 45



its cost base. This enables it to operate successfully in areas traditionally affected by market failure. 
 
In summary the approach we propose will: 
 
• Build on the capacity needs arising from the NCFM and Food Valley 
• Link to the training and development capacity of established providers including Boston College and the University of Lincoln 
• Connect with the legacy planning of the BBO programme 
• Maximise community training and development opportunities connected with community buildings 
• Harness social enterprise as a means of people focused economic development

Interventions

Interventions: Communities and Place

Does your investment plan meet the Communities and Place investment priority?

Yes

Interventions: Communities and Place

What are the outcomes you want to deliver under this investment priority? Select all that apply.

Jobs created, Jobs safeguarded, Increased footfall, Increased visitor numbers, Reduced vacancy rates, Greenhouse gas reductions, Improved
perceived/experienced accessibility, Improved perception of facilities/amenities, Increased users of facilities/amenities, Increased affordability of
events/entry, Improved perception of safety, Reduction in neighbourhood crime, Improved engagement numbers, Number of community-led arts,
cultural, heritage and creative programmes as a result of support, Improved perception of events, Increased number of web searches for a place,
Volunteering numbers as a result of support, Number of new or improved community facilities as a result of support

Interventions: Communities and Place

Select the interventions you intend to use which meet this priority. You can select as many as you like.

E1: Funding for improvements to town centres and high streets, including better accessibility for disabled people, including capital spend and running
costs., E2: Funding for new, or improvements to existing, community and neighbourhood infrastructure projects including those that increase
communities’ resilience to natural hazards, such as flooding. This could cover capital spend and running costs. , E3: Creation of and improvements to local
green spaces, community gardens, watercourses and embankments, along with incorporating natural features into wider public spaces. , E4: Enhanced
support for existing cultural, historic and heritage institutions that make up the local cultural heritage offer. , E5: Design and management of the built and
landscaped environment to ‘design out crime’. , E6: Support for local arts, cultural, heritage and creative activities. , E7: Support for active travel
enhancements in the local area. , E8: Funding for the development and promotion of wider campaigns which encourage people to visit and explore the
local area. , E9: Funding for impactful volunteering and/or social action projects to develop social and human capital in local places. , E10: Funding for local
sports facilities, tournaments, teams and leagues; to bring people together. , E11: Investment in capacity building and infrastructure support for local civil
society and community groups. , E12: Investment in community engagement schemes to support community involvement in decision making in local
regeneration. , E13: Community measures to reduce the cost of living, including through measures to improve energy efficiency, and combat fuel poverty
and climate change. , E15: Investment and support for digital infrastructure for local community facilities.

Interventions: Communities and Place

Do you plan to use any interventions not included on this list?

No

Interventions: Communities and Place

Have you already identified any projects which fall under the Communities and Place investment priority?

No

Interventions: Supporting Local Business

Does your investment plan meet the Supporting Local Business investment priority?

Yes

Interventions: Supporting Local Business

What are the outcomes you want to deliver under this investment priority? Select all that apply.

Page 46



Jobs created, Jobs safeguarded, Number of new businesses created, Increased footfall, Increased visitor numbers, Reduced vacancy rates, Improved
perception of markets, Increased business sustainability, Increased number of businesses supported, Increase in visitor spending, Increased amount of
investment, Improved perception of attractions, Number of businesses introducing new products to the firm, Number of organisations engaged in new
knowledge transfer activity, Number of premises with improved digital connectivity, Number of businesses adopting new to the firm technologies or
processes, Number of new to market products, Increased amount of low or zero carbon energy infrastructure installed, Greenhouse gas reductions,
Number of businesses with improved productivity, Number of R&D active businesses, Number of businesses adopting new or improved products or
services, Number of businesses engaged in new markets, Number of early stage firms which increase their revenue following support, Number of
businesses increasing their export capability, Increased number of projects arising from funded feasibility studies, Increased number of properties better
protected from flooding and coastal erosion, None of the above

Interventions: Supporting Local Business

Select the interventions you intend to use which meet this priority. You can select as many as you like.

E16: Investment in open markets and improvements to town centre retail and service sector infrastructure, with wrap around support for small
businesses. , E17: Funding for the development and promotion (both trade and consumer) of the visitor economy, such as local attractions, trails, tours
and tourism products more generally. , E18: Supporting Made Smarter Adoption: Providing tailored expert advice, matched grants and leadership training
to enable manufacturing SMEs to adopt industrial digital technology solutions including artificial intelligence; robotics and autonomous systems; additive
manufacturing; industrial internet of things; virtual reality; data analytics. The support is proven to leverage high levels of private investment into
technologies that drive growth, productivity, efficiency and resilience in manufacturing. , E19: Increasing investment in research and development at the
local level. Investment to support the diffusion of innovation knowledge and activities. Support the commercialisation of ideas, encouraging collaboration
and accelerating the path to market so that more ideas translate into industrial and commercial practices. , E20: Research and development grants
supporting the development of innovative products and services. , E21: Funding for the development and support of appropriate innovation
infrastructure at the local level. , E22: Investing in enterprise infrastructure and employment/innovation site development projects. This can help to
unlock site development projects which will support growth in places. , E23: Strengthening local entrepreneurial ecosystems, and supporting businesses
at all stages of their development to start, sustain, grow and innovate, including through local networks. , E24: Funding for new and improvements to
existing training hubs, business support offers, ‘incubators’ and ‘accelerators’ for local enterprise (including social enterprise) which can support
entrepreneurs and start-ups through the early stages of development and growth by offering a combination of services including account management,
advice, resources, training, coaching, mentorship and access to workspace. , E25: Grants to help places bid for and host international business events and
conferences that support wider local growth sectors. , E26: Support for growing the local social economy, including community businesses, cooperatives
and social enterprises. , E27: Funding to develop angel investor networks nationwide. , E28: Export Grants to support businesses to grow their overseas
trading, supporting local employment. , E29: Supporting decarbonisation and improving the natural environment whilst growing the local economy.
Taking a whole systems approach to invest in infrastructure to deliver effective decarbonisation across energy, buildings and transport and beyond, in
line with our legally binding climate target. Maximising existing or emerging local strengths in low carbon technologies, goods and services to take
advantage of the growing global opportunity. , E30: Business support measures to drive employment growth, particularly in areas of higher
unemployment.

Interventions: Supporting Local Business

Do you plan to use any interventions not included on this list?

No

Interventions: Supporting Local Business

Have you already identified any projects which fall under the Supporting Local Business investment priority?

No

Interventions: People and Skills

Does your investment plan meet the People and Skills investment priority?

Yes

Interventions: People and Skills

What are the outcomes you want to deliver under this investment priority? Select all that apply.

Number of economically inactive individuals in receipt of benefits they are entitled to following support, Number of active or sustained participants in
community groups as a result of support, Number of people reporting increased employability through development of interpersonal skills funded by
UKSPF, Number of people in supported employment, Number of people with basic skills (English, maths, digital and ESOL), Number of people engaging
with mainstream healthcare services, Number of people in employment, including self-employment, following support, Number of people engaged in
job-searching following support, Number of people sustaining engagement with keyworker support and additional services, Number of people sustaining
employment for 6 months, Number of people in education/training, Number of people experiencing reduced structural barriers into employment and
into skills provision, Number of people familiarised with employers’ expectations, including, standards of behaviour in the workplace, Number of people
gaining a qualification or completing a course following support, Number of people gaining qualifications, licences and skills, Number of economically
active individuals engaged in mainstream skills education and training, Number of people engaged in life skills support following interventionsPage 47



Interventions: People and Skills

Select the interventions you intend to use which meet this priority. Select all that apply.

E33: Employment support for economically inactive people: Intensive and wrap-around one-to-one support to move people closer towards mainstream
provision and employment, supplemented by additional and/or specialist life and basic skills (digital, English, maths* and ESOL) support where there are
local provision gaps.This provision can include project promoting the importance of work to help people to live healthier and more independent lives,
alongside building future financial resilience and wellbeing. Beyond that, this intervention will also contribute to building community cohesion and
facilitate greater shared civil pride, leading to better integration for those benefitting from ESOL support. Expected cohorts include, but are not limited to
people aged over 50, people with a disability and health condition, women, people from an ethnic minority, young people not in education, employment
or training and people with multiple complex needs (homeless, care leavers, ex/offenders, people with substance abuse problems and victims of
domestic violence).*via Multiply., E34: Courses including basic skills (digital, English, maths (via Multiply) and ESOL), and life skills and career skills**
provision for people who are unable to access training through the adult education budget or wrap around support detailed above. Supplemented by
financial support for learners to enrol onto courses and complete qualifications. Beyond that, this intervention will also contribute to building community
cohesion and facilitate greater shared civil pride, leading to better integration for those benefitting from ESOL support. **where not being met through
Department for Work and Pensions provision., E35: Activities such as enrichment and volunteering to improve opportunities and promote wellbeing. ,
E36: Intervention to increase levels of digital inclusion, with a focus on essential digital skills, communicating the benefits of getting (safely) online, and
in-community support to provide users with the confidence and trust to stay online. , E37: Tailored support to help people in employment, who are not
supported by mainstream provision to address barriers to accessing education and training courses. This includes supporting the retention of groups
who are likely to leave the labour market early. , E38: Support for local areas to fund local skills needs. This includes technical and vocational qualifications
and courses up to level 2 and training for vocational licences relevant to local area needs and high-value qualifications where there is a need for
additional skills capacity that are not being met through other provision. , E39: Green skills courses targeted around ensuring we have the skilled
workforce to achieve the government’s net zero and wider environmental ambitions. , E40: Retraining support for those in high carbon sectors. , E41:
Funding to support local digital skills.

Interventions: People and Skills

Do you plan to use any interventions not included on this list?

No

Interventions: People and Skills

Have you already identified any projects for 2024-2025 which fall under the People and Skills investment priority?

No

Interventions: People and Skills

Have you identified a local voluntary and community provision at risk as part of this intervention?

No

Approach to delivery and governance

Stakeholder engagement and support

Have you engaged with any of the following as part of your investment plan? Select all that apply.

Public sector organisations, Private sector organisations, Civil society organisations

If so, describe how you have engaged with these organisations. Give examples where possible.

If so, describe how you have engaged with these organisations. Give examples where possible. :

We have engaged with all three categories of organisations through a really extensive public engagement plan this has involved the following schedule of 
group meetings including an extensive portfolio of public engagement: 
 
13 June South Holland Partner Organisations Meeting – VCS, Business and Public Sector Partners 
14 June South Holland Corporate Meeting with officer core 
20 and 23rd June detailed briefing SHDC Councillors 
21 June Spalding Market Public Consultation 
23 June Long Sutton Market Public Consultation 
27 June Parish Councils Briefing 
28 June inaugural meeting of South Holland Governance Group 
30 June Business Organisation Briefing 
4 July Opportunity to meet East Lindsey and South Holland Councillors for a 3 way strategic discussion about joint priorities 

Page 48



In addition to this list of direct engagements we have launched a website for the public consultation covering the East Lindsey, Boston and South Holland 
areas: https://www.selcp-haveyoursay.co.uk/ 
 
We have also used the Council’s facebook page to garner responses. As of 7 July 213 South Holland specific responses had been received to the website 
covering the following broad themes: 
 
LOCAL COMMUNITIES AND PLACE 
 
Colocation of sports and other community facilities – multi-purpose ‘hubs’ supporting intergenerational activity and recreation. 
 
Providing places that engage different community members from toddlers through to ageing populations – emphasis on a lack of services/activities for 
young people 
 
Safe active travel for community members (as an example: a path along market way in Pinchbeck to benefit school children, but other members in the 
community) 
 
Accessible services with clear signage for 
 
Attract infrastructure investment that capitalises on tourism opportunities as well as travel for residents (e.g., rail especially where new builds are taking 
place in villages – creating perceived demand). Improved transport enabling rurally based residents’ access to key services (such as hospitals in 
Peterborough 
 
Address loneliness and social isolation through place-based activities – not just services, but services that care 
 
Empower communities through genuine collaboration (and taking this approach to the ‘market’) - ideas include further public consultation on ideas, and 
potential voting of proposed community developments and funding. 
 
Safe community spaces for all – landscaped parks and secure play parks for young children (fenced off from dogs), seating and designed attractions with 
the needs of all ages taken into account (specifically bringing older and younger people into shared spaces) 
 
Closer collaboration between agencies across sectors to maximize resource (not purely finance, but knowledge and sharing of equipment, contacts etc). 
Working with awareness of different organisational priorities in a a way that ensures SPF captures inter-agency working/share objectives 
 
Develop sports pitches and facilities across the district 
 
Consider engagement of stakeholder bodies to improve place – Spalding and District Civil Society has existing ideas for regeneration of the town centre 
 
Public arts and shared events for all that promote inclusivity/respect - For example PRIDE events 
 
Provide accessible toilet facilities 
Balancing night-time economy (pubs/bars/restaurants) with ensuring town centres are inclusive places for all 
 
Cleaner town centre areas and tackling of ASB, substance use and street drinking 
 
SUPPORTING LOCAL BUSINESSES 
 
Linking ‘place’, social opportunities and skills with business – strengthening businesses by addressing demand for workplace skills 
 
Engaging and developing business start-up (focus on SME’s) use of start-up grants and awarding following business pitches - with a role for mentoring 
new businesses and self-employment prospects (peer to peer, authority initiated) 
 
Linking ‘local’ developments to regional and national decision making and policy 
 
Supporting businesses to engage in inter-agency work, promoting the financial and social value businesses can contribute to and benefit from 
 
Creating community spaces for different pop-up businesses over time, showcasing local produce and services. 
 
Accessible finance, benefit and debt management services for businesses (and people) 
 
Explore ways to join artisan trades to local industry (e.g., farming). Identify role models to show and tell business experience (one example being of a local 
blacksmith linking necessity with arts and crafts) 
 
Create opportunities by promoting funding opportunities for business to undertake smaller scale research and development work e.g., design/test 
agriculture and machinery development 
 
Explore opportunities to develop areas through events – Spalding Flower Festival ‘pride in produce’ meets ‘pride in place 
 
Development of business opportunities in social care and residential homes are in high demand 
 Page 49



PEOPLE AND SKILLS 
 
Support for young people to upskill and progress into employment 
 
Activities are key- including digital offers – but also develop personal and collective resilience and communication not just qualifications but (stereotypical)
‘soft skills’ 
 
Focus on young people – their succession in relation to several key businesses (e.g., farming) but importantly alongside improving self-esteem 
 
Promoting services that engage people in deprived and isolated settings – opportunities that reduce potential crime and ASB, but also promote healthy
lifestyle choices (in line with SPF mission statements). E.g. Long Sutton Youth Shed; Community Centre refurbishments. 
 
Targeted services, like Men Shed, providing activities that ‘outreach’ - especially improving mental health and suicide prevention building access to
support through dynamic activities rather than labelling vulnerabilities 
 
Address and support young people with budgeting and other financial skills. 
 
Providing a range of information, advice and guidance services – ranging from health to finance and educational opportunities 
 
Link improvements in place (e.g., parks and gardens) with educational opportunities that relate to nature and green resources 
 
Linking green community projects with mental health benefits and community wellbeing – places where people and services can connect in communities
of interest (underpinned with digital components) 
 
Facilitate connections between people involved in different communities and occupations 
 
Invest in young people through establishing a youth club – using youth clubs as an opportunity to promote positive engagement and challenge negative
teen stereotypes (ASB and gangs) 
 
Better training opportunities for established industry (e.g., engineering) 
 
Promote healthy living, address support for long term health conditions to enhance populations’ economic and creative potential – raise and normalise
aspirations 
 
Develop services for older people including domiciliary and health support and improving residential home provision

Stakeholder engagement and support

Summarise the governance structures you have in place, including how any advisory panels or associated partnership groups are made up.

Summarise the governance structures you have in place, including how any advisory panels or associated partnership groups are made up.:

In South Holland we have agreed to form a bespoke new group to oversee the development and implementation of the UKSPF.

Have all the MPs covering your lead authority been invited to join the local partnership group?

Yes

Stakeholder engagement and support

Are there MPs who are not supportive of your investment plan?

No

Project selection

Are you intending to select projects in any way other than by competition for funding?

No

Working with other places: Communities and Place

Do you intend to work with other places on any of the interventions which fall under the Communities and Place investment priority?

Yes

Working with other places: Communities and Place

Page 50



Which interventions do you intend to collaborate on? Select all that apply.

E1: Funding for improvements to town centres and high streets, including better accessibility for disabled people, including capital spend and running
costs., E2: Funding for new, or improvements to existing, community and neighbourhood infrastructure projects including those that increase
communities’ resilience to natural hazards, such as flooding. This could cover capital spend and running costs. , E3: Creation of and improvements to local
green spaces, community gardens, watercourses and embankments, along with incorporating natural features into wider public spaces. , E4: Enhanced
support for existing cultural, historic and heritage institutions that make up the local cultural heritage offer. , E5: Design and management of the built and
landscaped environment to ‘design out crime’. , E6: Support for local arts, cultural, heritage and creative activities. , E7: Support for active travel
enhancements in the local area. , E8: Funding for the development and promotion of wider campaigns which encourage people to visit and explore the
local area. , E9: Funding for impactful volunteering and/or social action projects to develop social and human capital in local places. , E10: Funding for local
sports facilities, tournaments, teams and leagues; to bring people together. , E11: Investment in capacity building and infrastructure support for local civil
society and community groups. , E12: Investment in community engagement schemes to support community involvement in decision making in local
regeneration. , E13: Community measures to reduce the cost of living, including through measures to improve energy efficiency, and combat fuel poverty
and climate change. , E14: Funding to support relevant feasibility studies. , E15: Investment and support for digital infrastructure for local community
facilities.

Describe any interventions not included in this list

Describe any interventions not included in this list:

N/A

Which places do you intend to collaborate with?

Which places do you intend to collaborate with?:

We will work in a formal partnership to look at connections and linkages across the functioning economic geography of South and East Lincolnshire – this
will involve working in a comprehensive way with East Lindsey and Boston. More widely where opportunities arise we will work with other Lincolnshire
local authorities and potentially North and North East Lincolnshire. Our focus with East Lindsey and Boston will be deeply and strategically focused. In the
other areas cited we will work on projects and communities of interest as projects arise and where there is a mutual benefit.

Working with other places: Supporting Local Business

Do you intend to work with other places on any of the interventions which fall under the Supporting Local Business investment priority?

Yes

Working with other places: Supporting Local Business

Which interventions do you intend to collaborate on? Select all that apply.

E16: Investment in open markets and improvements to town centre retail and service sector infrastructure, with wrap around support for small
businesses. , E17: Funding for the development and promotion (both trade and consumer) of the visitor economy, such as local attractions, trails, tours
and tourism products more generally. , E18: Supporting Made Smarter Adoption: Providing tailored expert advice, matched grants and leadership training
to enable manufacturing SMEs to adopt industrial digital technology solutions including artificial intelligence; robotics and autonomous systems; additive
manufacturing; industrial internet of things; virtual reality; data analytics. The support is proven to leverage high levels of private investment into
technologies that drive growth, productivity, efficiency and resilience in manufacturing. , E19: Increasing investment in research and development at the
local level. Investment to support the diffusion of innovation knowledge and activities. Support the commercialisation of ideas, encouraging collaboration
and accelerating the path to market so that more ideas translate into industrial and commercial practices. , E20: Research and development grants
supporting the development of innovative products and services. , E21: Funding for the development and support of appropriate innovation
infrastructure at the local level. , E22: Investing in enterprise infrastructure and employment/innovation site development projects. This can help to
unlock site development projects which will support growth in places. , E23: Strengthening local entrepreneurial ecosystems, and supporting businesses
at all stages of their development to start, sustain, grow and innovate, including through local networks. , E24: Funding for new and improvements to
existing training hubs, business support offers, ‘incubators’ and ‘accelerators’ for local enterprise (including social enterprise) which can support
entrepreneurs and start-ups through the early stages of development and growth by offering a combination of services including account management,
advice, resources, training, coaching, mentorship and access to workspace. , E25: Grants to help places bid for and host international business events and
conferences that support wider local growth sectors. , E26: Support for growing the local social economy, including community businesses, cooperatives
and social enterprises. , E27: Funding to develop angel investor networks nationwide. , E28: Export Grants to support businesses to grow their overseas
trading, supporting local employment. , E29: Supporting decarbonisation and improving the natural environment whilst growing the local economy.
Taking a whole systems approach to invest in infrastructure to deliver effective decarbonisation across energy, buildings and transport and beyond, in
line with our legally binding climate target. Maximising existing or emerging local strengths in low carbon technologies, goods and services to take
advantage of the growing global opportunity. , E30: Business support measures to drive employment growth, particularly in areas of higher
unemployment.

Describe any interventions not included in this list.

Describe any interventions not included in this list.:

N/A Page 51



Which places do you intend to collaborate with?

Which places do you intend to collaborate with?:

We will work in a formal partnership to look at connections and linkages across the functioning economic geography of South and East Lincolnshire – this
will involve working in a comprehensive way with East Lindsey and Boston. More widely where opportunities arise we will work with other Lincolnshire
local authorities and potentially North and North East Lincolnshire. Our focus with East Lindsey and Boston will be deeply and strategically focused. In the
other areas cited we will work on projects and communities of interest as projects arise and where there is a mutual benefit.

Working with other places: People and Skills

Do you intend to work with other places on any of the interventions which fall under the People and Skills investment priority?

Yes

Working with other places: People and Skills

Which interventions do you intend to collaborate on? Select all that apply.

E33: Employment support for economically inactive people: Intensive and wrap-around one-to-one support to move people closer towards mainstream
provision and employment, supplemented by additional and/or specialist life and basic skills (digital, English, maths* and ESOL) support where there are
local provision gaps. This provision can include project promoting the importance of work to help people to live healthier and more independent lives,
alongside building future financial resilience and wellbeing. Beyond that, this intervention will also contribute to building community cohesion and
facilitate greater shared civil pride, leading to better integration for those benefitting from ESOL support. Expected cohorts include, but are not limited to
people aged over 50, people with a disability and health condition, women, people from an ethnic minority, young people not in education, employment
or training and people with multiple complex needs (homeless, care leavers, ex/offenders, people with substance abuse problems and victims of
domestic violence).*via Multiply., E34: Courses including basic skills (digital, English, maths (via Multiply) and ESOL), and life skills and career skills**
provision for people who are unable to access training through the adult education budget or wrap around support detailed above. Supplemented by
financial support for learners to enrol onto courses and complete qualifications. Beyond that, this intervention will also contribute to building community
cohesion and facilitate greater shared civil pride, leading to better integration for those benefitting from ESOL support. **where not being met through
Department for Work and Pensions provision., E35: Activities such as enrichment and volunteering to improve opportunities and promote wellbeing. ,
E36: Intervention to increase levels of digital inclusion, with a focus on essential digital skills, communicating the benefits of getting (safely) online, and
in-community support to provide users with the confidence and trust to stay online. , E37: Tailored support to help people in employment, who are not
supported by mainstream provision to address barriers to accessing education and training courses. This includes supporting the retention of groups
who are likely to leave the labour market early. , E38: Support for local areas to fund local skills needs. This includes technical and vocational qualifications
and courses up to level 2 and training for vocational licences relevant to local area needs and high-value qualifications where there is a need for
additional skills capacity that are not being met through other provision. , E39: Green skills courses targeted around ensuring we have the skilled
workforce to achieve the government’s net zero and wider environmental ambitions. , E40: Retraining support for those in high carbon sectors. , E41:
Funding to support local digital skills.

Describe any interventions not included in this list.

Describe any interventions not included in this list.:

Which places do you intend to collaborate with?

Which places do you intend to collaborate with?:

We will work in a formal partnership to look at connections and linkages across the functioning economic geography of South and East Lincolnshire – this
will involve working in a comprehensive way with East Lindsey and Boston. More widely where opportunities arise we will work with other Lincolnshire
local authorities and potentially North and North East Lincolnshire. Our focus with East Lindsey and Boston will be deeply and strategically focused. In the
other areas cited we will work on projects and communities of interest as projects arise and where there is a mutual benefit.

Public sector equality duty

How have you considered your public sector equality duty in the design of your investment plan?

How have you considered your public sector equality duty in the design of your investment plan ?:

Public sector equality duty has been considered as part of the formation of the investment plan, especially in respect of the public engagement and
consultation that has taken place in seeking views on the themes and initiatives for the plan to cover.

How will you consider your public sector equality duty when implementing your investment plan, including in the selection of projects?

How will you consider your public sector equality duty when implementing your investment plan, including in the selection of projects ?:

We have a specific proforma which individual projects will be asked to complete at the bidding stage. When successful they will be asked to update it as
part of their implementation plan. This proforma will be considered internally at both of these stages, by the equality and diversity lead at a project and
programme level to ensure compliance. The results for projects and the programme as a whole will be grouped and shared with the South Holland UKSP
Governance Group, the Council and the Section 151 Officer. Page 52



Risks

Have you identified any key risks that could affect delivery, for example lack of staff or expertise?

Yes

Risks

Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you have in place to mitigate them

Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you have in place to mitigate them:

Risk - Challenges in terms of staff availability 
Mitigation - We are coordinating our activities with Boston and East Lindsey and have large scale capacity to manage this challenge 
 
Risk - Lack of expertise 
Mitigation - In addition to our three authority staffing model we have developed an implementation model which works with local infrastructure bodies 
with insight and expertise in key themes within the VCS and private sector to enable us to maximise the insight and skills available to us. 
 
Risk - Lack of demand 
Mitigation - We have established a comprehensive awareness and engagement strategy which across the three local authority areas has garnered over 
600 outline ideas. We will also utilise our own networks and those of the infrastructure bodies above to stimulate demand 
 
Risk - Lack of capacity amongst bidders 
Mitigation - We have developed a model working in partnership with the infrastructure bodies and larger established individual agencies referenced 
above to work directly with individual and thematic (place of intervention as appropriate) categories of bidders to build mutual support and know how to 
underpin an inclusive model of delivery 
 
Risk - Underperformance in relation to spend or outputs 
Mitigation - We have developed a rigorous programme management approach which will identify and intervene to address performance challenges 
following a Prince II methodology and harnessing the expertise of the Board, Theme Groups, officer core and wider infrastructure partners we have 
incorporated into our approach to work with individual projects to address this challenge 
 
Risk - Uneven distribution of activity resulting in cold spots 
Mitigation - Our approach to collating bids, assessing their wider coverage and implications with our infrastructure partners and seeking to join up and 
stimulate interest in cold spots will enable us to address and overcome this challenge. 
 
 
The management structure which will underpin our delivery will be supported, with key decisions being scrutinised and assured by the Chief Finance 
Officer at the Accountable Body, the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer. 
 
Each project will have a funding agreement which will provide the legal basis for its operation. This agreement will set out its responsibilities from a 
management and delivery point of view and will be developed to ensure the following issues are set out clearly: 
 
1. Delegated authority – including Project Board or Committee approvals: we expect each project sponsor to have an appropriate scheme of delegation in 
place which will be scrutinised as part of the annual financial audits we propose as part of our governance regime. 
 
2. Financial controls – we will expect as part of the funding agreement a regime to operate which ensures: 
 
• The roles and responsibilities of the delivery of the project sponsor organisation for each project, its committees and staff for financial decision making 
and administration have been set out in writing. 
• All staff with financial responsibilities have access to and an understanding of its Procedure Rules. 
• The financial scheme of delegation approved and reviewed annually by the governing body. 
• There are minutes of all meetings of the project sponsor organisation and its committees that include decisions taken and by whom action is to be 
taken. 
• There is a register of business interests for its decision makers who influence financial decisions. 
• Arrangements are in place to ensure financial control is maintained in the absence of key personnel. 
• Proper accounting records are maintained and retained in accordance with the document retention schedule. 
• All accounting records are retained securely and access is controlled. 
 
3. Audit – there is a schedule of regular systems and financial audits and the results of these are reported to the Chief Financial Officer and then onto the 
Project Delivery Board. 
 
4. Counter fraud, corruption, and anti-bribery – procedures are in place within each project sponsor in relation to these issues and form a key part of the 
contractual arrangements which are put in place with any sub-contractors and suppliers of services. 
 
5. Procedures to avoid Conflict of Interests – are clearly documented, with interests recorded in terms of the individuals concerned and where they are 
likely to represent a material or pecuniary interest the individuals concerned do not participate in the decision making or management processes 
concerned. Page 53



 
6. Cyber security, and data management – all project sponsor organisations will be required to have in place processes to ensure that data, no matter its
form, is protected while in their possession and use from unauthorized access or corruption. They will need as a matter of national policy to follow all the
GDPR requirements enshrined within national legislation. 
 
7. Code of conduct setting standards for ethical and professional behaviour – it will be a requirement for individuals associated with the management and
delivery of the programme and their sub-contractors and suppliers where they have a substantial relationship with the project to follow the 7 Principles
of Public Life. 
 
The cornerstone of the approach will be the 2018 Code of Conduct for Recipients of Government General Grants. 
 
All projects will be required to participate in a systems and financial audit regime as part of their funding agreement and an independent annual audit of
the overall programme will be scheduled and reported to the Delivery Board and Accountable Body. 
 
As part of the transactions of the project implementation group those responsible for delivering the projects across the whole portfolio of the UKSPF
programme will be convened in 6 monthly meetings to develop peer interactions and mutually supportive connections in the context of good and
responsible financial management.

Risks

Have you identified any key fraud risks that could affect UKSPF delivery?

Yes

Risks

Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you have in place to mitigate them.

Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you have in place to mitigate them. :

The management structure which will underpin our delivery will be supported, with key decisions being scrutinised and assured by the Chief Finance 
Officer at the Accountable Body, the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer. 
 
Each project will have a funding agreement which will provide the legal basis for its operation. This agreement will set out its responsibilities from a 
management and delivery point of view and will be developed to ensure the following issues are set out clearly: 
 
1. Delegated authority – including Project Board or Committee approvals: we expect each project sponsor to have an appropriate scheme of delegation in 
place which will be scrutinised as part of the annual financial audits we propose as part of our governance regime. 
 
2. Financial controls – we will expect as part of the funding agreement a regime to operate which ensures: 
 
• The roles and responsibilities of the delivery of the project sponsor organisation for each project, its committees and staff for financial decision making 
and administration have been set out in writing. 
• All staff with financial responsibilities have access to and an understanding of its Procedure Rules. 
• The financial scheme of delegation approved and reviewed annually by the governing body. 
• There are minutes of all meetings of the project sponsor organisation and its committees that include decisions taken and by whom action is to be 
taken. 
• There is a register of business interests for its decision makers who influence financial decisions. 
• Arrangements are in place to ensure financial control is maintained in the absence of key personnel. 
• Proper accounting records are maintained and retained in accordance with the document retention schedule. 
• All accounting records are retained securely and access is controlled. 
 
3. Audit – there is a schedule of regular systems and financial audits and the results of these are reported to the Chief Financial Officer and then onto the 
Project Delivery Board. 
 
4. Counter fraud, corruption, and anti-bribery – procedures are in place within each project sponsor in relation to these issues and form a key part of the 
contractual arrangements which are put in place with any sub-contractors and suppliers of services. 
 
5. Procedures to avoid Conflict of Interests – are clearly documented, with interests recorded in terms of the individuals concerned and where they are 
likely to represent a material or pecuniary interest the individuals concerned do not participate in the decision making or management processes 
concerned. 
 
6. Cyber security, and data management – all project sponsor organisations will be required to have in place processes to ensure that data, no matter its 
form, is protected while in their possession and use from unauthorized access or corruption. They will need as a matter of national policy to follow all the 
GDPR requirements enshrined within national legislation. 
 
7. Code of conduct setting standards for ethical and professional behaviour – it will be a requirement for individuals associated with the management and 
delivery of the programme and their sub-contractors and suppliers where they have a substantial relationship with the project to follow the 7 Principles 
of Public Life. Page 54



 
The cornerstone of the approach will be the 2018 Code of Conduct for Recipients of Government General Grants. 
 
All projects will be required to participate in a systems and financial audit regime as part of their funding agreement and an independent annual audit of
the overall programme will be scheduled and reported to the Delivery Board and Accountable Body. 
 
As part of the transactions of the project implementation group those responsible for delivering the projects across the whole portfolio of the UKSPF
programme will be convened in 6 monthly meetings to develop peer interactions and mutually supportive connections in the context of good and
responsible financial management.

Capacity and capability

Team resource

How many people (FTE) will be put in place to work with UKSPF funding?

How many people (FTE) will be put in place to work with UKSPF funding?:
Two

Describe what role these people will have, including any seniority and experience.

Describe what role these people will have, including any seniority and experience.:

These individuals are still to be recruited. They will be deployed as part of the Economic Growth team for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils
Partnership. This team has a strong focus on place with specialism in Heritage, Culture and the Visitor Economy.

• They have led the Town Deal programme for Boston, Mablethorpe and Skegness – supporting two town deal boards, engagement and business case
development. They have also led the further development of two levelling up fund proposals in 2021 (Boston and East Lindsey) and three for LUF round 2
(Spalding, Boston and East Lindsey). This experience has embedded the Levelling Up principles and missions into the team, ensuring a deep knowledge of
geographical inequalities and experience of engaging with communities and businesses.

• The team has an established relationship with DLUHC built through the town deal programme as well as strong links to regional bodies (Midlands
Engine, Midlands Connect) and locally with the LEP, Lincolnshire County Council and through the Partnership with other stakeholders that support the
Levelling Up principles. The team has also developed funding bids and have experience of working with departments within DCMS, including Arts Council
England and VisitBritain/VisitEngland.

• The team will work across the three local authority areas to support management of delivery partners, monitoring and evaluation, as well as maximising
opportunities to align with other funding and investment.

• Currently roles include Business Manager (manages all finance, monitoring and evaluation and servicing town deal boards), a Funding Coordinator
(supporting with finance, monitoring/evaluation and comms/engagement), an officer that supports with Grant Agreements, project management and
liaison with external project leads. The team also encompasses inward investment and skills officers, place manager and place officers (with a focus on
town centre regeneration, visitor economy, culture and heritage).

The team would be strengthened to manage the UKSPF programme – including a programme manager and place based officers for each locality – they
would be integrated within the economic growth team to ensure alignment with levelling up, existing town deals and other funding. Their roles would
encompass managing and working with the delivery partners, reporting, monitoring and evaluation and financial management.

Team experience and capability

How would you describe your team’s current experience of delivering funding and managing growth funds?

Very experienced

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for procurement?

Strong capability

How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for procurement?

Strong capacity

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for subsidies?

Strong capability

How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for subsidies?

Strong capacity Page 55



Capacity and capability: Communities and Place

Does your lead authority have any previous experience of delivering the Communities and Place interventions you have selected?

Yes

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for Communities and Place interventions?

Strong capability

Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering Communities and Place interventions. This may include challenges within
your lead authority or your local/regional delivery system.

Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering Communities and Place interventions. This may include challenges within your local
authority or your local/regional delivery system.:

We have a well-resourced and fully competent team, which operates across three local authority areas, giving us strong interdisciplinary capability and
great marginal cost potential to increase the levels of staffing and expertise required for this task.

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.:

None

Capacity and capability: Communities and Place

How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for Communities and Place interventions?

Strong capacity

Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering Communities and Place interventions. This may include challenges within
your lead authority or your local/regional delivery system.

Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering Communities and Place interventions. This may include challenges within your local
authority or your local/regional delivery system.:

None

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.:

n/a

Capacity and capability: Supporting Local Business

Does your lead authority have any previous experience of delivering the Supporting Local Business interventions you have selected?

Yes

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for Supporting Local Business interventions?

Strong capability

Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering Supporting Local Business interventions. This may include challenges
within your lead authority or your local/regional delivery system.

Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering Supporting Local Business interventions. This may include challenges within your
local authority or your local/regional delivery system.:

None

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.:

n/a

Capacity and capability: Supporting Local Business Page 56



How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for Supporting Local Business interventions?

Strong capacity

Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering Supporting Local Business interventions. This may include challenges
within your lead authority or your local/regional delivery system.

Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering Supporting Local Business interventions. This may include challenges within your local
authority or your local/regional delivery system.:

None

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.:

n/a

Capacity and capability: People and Skills

Does your lead authority have any previous experience of delivering the People and Skills interventions you have selected?

Yes

How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for People and Skills interventions?

Strong capability

Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering People and Skills interventions. This may include challenges within your
lead authority or your local/regional delivery system.

Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering People and Skills interventions. This may include challenges within your local
authority or your local/regional delivery system.:

None

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.:

n/a

Capacity and capability: People and Skills

How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for People and Skills interventions?

Strong capacity

Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering People and Skills interventions. This may include challenges within your
lead authority or your local/regional delivery system.

Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering People and Skills interventions. This may include challenges within your local
authority or your local/regional delivery system.:

None

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.

Describe what further support would help address these challenges.:

n/a

Support to deliver UKSPF

All lead authorities can use up to 4% of their UKSPF allocation to support the delivery of their chosen interventions, but by exception, lead
authorities will be able to use more than 4%. Are you planning on using more than 4%?

No

If so, explain why you wish to use more than 4%. Page 57



If so, explain why you wish to use more than 4%.:

n/a

Approvals

Do you have approval from your Chief Executive Officer for this investment plan?

Yes

Do you have approval from your Section 151 Officer for this investment plan?

Yes

Do you have approval from the leader of your lead authority for this investment plan?

Yes

If you do not have approval from any of these people, explain why this is

If you do not have approval from any of these people, explain why this is: :

Additional documents

Have you completed and uploaded the two spreadsheets to the SharePoint folder as requested?

Yes

Edit your answers

Next steps

You told us you have not uploaded your documents

Page 58



APPENDIX C 

 

 

REPORT TO: Cabinet 

DATE: 15th November 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 

 

TO CONSIDER THE SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY 

SAFETY STRATEGY 2022-25 PRIOR TO ADOPTION 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR NICK WORTH (PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR PEOPLE, 

PLACES, ECONOMY) 

REPORT OF: 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

EMILY SPICER, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – WELLBEING AND 

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP 
 

DEE BEDFORD, COMMUNITY SAFETY & ENFORCEMENT MANAGER / 

SARAH COCKER, COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIPS OFFICER / 

PETER HUNN, COMMUNITY SAFETY MANAGER 

 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the duties placed on local authorities and other named statutory agencies in 
relation to crime and disorder (Sections 5-7 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998). It outlines the 
current Community Safety Partnership (CSP) arrangements across the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership (S&ELCP), and in Lincolnshire as a whole.   

A Community Safety Strategy has been produced to demonstrate the work of the South and 

East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (SELCSP) in supporting the county Safer 

Lincolnshire Partnership (SLP) and in addressing crime and disorder at the local level. The Policy 

Development Panel is asked to recommend that the Executive Board/Cabinet agrees to adopt 

the strategy for the period April 2022 to March 2025. 

 
Page 59



 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR CABINET 

a) Note the contents of the report and the work of partners in addressing crime and disorder in 
South and East Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire as a whole. 
 

b) Recommend that Council agree to adopt the Community Safety Strategy and identified 
priorities for the SELCSP for the period 2022-25. 

 

c) Recommend that Council agrees to provide delegated authority for the Deputy Chief 
Executive (Communities) to finalise with the relevant Portfolio Holders a programme for the 
development of a Community Safety Action Plan.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR COUNCIL 

a) Note the contents of the report and the work of partners in addressing crime and disorder 
in South and East Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire as a whole. 

 
b) That Council agree to adopt the Community Safety Strategy and identified priorities for the 

SELCSP for the period 2022-25. 
 

c) That Council agrees to provide delegated authority for the Deputy Chief Executive 
(Communities) to finalise with the relevant Portfolio Holders a programme for the 
development of a Community Safety Action Plan.  

 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To communicate the commitment of the SELCSP in supporting the SLP to meet the statutory 

duties set out in the Crime & Disorder Act 1998, and address crime and disorder at the local 

level. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Continue to operate the SELCSP without producing a formal plan, at the expense of recognising 

the work undertaken locally to address crime and disorder across the S&ELCP. 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1. CSPs (formerly known as Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships) were formed under 

Sections 5-7 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. CSPs are made up of representatives from the 

police, local authorities, fire and rescue authorities, health and probation services (the Page 60



‘responsible authorities’). The responsible authorities have a duty to work in co-operation with 

other ‘co-operating bodies’ for example Registered Social Landlords and Parish Councils. 

 

1.2. This report outlines the community safety landscape across the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils (S&ELCP) geographical area and Lincolnshire as a whole, setting out the statutory 

duties placed on responsible authorities and the arrangements for how these are met in 

Lincolnshire. 

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1. The 2007 Crime and Disorder Regulations (revised in 2011) set out the way in which the 

responsible authorities should carry out their functions as a CSP under Section 6 of the Act, and 

require the preparation of:  

 

1) A partnership plan for the local government area,  

2) A county level community safety agreement, setting out the ways the responsible 

authorities in the county might work more effectively to implement the identified priorities 

by joint working. 

 

2.2. The responsible authorities for a local government area are required to formulate and 

implement a strategy for: 

 

1) the reduction of crime and disorder in the area (including anti-social and other behaviour 

adversely affecting the local environment), 

2) combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol, and other substances in the area,  

3) the reduction of re-offending in the area,  

4) a new duty to formulate and implement a strategy for preventing people from becoming 

involved in serious violence and reducing instances of serious violence in the area. 

 

2.3. CSPs have other statutory duties that must be fulfilled: - 

 

1) to set up protocols and systems for information sharing, 

2) to regularly engage and consult with the public about their community safety priorities and 

issues, 

3) to commission Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHRs) following notification from the Police of 

a domestic homicide, 

4) to hold one or more public meeting during each year. 

 

2.4. In addition to the above, Section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 places a duty on all 

employees of responsible authorities to take into consideration crime and disorder in 

everything they do. 

 

2.5. Working in partnership at a sub-region (SELCSP) and at a county level (SLP) enables the District 

Councils in the SELCSP to discharge their statutory duties. Examples include:  

 

1) Regularly engage and consult with the public – this had been discharged by the SLP to the 

Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) who has a duty to consult the community before 

making recommendations on precept levels to the Police and Crime Panel. Page 61



2) Commission DHR reviews - The DHR duty will be delegated to the recently formed Domestic 

Abuse Partnership. 

 

3. SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 

 

3.1. The SELCSP covers the municipal areas of South Holland District Council, Boston Borough 

Council and East Lindsey District Council (collectively known as the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils Partnership).  Each local authority offers a range of community safety services to 

support a joined-up approach with partners.  For example, provision of CCTV, addressing Anti-

Social Behaviour (including coordination of the Anti-Social Behaviour Risk Assessment 

Conferences and Community Trigger), Public Places Protection Orders, emergency planning, 

Vulnerable Adults Panels (South Holland) and a safe at home scheme for victims of domestic 

abuse (East Lindsey). 

 

3.2. Up to the end of March 2019, the SELCSP (formerly the East Lincolnshire Community Safety 

Partnership) routinely produced a partnership plan for reducing crime and disorder across the 

area. 

3.3. Over the last three years, the SELCSP has operated in a less formal way, acting as a conduit for 

cascading information from the SLP to the district level, whilst maintaining local links between 

the responsible authorities to facilitate multi-agency working when required. It is now felt with 

the development of the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership a return to more 

formal arrangements is required. Linked to this is the need to develop a Community Safety Plan 

for the sub-region.   

 

3.4. The newly formed S&ELCP, between the three sovereign councils in the SELCSP area, provides a 

good grounding to support local community safety work, working with all relevant partners and 

complimenting (not duplicating) the work of the county level SLP. 

 

3.5. The SLP is the multi-agency forum for addressing community safety issues at a Lincolnshire 

County level and aims (working alongside others such as the SELCSP) to:  

 

1. Reduce crime and disorder and increase the safety of individuals and communities, 

2. Ensure those living, working, or visiting Lincolnshire feel safe and are equipped to cope 

with any hazards or threats they may encounter. 

3. Improve communication between agencies so they can work effectively. 

 

3.6. The SLP consists of a Strategy Board and several Core Priority Groups, which coordinate and 

deliver activity against the priority areas.  Lincolnshire County Council primarily funds the Safer 

Communities Team, which provides Business Management, Co-ordination, Analysis and 

Business Support for the SLP. 

 

4. POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER 

 

4.1. The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced elected Police & Crime 

Commissioners (PCCs) for each police force, responsible for developing a Police & Crime Plan 

(PCP) for their local area and for commissioning community safety and criminal justice 

services. Page 62



 

4.2. PCCs must have regard to the priorities of the responsible authorities making up the CSPs in 

the police area, and the responsible authorities must have regard to the objectives set out in 

the PCP, and to act in co-operation with each other in exercising their respective functions. 

Oversight of the PCC lies with the Police and Crime Panel, a joint committee that includes 

County and district council representatives. 

 

4.3. In July 2020, the Minister of State for Crime and Policing announced a two-part review of the 

PCC model.  The first stage of the review made recommendations to the Home Secretary on 

how to improve the accountability, scrutiny, and transparency of the current PCC model. It 

also served to map out longer-term reform ambitions in relation to fire and rescue services 

and mayoral devolution in England.  

 

4.4. Part two of the PCC review aimed to examine further ways to strengthen and expand the PCC 

role, with a focus on the tools and levers that PCCs need to enhance efforts to cut crime. 

Recommendations from the review have been set out by government and include clarifying 

the local crime prevention landscape through an in-depth review of Community Safety 

Partnerships in England and Wales. 

5. DEVELOPMENT OF THE SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 

 

5.1. A strategy has been prepared using the format of the last partnership plan (2016-2019). An 

action plan for the year ahead (2022-2023) will support the strategy and will sit with the 

SELCSP.  Information from the county strategic assessment has been reviewed along with 

routine data on crime and ASB from Lincolnshire Police, information from the pilot initiative 

StreetSafe (which allows people to anonymously report areas they feel unsafe), and 

perception data from the Lincolnshire Crime and Policing Survey. This has been considered 

alongside the county priorities identified for the SLP. Five priority area have been identified 

which are detailed in the plan: 

 

5.2. Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) - Tackling ASB is a core role for the partnership with dedicated 

ASB Officers and Police Coordinators working together and with other agencies daily. We 

address high risk and complex ASB cases through multi-agency Anti-Social Behaviour Risk 

Assessment Conferences (ASBRACs). The district councils coordinate the Community Trigger 

(also known as the Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review) which gives victims the right to demand 

a formal case review where the local threshold is met. 

 

5.3. Hate Crime – Through working more closely with Just Lincolnshire (the single equality 

organisation in the county) it has been identified that reporting of Hate Crime in Lincolnshire 

has decreased by 12.5% in 2020-21 compared to 2019-20, a reversal of year on year increases 

over the last decade and against a 9% increase nationally. This is concerning, particularly as 

Hate Crime is widely acknowledged to be underreported. The SELCSP seeks to work to raise 

awareness of hate crime, targeting individuals and groups who are more likely to be victims, 

and ensure there are a variety of methods for people to report Hate Crimes and incidents with 

confidence.  

 

5.4. Safer Streets & Night-Time Economy – Community safety work to support the Night-Time 

Economy and the safety of our streets within urban centres and local neighbourhoods 

provides greater opportunities for local businesses and communities to thrive with a reduced Page 63



risk of crime and disorder. Government’s Beating Crime Plan gives focus to early intervention, 

prevention, and practical measures to make communities safer, and to tackle serious violence 

and neighbourhood crimes. The Safer Streets Fund has enabled improvements to be made to 

CCTV and ANPR capacity in East Lindsey, amongst other measures, to bring focus to safety at 

the neighbourhood level. Multi-agency working between police and ELDC licensing officers, 

utilising the drugs itemiser provides a real opportunity to increase safety during the evening 

hours and gives scope for widening this work across the partnership area, facilitated by the 

SELCSP. 

 

5.5. The Safety of Women & Girls – Using local data and information, a bid was submitted to 

round four of the Safer Streets fund and was successful in bringing nearly £400k to the 

partnership area. This will support work on Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG) in 

public places and aims to increase feelings of safety. CCTV was cited as something that would 

increase feelings of safety amongst local college students in Skegness and this is central to the 

bid.  A Sexual Violence Needs Assessment, commissioned by the PCC in 2020, showed that 

densely populated areas have the highest volume of offences.  Public engagement undertaken 

by the PCC’s Office also identifies that people worrying about being raped or sexually 

assaulted has risen year on year. Using police crime data and information from StreetSafe it 

has been possible to identify hot spot locations where harassment is the most frequently 

reported issue in Boston, Skegness, and Spalding. These areas are the focus of the bid, 

incorporating key night-time economy areas and pedestrian routes which have been identified 

as being disproportionately affected by VAWG. This compliments other work streams including 

the Women’s Concordat, which aims to improve outcomes for women and girls at risk of 

entering or who have already entered the criminal justice sector, and ensures it is embedded 

within local work streams to keep our sub-region a safe area to live, work and visit. 

 

5.6. Vulnerability & Safeguarding – Information from the Index of Multiple Deprivation shows that 

people living in the 10% most deprived neighbourhoods in Lincolnshire are three times more 

likely to have an adult safeguarding enquiry than those living in the least deprived areas, 

nearly four times likely to be a victim of crime, and nearly six times more likely to be in 

children’s social care. The second and third most deprived areas in the county can be found 

within our sub-region - Skegness and Chapel St Leonards.  Frontline officers, including police, 

council and health workers, encounter children and vulnerable adults on a regular basis, it is 

imperative that they are invested in safeguarding and adequately trained to carry out their 

duties competently. Recent cases of modern-day slavery and exploitation in Boston and South 

Holland demonstrate the need for officers and the public to report any suspicions. The SELCSP 

can drive work locally to ensure that officers can identify signs of issues such as sexual 

exploitation, county lines, modern slavery, and serious and organised crime, as well as 

understanding more recent approaches such as Contextual Safeguarding. 

 

6. CONCLUSION 

 

6.1. Sections 5-7 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 set out the way in which the responsible 

authorities should carry out their functions as a CSP.  

 

6.2. In Lincolnshire the responsible authorities work as a combined area to fulfil the statutory 

duties through the South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership and the County 

SLP. The SELCSP is an informally merged CSP covering the S&ELCP area. For the last three years Page 64



the SELCSP has not produced a strategy, however, it is recognised that the work undertaken 

locally should be recognised and communicated to our partners and the public. A strategy has 

therefore been produced to promote the dedication and commitment of partners working 

across the S&ELCP in tackling crime and ASB and aims to provide a focus for actions to be 

developed to address the priority community safety issues that impact on communities within 

the sub-region.  

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

The Community Safety Strategy has been developed as a cross-partnership strategy aiming to 

communicate our priorities and aspirations for keeping our communities safe. It highlights the 

strength of local partnership arrangements; and provides reputational benefits to the S&ELCP as a 

driver of local action to tackle crime and disorder.  The proposed Community Safety Strategy will 

support our delivery against our statutory community safety responsibilities working alongside key 

partners. 

IMPLICATIONS 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

The Community Safety Strategy demonstrates the commitment of the S&ELCP in keeping our 

communities safe and outlines how this can be achieved by working with external partners. It 

establishes the ambition of the SELCSP to maintain autonomy within the CSP structures in 

Lincolnshire. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

The Community Safety Strategy supports the following corporate priorities: 

• Boston Borough Council – ‘Priority 1 - People Focused’ (main priority) 

• East Lindsey District Council – ‘Improve equality of opportunity across the district and in 

target areas’  

• South Holland District Council – ‘Your Place’ and ‘Your Health and Wellbeing’ 

The production of a Community Safety Strategy is a strategic activity within the S&ELCP Annual 

Delivery Plan 2022-23.  

 

STAFFING 

Current staffing resource across the partnership will support the delivery of the strategy with 

additional resources identified through further funding as necessary.  

 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

The statutory duties required of CSPs, as set out in the Crime & Disorder Act 1998, which are met 

through working with the County SLP which works as a combined area for Lincolnshire.  

 

DATA PROTECTION Page 65



Data Protection will be dealt with under the partnership’s policies and procedures. 

 

FINANCIAL 

External funding has been granted through the government Safer Streets Fund which will support 
the Safer Streets and Safety Against Women and Girls priorities. Further funding opportunities will 
be sought wherever possible to support delivery of the plan. That aside, delivery will be managed 
from existing partner commitments and resources.  

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

All risks will be managed as part of the strategy and action plan development as appropriate. 

 

STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Portfolio Holders of each sovereign council, members 

of the South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership and with key officers across the 

S&ELCP (Corporate Management and Service Managers). Feedback has been positive and 

constructive; the version presented incorporates suggested additions and amendments to an initial 

draft. 

The delivery timeframe for the Community Safety Strategy (as set out in the Annual Delivery Plan) 

is Quarter 2, 2022. 

 

REPUTATION 

The Community Safety Strategy will have a positive impact on the reputation of the S&ELCP as it 

shows our dedication to improving the safety and wellbeing of our local communities. 

 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

The Community Safety Strategy supports delivery of duties placed on responsible authorities in the 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

The priorities within the strategy seek to address discrimination, harassment, and victimisation, 

and promote safeguarding of vulnerable people within our communities.   

 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

The Community Safety Strategy aims to address ASB and crime, which can have a detrimental 

impact on people’s health and wellbeing. Victim engagement and referral to additional support 

services is an integral part of its delivery.  

 
Page 66



CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

MISSIONS 
This paper contributes to the follow Missions outlined in the Government’s Levelling Up White 

paper. 

Wellbeing By 2030, well-being will have improved in every area of the UK, with the 
gap between top performing and other areas closing. 

Pride in Place By 2030, pride in place, such as people’s satisfaction with their town centre 
and engagement in local culture and community, will have risen in every 
area of the UK, with the gap between the top performing and other areas 
closing. 

Crime By 2030, homicide, serious violence, and neighbourhood crime will have 
fallen, focused on the worst-affected areas. 

 

ACRONYMS 

CSP – Community Safety Partnership 

S&ELCP – South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 

SELCSP – South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership 

SLP - Safer Lincolnshire Partnership 

DHR – Domestic Homicide Review 

PCC- Police and Crime Commissioner 

ASB – Anti-Social Behaviour 

ASBRAC - Anti-Social Behaviour Risk Assessment Conferences 

VAWG – Violence Against Women and Girls 

 

APPENDICES Page 67



Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A South & East Lincolnshire Community Safety Strategy April 

2022 to March 2025 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Crime & Disorder Act 1998 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (legislation.gov.uk) 

Beating Crime Plan Beating crime plan - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

South & East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership Annual Delivery Plan 

2022/2023.  

S&ELCP Annual Delivery Plan 2022-23 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Peter Hunn 

Community Safety Manager 

Boston Borough Council 

Municipal Buildings, West Street 

Boston 

Lincolnshire 

PE21 8QR 

E-mail: Peter.Hunn@boston.gov.uk 

Signed off by: John Leach, Deputy Chief Executive - Communities 

Boston Borough Council 

Municipal Buildings, West Street 

Boston 

Lincolnshire 

PE21 8QR 

E-mail: John.Leach@boston.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder 

for People, Places, Economy, Councillor Nick 

Worth, South Holland District Council 

 

Page 68

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/37/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/beating-crime-plan
https://www.sholland.gov.uk/media/20475/S-ELCP-Annual-Delivery-Plan-2022-2023/pdf/MASTER__Annual_Delivery_Plan_22.23_-_Council.pdf?m=637847713477170000


South & East Lincolnshire 

Community Safety Strategy
April 2022 to March 2025

APPENDIX D

P
age 69



SELCSP

Health

Lincolnshire 
Police

Police and 
Crime 

Commissioner's 
Office

Lincolnshire 
County 
Council

Safer 
Lincolnshire 
Partnership

Registered 
Social 

Landlords

Probation

Lincolnshire 
Fire & 
Rescue

South and East 
Lincolnshire 

Councils 
Partnership 
(BBC, ELDC, 

SHDC)

Community Safety Partnerships were introduced by the Crime and Disorder Act 

(1998) which places a statutory duty on responsible authorities to work 

together to reduce crime and disorder.

The South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (SELCSP) is an 

informally merged partnership administered through the South and East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership, covering the Lincolnshire districts of Boston 

Borough, East Lindsey, and South Holland. The SELCSP is made up of statutory 

agencies along with representatives from the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership 

(SLP) and the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office.

At a county level, the SLP is the informally merged partnership for Lincolnshire. 
It is responsible with the SELCSP for meeting the statutory duties required of 
Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs). This includes the preparation and 
implementation of a strategy to reduce crime and disorder, anti-social 
behaviour, substance misuse, reducing reoffending and preventing and tackling 
serious violence.

This strategy sets out the local priorities and work streams for the SELCSP over 
next three years.

The South & East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership’s vision:

“We will combine our knowledge, powers and expertise to reduce anti-social behaviour, crime, and the fear of crime in 
South and East Lincolnshire, to ensure that the area remains one of the safest places to live, work and visit”

2

Introduction

P
age 70



Delivering a Safer South and East Lincolnshire

CCTV

• Monitoring of public 
spaces

• Operational 24 hours 
a day, 365 days a year

• 810 incidents 
witnessed by CCTV 
operators in 2021-
2022

• 210 live arrests that 
CCTV operators 
contributed to in 
2021-2022 

Public Spaces 
Protection Orders

• Ensuring public spaces 
can be enjoyed free 
from Anti-Social 
Behaviour (ASB)

• In specific areas across 
the partnership to 
address issues such as 
alcohol-related ASB, 
control of dogs, 
littering and spitting

• Incremental approach 
used to tackle 
persistent offenders

Prevent

• Identifying and 
supporting people 
who may be at risk of 
radicalisation

• Helping communities 
to identify and 
challenge violent 
extremism 
appropriately

Communication and 
Engagement

• Quarterly police 
priority setting 
incorporating the 
views of the public

• Routine crime 
prevention and safety 
messages throughout 
the year

• The Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s Safer 
Together Team –
working directly with 
local communities

3

All partners of the SELCSP are actively working to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour on a daily basis. We use 
the technology, resources, tools and powers available to us to keep our communities safe.

P
age 71



What you said – Public Consultation

Each year the Police and Crime Commissioner engages and consults with the residents of Lincolnshire on 
crime and policing. Below are respondent’s views from Boston Borough, East Lindsey and South Holland.

• Over half of residents (52%) in Boston Borough said that their quality life is affected by fear of crime, giving 
a score of 5 or more on a scale of 1 to 10 (with 1 being not at all affected and 10 being severely affected). 
This compares to 43% of residents in South Holland and 35% in East Lindsey.  

• More people in South Holland (74%) and Boston Borough (72%) view speeding traffic to be a ‘very big’ or 
‘fairly big’ problem than residents of East Lindsey (66%).

• Residents of Boston Borough are more likely to regard ‘…people using or dealing drugs’ as a ‘very big’ or 
‘fairly big’ problem in their local area (55%), compared to 49% in South Holland and 39% in East Lindsey.

• Around a third of residents perceive burglary to be a ‘very big’ or ‘fairly big’ problem  - 36% in Boston 
Borough, 33% in East Lindsey and 31% in South Holland.

• 27% of residents aged under 50 in Boston Borough had reported a crime or incident to Lincolnshire Police, 
compared to 23% in South Holland and 22% in East Lindsey.

Source: Lincolnshire Crime & Policing Survey 2021-22 4

P
age 72



What you said – StreetSafe
StreetSafe is a pilot initiative introduced as part of the 
Government’s response to tackling violence against women and 
girls. It provides an online facility for anyone to anonymously report 
public places where you have felt unsafe because of environmental 
issues, such as vandalism, and/or because of some behaviours, 
such as being followed or verbally abused. 

Environmental

• Badly lit / poor or no street 

lighting.

• Signs of drug or alcohol use.

• Restricted visibility - overgrown 

bushes and trees, walls.  

• Empty buildings or isolated places.  

• Absence of CCTV.

• Rundown e.g. derelict buildings, 

abandoned cars, graffiti, fly-

tipping etc.

• Poor street layout e.g. blind spots 

and hidden areas.

Behavioural

• Feeling like you are being 

followed / have previously 

been followed.

• Verbal harassment from a 

single stranger or a group of 

people.

• Other forms of harassment.

Source: Lincolnshire Police via StreetSafe on Police.UK (data covering the first 6 months of the pilot) 5

59 people identified 

environmental and behavioural 

issues via StreetSafe across 

Boston Borough (38 reports), East 

Lindsey (14 reports) and South 

Holland (7 reports). Most reports 

were made by females (38), with 

14 reports by males and 2 reports 

by people who preferred not to 

say.

P
age 73



Our priorities

Identification of:

• sexual exploitation

• modern-day slavery 

• county lines

• serious & organised crime

• Lincolnshire Concordat

• Safer Streets Fund  
Round 4

• Promotion of StreetSafe

• White Ribbon Day

•Safer Streets Fund  
Round 2 – addressing 
neighbourhood crime

•Promotion of StreetSafe

•Operation California

• Raising Awareness 

• Hate Crime Charter

• Promotion of 
reporting mechanisms

Hate Crime

Safer Streets 
& Night-Time 
Economy

Vulnerability 
& 

Safeguarding

The Safety of 
Women & 
Girls

Activity against each of these key priorities will be monitored by the SELCSP via an action plan

6

Tackling 
Anti-Social 
Behaviour

The South & East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership has identified key areas of focus for the next three years:

P
age 74



Our priorities in more detail

7

Tackling
Anti-Social Behaviour

Top five reported ASB incidents by type (Lincolnshire Police)

ASB Category Boston 
Borough

East 

Lindsey

South 

Holland

Inconsiderate 

Behaviour
596 1046 487

Neighbours 184 599 251

Drunken Behaviour 184 281 123

Vehicle Nuisance 134 214 206

Noise Nuisance 133 186 130

Total 1231 2326 1197

Informal action taken to tackle ASB across the partnership area 21-22

Stage 1 warning letter 247

Stage 2 warning letter 58

Acceptable Behaviour Agreement 12

Tackling ASB is a core role for the partnership with dedicated ASB 
Officers and Police ASB coordinators working together with other 
agencies on a daily basis.

Over 10,500 incidents of ASB were reported to Lincolnshire Police 
alone across the partnership area in 2021-22.

We are part of the Lincolnshire ASB Partnership, working with 
agencies to tackle ASB through countywide policies and procedures 
and sharing best practice.

ASB is consistently identified by our communities as a priority area at 
quarterly policing priority setting.

We address high risk and complex ASB cases through multi-agency 
Anti-Social Behaviour Risk Assessment Conferences (ASBRACs).

The district councils coordinate the Community Trigger (also known 
as the Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review) which gives victims the 
right to demand a formal case review where the local threshold is met.

P
age 75



Our priorities in more detail

A hate crime or incident is any crime or incident which is perceived by the 
victim, or any other person, to be motivated by hostility or prejudice 
based on a person's actual or perceived social group or groups

Hate crimes and incidents can take many forms, including physical attacks, 
threats, verbal abuse, neighbour disputes, arson, graffiti, intimidation or 
harassment, bullying at school, college or work.

Reports of hate crime in Lincolnshire reduced by 12.5% in 2020-21 
compared to the previous year – a contradictory trend to the national 
increase of 9% over the same period. We believe that hate crimes and 
incidents are under-reported by victims.

We are working with Just Lincolnshire (the single equality organisation in 
the county) to raise the profile of hate crime in our communities, and 
amongst our staff, so that people can recognise when a hate crime or 
incident has occurred.

We aim to support our diverse communities in reporting hate crimes and 
incidents, ensuring there are a variety of ways in which to share the 
information, so that they can receive support and guidance. We aim to 
create a culture within our communities where hate is not tolerated.

8

Hate 
Crime

The law recognises five types of hate crime on 
the basis of:

• Race
• Religion
• Disability
• Sexual orientation
• Transgender identity

P
age 76



Our Priorities In More Detail

Government’s Beating Crime Plan gives focus to early intervention, 
prevention, and practical measures to make communities safer, and to 
tackle serious violence and neighbourhood crimes.

Round two of the Government’s Safer Streets Fund has enabled 
improvements to be made to CCTV and ANPR capacity in East Lindsey, 
amongst other measures, to bring focus to safety at the 
neighbourhood level. 

In addition, multi-agency working through ‘Operation California’ 
between Lincolnshire Police, East Lindsey District Council and other 
agencies, provides engagement opportunities with pubs and clubs  
along the coast. The use of the drugs itemiser, which can detect drug 
residue on people and surfaces, helps to tackle drug use and dealing 
in our communities, as well as wider issues such as ASB. 

We are committed to expanding this work across the partnership area, 
working together and sharing resources to tackle the issues 
highlighted by our communities.

9

Safer 
Streets & 
Night Time 
Economy

P
age 77



Our Priorities In More Detail
The Safety 
of Women 
& Girls

National data* shows that men are more likely than women to be a victim of homicide.  However, 
women are far more likely to be the victims of sexual assault and rape than men. In addition, the 
overwhelming majority of homicides, rapes and sexual assaults are carried out by men.

When we look at perceptions of personal safety, women are much more likely to feel unsafe when 
alone after dark. This is the case if they are walking alone in a park or other open space, a busy 
public place or in a quiet street near their home. Women also consistently report higher fear of 
crime than men, despite being less likely to be victims of many types of crime.

Locally, the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Lincolnshire Youth Commission engaged with over 
1000 young people and identified sexual assaults or street harassment as the biggest threats to 
their safety. Street harassment and stalking has also been directly raised as an issue at public 
engagement events undertaken by the Safer Together Team in Spalding, Boston and Skegness.

Working with the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office we have secured funding through round 
four of the Government’s Safer Streets Fund with a primary focus on Violence Against Women and 
Girls (VAWG) in public places and feelings of safety from VAWG.

This funding will enable us to create Safe Zones Areas as routes that will have blanket CCTV coverage 
from night-clubs and public houses to all recognised taxi ranks, bus stops and regular pick-up points.
The funding will also provide the installation of ‘Artificial Intelligence’ servers alongside the new 
CCTV cameras to allow police officers to search footage quickly using details such as clothing 
description or vehicle type.

*Source: Office for National Statistics 10

P
age 78



Our Priorities In More Detail

Safeguarding is everyone's responsibility. We work 
closely with various agencies to promote people's 
welfare and protect them from harm.

All employees of our agencies have a role to play in 
identifying concerns, sharing information and taking 
prompt action when issues are identified.

We have safeguarding policies that provide guidance 
to officers, to protect people's health, wellbeing and 
human rights, and to prevent problems escalating to 
enable them to live free from harm, abuse or neglect.

The SELCSP is committed to driving work locally to 
ensure that officers can identify signs of issues such as 
sexual exploitation, county lines, modern slavery, and 
serious and organised crime, and taking the necessary 
action to have this investigates further.

11

Vulnerability 
& 

Safeguarding

P
age 79



How you can help us 

Report crime and 
hate crime 

• Report a crime | 
Lincolnshire 
Police 
(lincs.police.uk)

• Home - Stop Hate 
UK

Report unsafe 
locations 

• StreetSafe | 
Police.uk 
(www.police.uk)

Contact 
Crimestoppers 

• Contact 
Crimestoppers to 
remain 
anonymous on 
0800 555 111 or 
visit 
Crimestoppers 
(crimestoppers-
uk.org)

Report anti-social 
behaviour

• Report antisocial 
behaviour | 
Lincolnshire 
Police

• Contact your local 
council ASB team

Follow Crime 
Prevention Advice

• Improve security 
on your property

• Crime prevention 
advice | 
Lincolnshire 
Police 
(lincs.police.uk)

Volunteer

• Police support 
volunteer 
vacancies 

• Join or set up a 
Neighbourhood 
Watch Group in 
your local area 

Have Your Say

• Contribute to the 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner’s 
police and crime 
survey 

• Contribute to 
your local 
Neighbourhood 
Policing Team’s 
priority setting

12

Residents play a vital role in supporting us to keep our communities safe.  We need your help in meeting our vision 
to keep our area one of the safest places to live, work and visit. Small contributions from the public can make a 
huge difference overall. Please follow our suggestions below to play your part in helping us to help you.P

age 80

https://www.lincs.police.uk/ro/report/ocr/af/how-to-report-a-crime/
https://www.stophateuk.org/
https://www.police.uk/pu/notices/streetsafe/street-safe/
https://crimestoppers-uk.org/
https://www.lincs.police.uk/ro/report/asb/asb/report-antisocial-behaviour/
https://www.lincs.police.uk/cp/crime-prevention/
https://www.lincs.police.uk/police-forces/lincolnshire-police/areas/careers/join-us/vacancies/police-support-volunteer-vacancies/


Useful Websites 

Boston Borough Council (mybostonuk.com)

East Lindsey District Council (e-lindsey.gov.uk)

South Holland District Council (sholland.gov.uk)

Lincolnshire County Council (Lincolnshire.gov.uk)

Lincolnshire Police (lincs.police.uk)

Lincolnshire's Police and Crime Commissioner (lincolnshire-pcc.gov.uk)

Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue (Lincolnshire.gov.uk/Lincolnshire-fire-rescue)

Lincolnshire Integrated Care Board (Lincolnshire.icb.nhs.uk)

Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Trust (lpft.nhs.uk)

Safer Lincolnshire Partnership (Lincolnshire.gov.uk/crime-prevention/safer-
Lincolnshire-partnership)

Lincolnshire Housing Partnership (lincolnshirehp.com)

Platform Housing Group (platformhg.com)

Longhurst Group | (longhurst-group.org.uk)

13

SELCSP - South & East Lincolnshire Community 
Safety Partnership

BBC – Boston Borough Council

ELDC – East Lindsey District Council

SHDC – South Holland District Council

SLP - Safer Lincolnshire Partnership

CSP - Community Safety Partnership

CCTV - Closed Circuit Television

ASB - Anti-Social Behaviour

ASBRAC - Anti-Social Behaviour Risk Assessment 
Conference

ANPR Automatic Number Plate Recognition

VAWG Violence Against Women & Girls

List of Acronyms 

P
age 81

https://www.mybostonuk.com/
https://www.e-lindsey.gov.uk/
https://www.sholland.gov.uk/
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
https://www.lincs.police.uk/
https://www.lincolnshire-pcc.gov.uk/home/
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lincolnshire-fire-rescue
https://lincolnshire.icb.nhs.uk/
https://www.lpft.nhs.uk/
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/crime-prevention/safer-lincolnshire-partnership
https://www.lincolnshirehp.com/
https://www.platformhg.com/
https://www.longhurst-group.org.uk/


Sexual exploitation – Actual or attempted abuse of someone’s 
position of vulnerability, differential power or trust to obtain 
sexual favours, including but not only, by offering money or other 
social, economic or political advantages. It includes trafficking 
and prostitution. 

County lines – Where illegal drugs are transported from one area 
to another, often across police and local authority boundaries, 
usually by children or vulnerable people who are coerced into it 
by gangs. The ‘County Line’ is the mobile phone line used to take 
the order od drugs.

Serious & organised crime – Individuals planning, co-ordinating 
and committing serious offences, whether individually, in groups 
or as part of transnational networks. 

Beating crime plan – Government’s plan to deliver change to 
reduce crime and victims and create a safer country.

Safeguarding – The process, practice and culture embedded to 
create a safe environment where children, young people and 
adults at risk are free from all forms of harm, abuse and neglect.

Public Spaces Protection Orders – A power that local authorities 
can use to deal with a nuisance problem in a particular area that 
is detrimental to the community’s quality of life. Conditions can 
be imposed on the use of that area which apply to everyone.

14

Glossary

Hate Crime Charter – A series of commitments for agencies in 
Lincolnshire to fulfil in raising awareness of hate crime and 
hate incidents.

Operation California – Lincolnshire Police’s aim to prevent 
violence, anti-social behaviour and to tackle drugs along the 
coast.

Lincolnshire Concordat – Commitment of Lincolnshire 
agencies to work together to improve outcomes for women 
and girls at risk of entering, or who have already entered ,the 
criminal justice sector.

Safer Streets Fund – A Home Office fund allowing Police and 
Crime Commissioners and Local Authorities to apply for 
funding for crime prevention plans.  

White Ribbon Day – Annual campaign marking the start of 16 
days of action to end violence against women and girls.

Modern-day slavery – A serious crime that violates human 
rights, where victims are forced, threatened or deceived and 
controlled in order to exploit them.

P
age 82



 

REPORT TO: Full Council 

DATE: 23 November 2022 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE:  

Implementation of revised HR Policies  

To seek Council’s approval for revised HR Policies 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Jim Astill, Portfolio Holder – Corporate and 

Communications 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

James Gilbert, Assistant Director - Corporate 

James Gilbert, Assistant Director - Corporate 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/a 

EXEMPT No 

 

SUMMARY 

HR policies require regular review to ensure they are within the legal framework and reflect best 

practice. 

This report brings forward the latest batch of HR policies for review.  The Policies have been 

developed by Public Sector Partnership Services, as the Council’s HR providers; with input from 

a Readers’ Panel consisting of Officers and trade unions. The Readers’ Panel have confirmed 

that operationally the policies are practical to implement.  In addition, the policies have the 

support of trade unions. 

The Business Case for the South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership identifies the 

opportunity to align policy in several areas of the Councils and adopting the policies as set out 

will create that alignment. 

The policies have been reviewed by Policy Development Panel and the Panel is supportive of the 

revisions to the policies, with the request to ensure the formatting/numbering is consistently 

applied throughout the policies. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

• That Council approves the HR policies appended to this report. 

 

 

 
Page 83

Agenda Item 11.



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

• HR policies need to be regularly updated to ensure they reflect best practice and are 

within the legal framework.  This review has provided the opportunity to seek 

consistency in HR policy across the Partnership.    

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

• None.   

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1.  SHDC’s HR Policies are due for refresh. 
 

1.2. When the South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership formed it identified an 
opportunity to align several areas of Policy across the Partnership.  An opportunity has 
been identified to align HR Policy at each of the three Partnership Councils as reviews are 
due at each Council. 
 

1.3. It is important HR Policies are regularly reviewed to ensure they remain appropriate, 
reflect legislation and best practice and enable the Head of Paid Service to effectively 
manage the workforce. 
 

2. REPORT 
 
2.1. At present, each Council within the Partnership has slight variations in its HR policies.   

 
2.2. Having a single set of shared HR policies for each Council will ensure consistency in the way 

the Partnership’s workforces are managed.  Given many services across the Councils are 
already working together this is becoming increasingly important.  There is also the benefit 
to Public Sector Partnership Services of a single HR Policy set for the three Councils as it 
means rather than HR Advisors administering three different policy sets, they only need to 
administer one. 
 

 

2.3. This report brings forward the next four policies for Council’s consideration.  Due to the 
quantity of policies for review, PSPS are reviewing the policies in batches with them 
coming forward at regular intervals, which means Council will receive further policies 
during the coming year for review. 
 

2.4. The policies – as presented in the appendices – have been reviewed by an internal 
Readers’ Panel of Officers (from across the Partnership); trade unions and Leadership 
Team.  The policies have their support. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 84



2.5. The policies appended to this report are: 

Appendix Policy 
Name 

Matter Current Policy  New 

APPENDIX 
A 

Adoption 
Policy  

Policy No policy currently but 
a section in the Time 
Off Policy.  No mention 
of pay. A brief mention 
in policy 4 (Policy 
Handbook) Parental 
right on A-Z (intranet) 

New policy created 

Time off 
paid 

No current policy Now included inline with statutory 
time off: 5 days paid and 2 days 
unpaid for appointments 
 

APPENDIX 
B 

Maternity 
Policy 

  Reviewed and formatted. 
 
No material changes to the Policy. 

APPENDIX 
C 

Paternity 
Policy 

  Reviewed and formatted. 
 
No material changes to the Policy. 

APPENDIX 
D 

Shared 
Parental 
Leave 
Policy 

Rates of Pay References statutory 
entitlement terms 

Link to government website as 
rates change 
 

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

Consistency in HR Policy across the Partnership will provide the benefit of a single approach to 
workforce management; as well as supporting PSPS in the delivery of the HR service.  The former is 
particularly important as more teams from the three Councils start to work more closely together.  
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

As identified in ‘Expected benefits to the Partnership’. 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

N/a 

STAFFING 

The Policies will have a direct impact on the management of the workforce. The Policies developed 

are in line with HR legislation and best practice and are designed to support positive workforce 

management. 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Staffing matters are a non-executive function and are therefore a Council decision. Page 85



DATA PROTECTION 

There are no direct data protection implications arising from the content of the report, but data 

relating to staff is protected under data protection laws. The Council has suitable technical and 

organisational measures in place to protect such data. 

FINANCIAL 

None 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

None 

STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

Consultation has taken place with the Readers’ Panel; Leadership Team and trade unions. All have 

supported the policies as appended to this report. 

REPUTATION 

The Council recognises the importance of supporting its workforce and managing the workforce in 

a positive way.  The policies aim to achieve that, thereby enhancing the reputation of the Council 

as an employer. 

CONTRACTS 

None 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

The policies comply with all associated legislation and have an Equality Impact Assessment.  

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

The policies aim to support a happy and healthy workforce. 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Adoption Policy 

APPENDIX B Maternity Policy 

APPENDIX C Paternity Policy 

APPENDIX D Shared Parental Leader Policy 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Page 86



Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

N/a  

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

Policy Development Panel (HR Policies - 

Batch 3) 

4 October 2022 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: James Gilbert, Assistant Director - Corporate 

Signed off by: James Gilbert, Assistant Director - Corporate 

Approved for 

publication: 

Councillor Jim Astill, Portfolio Holder – Corporate and Communications 

 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e   T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  
N o .  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adoption Leave 

Policy 
 

 

 
  

Policy Title 
 

Adoption Leave Policy  

Policy Author HR Team - PSPS Limited 

Policy Issue date  December 2022 

Policy Review date  December 2026, or earlier if required 

Policy Consultation  Trade Unions recognised by the 
Council 
Council Reader Panel 
Senior Leadership Team  

Policy Sign-off Head of Paid Service / SHDC Council 

 

Logo here 

Page 89



2 | P a g e   T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  
N o .  

 

Adoption Leave Policy 
Introduction 

The Council is committed to helping employees balance the needs of work and 
family life and as such offers enhanced ‘Adoption Leave’ benefits. 
 
In addition to this ‘Adoption Leave Policy’ the Council supports a suite of ‘Family 
Friendly’ policies aimed at supporting employees to achieve work/life balance. 
 
The Family Friendly Polices include: 
 

➢ Maternity Leave Policy 
➢ Paternity Leave Policy 
➢ Shared Parental Leave Policy 
➢ Parental Leave Policy 
➢ Time off Work Policy 
➢ Flexible Working Policy 
➢ Agile Working Policy 

 
 
Scope 
 
Adoption provisions refer to the leave and pay to which employees may be 
entitled, and their right to resume employment, following a period of ‘Adoption 
Leave’.  

Qualifying employees who have been matched with a child may take up to 52 
weeks ‘Adoption Leave’ and may be entitled to 39 weeks of statutory adoption 
pay. If a couple jointly adopt a child, one may take ‘Adoption Leave’ and the 
other parent may be able to take ‘Paternity Leave’ or ‘Shared Parental Leave’. 

‘Adoption Leave’ rights now extend to surrogacy and "Foster to Adopt" 
situations.  
 
An employee who will become the legal parent of a child under a surrogacy 
agreement is entitled to take Statutory Adoption Pay (SAP) and Leave.  The 
eligibility criteria are the same with the exception of the qualifying service for 
Statutory Adoption Pay (SAP).  An employee (the primary carer) must have 26 
weeks continuous service with the Company by the week they were matched 
with a child. 
 
The provisions of this policy apply to employees adopting from overseas, the 
Government Website provides further information with regards to this. 

 
Employees who will become the legal parents of a child under a surrogacy 
arrangement are entitled to take statutory ‘Adoption Leave’. Local authority foster 

Page 90

https://www.gov.uk/adoption-pay-leave/eligibility


3 | P a g e   T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  
N o .  

 

parents who are also prospective adopters ("Foster to Adopt") are entitled to 
take ‘Adoption Leave’. 

 
 

Table of Contents 

  

1.     Time off for Adoption Appointments ......... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

2.     Adoption Leave Entitlements ..................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

3.     Adoption Pay Entitlements ..................................................................... 4 

4.     Annual Leave ............................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

5.     Employees on Fixed Term Contracts .................................................... 6 

6.     Pension Contributions ................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

7.     Salary Progression ..................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

8.     Continuity of Service .................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

9.     Communications ..................................................................................... 7 

10. `Keeping in Touch`(KIT) Days ................................................................. 7 

11. Returning to Work Following Adoption Leave ...................................... 8 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

1.Time off for Adoption Appointments 

 

1.1 An employee adopting a child alone is entitled to take paid time off to 
attend up to five adoption appointments. Where an employee is part of a 
couple jointly adopting a child, the couple can elect for one of them (primary 
adopter) to take paid time off to attend up to five adoption appointments. 
The other can elect to take unpaid time off to attend up to two adoption 
appointments. 

 
1.2 The purpose of the appointment is to enable the employee and their partner 

to have contact with the child (for example, to bond with them before the 
placement) and for any other purpose connected with the adoption, this 
may include meeting with professionals involved in the care of the child.  

 

Page 91



4 | P a g e   T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  
N o .  

 

1.3 The appointment must have been arranged by or at the request of the 
adoption agency and the time off must be taken before the date of the 
child's placement for adoption with the employee. 

 
1.4 Following the first appointment a People Manager may request to see 

evidence of an appointment confirming the employee’s intention to adopt.  
 
1.5 Employees should discuss time off with their People Manager and submit a 

request through First4HR. 
 

2. Adoption Leave Entitlements 

 

2.1     Adoption leave can start: 

up to 14 days before the date the child starts living with you (UK adoptions) 

when the child arrives in the UK or within 28 days of this date (overseas 

adoptions) the day the child’s born or the day after (if you’ve used a 

surrogate to have a child) 

 

2.2 An employee who is the primary carer of the child is, from day one of their 

employment, entitled to ‘Adoption Leave’.   

 

2.3 Employees are entitled to 26 weeks’ Ordinary Adoption Leave (OAL) 

followed by 26 weeks’ ‘Additional Adoption Leave’, giving a total of 52 

weeks’ continuous leave, the ‘Adoption Leave’ period starting either on the 

day the child is placed for adoption or up to 14 days earlier. 

 

2.4 During ‘Ordinary Adoption Leave’ and ‘Additional Adoption Leave’, all terms 

and conditions of the employee's contract, except normal pay, will be 

continued. 

‘Adoption Leave’ and pay are separate entitlements.  

 

2.5 Entitlement to ‘Adoption Pay’ will depend on the length of service of the 

employee and on whether or not the employee returns to work following the 

period of Adoption Leave.  

 

3.0 Adoption Pay Entitlements 

 

3.1 Eligibility for ‘Adoption Pay’ is dependent on the employee’s length of 
service.  Statutory Adoption Pay (SAP) is payable for 39 weeks.   

To qualify for Adoption pay, an employee must: 

➢ have 26 weeks continuous service by the week they are matched with the 
child; 

Page 92



5 | P a g e   T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  
N o .  

 

➢ earn at least the lower earnings limit for national insurance contributions in 
an 8 week period (relevant period); 

➢ provide the correct notice; 
➢ provide evidence of the adoption; 
➢ ensure the adoption agency is a recognised agency in the UK 
 
 
3.2 Ordinary and Additional ‘Adoption Leave’ must be taken in one block unless 

the employee  wishes to take ‘Shared Parental Leave’ details of this policy 
can be found on the HR A-Z on the HR & Payroll Services Portal 

3.3 Ideally, an employee should give 28 days’ notice before they wish to be paid 
Statutory Adoption Pay (SAP).   

        There is discretion to this timeframe whereby the time between the child 
being matched and placed is less than 28 days.  If an employee does not 
give the correct notification of their intention to take ‘Adoption Leave’ and to 
claim ‘Statutory Adoption Pay’ then the Council may delay the start of 
‘Adoption Leave’ and pay, until the correct notification is given.  

3.4 Where an employee is already a foster parent for a child and also a 
prospective adopter, (‘Foster to Adopt’) then they are entitled to take 
Ordinary Adoption Leave up to a maximum of 26 weeks. 

3.5 An employee who will become the legal parent of a child under a surrogacy 
agreement is entitled to take Statutory Adoption Pay (SAP) and Leave.  The 
eligibility criteria are the same with the exception of the qualifying service for 
Statutory Adoption Pay (SAP).  An employee (the primary carer) must have 
26 weeks continuous service with the Council by the 15th week before the 
baby is due. 

3.6 Situations where employees do not qualify for ‘Adoption Leave’ or pay are 
listed, but not restricted to: 

➢ Becoming a special guardian or kinship carer; 
➢ Adopting a stepchild; 
➢ Adopting a family member or stepchild;  
➢ Adopting privately (e.g. without permission from a UK authority or adoption 

agency). 
 

 

4. Annual Leave  

 

4.1 Employees that are on ‘Adoption Leave’ will continue to accrue ‘Annual Leave’ 
during a period of paid or unpaid ‘Adoption Leave’ however this does not 
include Bank Holidays, which are not accrued. 

Page 93



6 | P a g e   T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  
N o .  

 

4.2 Any ‘Annual Leave’ accrued before ‘Adoption Leave’ starts should be taken 
prior to commencing ‘Adoption Leave’ or immediately on return from 
‘Adoption Leave’ thereby effectively extending the employee’s actual 
physical return to work  

4.3 Any ‘Annual Leave’ accrued from a previous financial year whilst on 
‘Adoption Leave’ should be taken immediately on return from ‘Adoption 
Leave’ thereby effectively extending the employee’s actual physical return to 
work. 

4.4 Where it is agreed that an employee will return to work on reduced 
contractual hours, then the employee’s new reduced hours should not 
normally take effect until any ‘Annual leave’ accrued under the previous 
contractual hours has been taken.  

5. Employees on Fixed Term Contracts 

5.1 Where an employee has a fixed-term contract of employment that expires 
before the   start of ‘Adoption Leave’  then the employee will be able to claim 
‘Statutory Adoption  Pay’ from the Council subject to their eligibility. 

6. Pension Contributions 

6.1 Employees on ‘Adoption Leave’ who are in receipt of full pay will continue to 
have ‘Employee Pension Contributions’ deducted in the usual way. 

6.2 During periods of half pay or ‘Statutory Adoption Pay’, ‘Employee Pension 
Contributions’ will be deducted according to the total amount of pay received. 
The Council will make up the ‘Employee’s Pension Contributions’ and pay 
the ‘Employers’ Pension Contributions’ as if the employee were on full pay 
for the period. 

6.3 During periods of unpaid leave i.e.13 weeks unpaid ‘Adoption Leave’ the 
Council will only pay pension contributions if the employee does. 

7. Salary Progression 

7.1 Employees will continue to receive any contractual salary increases up to the 
top of their Grade whilst on ‘Adoption Leave’. 

8. Continuity of Service 

8.1 The contract of employment continues throughout any period of ‘Adoption 
Leave’. 

Page 94



7 | P a g e   T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  
N o .  

 

8.2 Continuity of service will not have been broken by a period of unpaid leave 
under the adoption entitlement, therefore entitlement to notice periods, 
holidays and absence related pay which were accrued at the beginning of 
‘Adoption Leave’ will not be lost. 

9.0 Communications 

 
9.1 It is recommended that employees and People Managers make arrangements 
to maintain reasonable contact during ‘Adoption Leave’ in order to keep the 
employee informed of important developments at work and to discuss plans for 
returning to work. 

9.2 People Managers should draw particular attention to any changes in structures 
within the department and ensure that the employee is aware of any possible 
promotion opportunities.  

9.3 Employees on ‘Adoption Leave’ should also ensure that they keep themselves 
informed as appropriate for example by regularly reviewing the Councils’ 
current vacancies on the website. 

10. Keeping in Touch`(KIT) Days 

 

10.1 Employees on ‘Adoption Leave’ can with the agreement of their People 
Manager work up to 10 days during their ‘Statutory Adoption Leave’ without 
bringing their ‘Adoption Leave’ to an end.   

10.2 ‘Keeping in Touch’ (KIT) days are designed to allow contact with the 
workplace and can include work, training or any other activity to assist the 
employee in ‘Keeping in Touch’.  ‘KIT’ days can be taken at any time during 
‘Adoption Leave. 

10.3 There is no obligation on either the Council or the employee to make use of 
these ‘KIT’ days and there is no obligation for an employee who is on 
‘Adoption Leave’ to attend work. 

10.4 ‘KIT’ day’s that are worked will not extend the total ‘Statutory Adoption Leave’ 
period that can be taken and do not affect an employee’s entitlement to 
‘Adoption Leave’ or pay. 

10.5 Employees should make arrangements for ‘KIT’ days directly with their 
People Manager and will be paid at their normal daily rate for each day 
worked.   

Page 95



8 | P a g e   T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  
N o .  

 

10.6 Employees who attend work for a ‘KIT’ day during ‘Adoption Leave’ will need 
to complete a ‘Keeping in Touch Claim Form’ which is available on the HR & 
Payroll Service Portal. 

10.7 Employees will be paid for the number of hours worked during the ‘KIT’ day 
and attendance at work will be counted as the use of one ‘KIT day’ even if 
only a few hours are worked. 

11. Returning to Work Following Adoption Leave 

 
11.1 Employees may exercise the right to return to work at any time during the 

period of ‘Adoption Leave.’ 

11.2 If an employee returns to work following a period of ordinary ‘Adoption Leave’ 
i.e. up to 26 weeks then they have the right to return to work and resume 
working in the same role. 

11.3 If an employee returns to work following a period of additional ‘Adoption 
Leave’ i.e. over 26 weeks, then the employee has a right to return to either 
the same job or, where this is not reasonable practicable, alternative 
employment shall be offered.  

11.4 The Council will consult with the employee where alternative employment is 
offered, and any offer of alternative employment should not be less favorable 
in respect of terms and conditions. 

11.5 If an employee wishes to return to work before the end of the maximum 
period of ‘Adoption Leave’ (52 weeks) then the employee must notify HR in 
writing giving at least 8 weeks’ notice of the date that they wish to return. If 
the employee fails to give the required notice, then the Council may postpone 
the return to work for up to 8 weeks. 

11.6 Employees have a statutory entitlement to request an alternative working 
pattern or a change in hours of work under the ‘Flexible Working Policy’. The 
Council has a duty to give reasonable consideration to such requests but 
reserves the right to refuse on business grounds.  

➢ The Council will give appropriate consideration to such requests, on either a 
temporary or permanent basis, from employees returning to work following 
‘Adoption Leave’.  

 
➢ Applications for flexible working must be made as early as possible but not 

later than 8 weeks before the notified date of return to work. Further guidance 
on submitting an application for flexible working can be found in the ‘Flexible 
Working Policy’ which is available on the HR A-Z. 

 
 

Page 96

http://www.bristol.ac.uk/hr/policies/flexwork.html


9 | P a g e   T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  
N o .  

 

11.7 The latest an employee can return to work is 52 weeks after the week they 
left to go on ‘Adoption Leave’ unless: 

➢ The employee is not well enough to return to work; if this is the case then the 
employee should follow the guidance set out in the ‘Managing Sickness 
Absence Policy’ 
 

➢ The employee requests to take time off under the ‘Parental Leave Policy’, if 
they are eligible to do so. 

 
11.8 If an employee chooses not to return to work at the end of ‘Adoption Leave’ 

then they should give the minimum written notice as specified in their contract 
of employment.  

12. .  Tax and National Insurance  
 
12.1 Statutory adoption pay is treated as earnings and is therefore subject to 
PAYE and national insurance deductions. 

 
 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Maternity Policy 

and Procedure 

The Council is fully committed to helping working parents balance the needs of 

work and family life, and appreciates the importance of providing greater choice 

for parents in how they arrange parental care during the first year of a child's life.  

This policy sets out the rights, responsibilities, and eligibility for employees who 

wish to take Maternity Leave 

We recognise that, from time to time, employees may have questions or 

concerns relating to their rights. It is our policy to encourage open discussion with 

employees to ensure that questions and problems can be resolved as quickly as 

possible. As these provisions are complex, employees should clarify the relevant 

procedures with their People Manager or the HR Team to ensure that they are 

followed. 

It ensures compliance with equality & diversity, making sure consideration is 
given to the needs of employees, balancing these with the needs of the 
business of the Council. 
 

Policy Title 
 

Maternity Policy and Procedure  

Policy Author HR Team - PSPS Limited 

Policy Issue date  December 2022 

Policy Review date  December 2026, or earlier if required. 

Policy Consultation  Trade Unions recognised by the 
Council 
Council Reader Panel 
Senior Leadership Team  

Policy Sign-off Head of Paid Service / SHDC Council 
 

Logo here 

Page 99



2 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

Maternity Policy and Procedure 
Introduction 

The Council is committed to helping employees balance the needs of work and family life 

and as such offers enhanced ‘Maternity Leave’ benefits.  

In addition to this ‘Maternity Policy and Procedure’, the Council supports a suite of ‘Family 

Friendly’ policies aimed at supporting employees to achieve work/life balance and meet the 

demands faced with family life. 

Scope 

The Council is committed to ensuring equality and diversity across the organisation and the 

purpose of this ‘Maternity Policy and Procedure’ is to provide an opportunity for our 

employees to integrate the development of a carer with family responsibilities.  

This document sets out the maternity provisions to which employees are entitled, both 

before and after the birth of their baby. These maternity provisions comply with the relevant 

legislation and apply to all eligible employees employed by the Council. 

This Maternity Policy and Procedure’ does not cover: 

• Paternity Leave  

• Adoption Leave  

• Shared Parental Leave  

• Parental Leave  

• Time off Work 

 

Key Points 

Maternity provisions refer to the leave and pay to which employees may be entitled, and 

their right to resume employment with the Council, following the period of leave. All 

employees have the right not to be subjected to a detriment on the grounds of pregnancy, 

childbirth or maternity, irrespective of hours of work or service and have the right to demand 

a written statement of the reasons for dismissal, if dismissed while pregnant. There is no 

distinction between live and still births in the granting of ‘Maternity Leave’ 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 100



3 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

Contents 
1. Time off for Antenatal Care ........................................................................... 4 

2. Protection from Exposure to Risk for Expectant & Breastfeeding Mothers 4 

3. Maternity Leave Entitlements ....................................................................... 5 

4 Maternity Pay Entitlements ........................................................................... 5 

5 Absence due to Sickness ............................................................................. 8 

6 Annual Leave ................................................................................................. 8 

7 Employees on Fixed Term Contracts........................................................... 8 

8 Pension Contributions .................................................................................. 9 

9 Salary Progression ........................................................................................ 9 

10 Continuity of Service ..................................................................................... 9 

11 Communications ........................................................................................... 9 

12 ‘Keeping in Touch’ (KIT) Days .................................................................... 10 

13 Returning to Work Following Maternity Leave .......................................... 10 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



4 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

1. Time off for Antenatal Care 

 

1.1 All pregnant employees irrespective of length of service have a statutory right to 

reasonable paid time off work to attend appointments for antenatal care prescribed 

by a doctor, midwife or health visitor.  

1.2  Employees should discuss time off with their People Manager and submit a request 

through First4HR.  

1.3  Following the first appointment a People Manager may request to see evidence of an 

appointment or a certificate from your doctor or midwife confirming that you are 

pregnant. 

1.4 Fathers, partners and parents-to-be are also afforded the right to unpaid time off 

work to attend up to two ante-natal appointments. They must provide their manger 

with as much notice as possible but at least one weeks notice of the appointment 

and the Council reserves the right to see sight of the appointment card. 

 

2. Protection from Exposure to Risk for Expectant & Breastfeeding Mothers 

2.1 The Council has a duty to take care of the health and safety of all employees and it is 

committed to ensuring that their wellbeing is maintained and considered throughout 

all aspects of their role. 

2.2 The employee should arrange to review work activities in consultation with their People 
Manager immediately upon becoming aware of the pregnancy by completing the 
‘Expectant & Breastfeeding Mothers’ risk assessment with their People Manager which 
is available on the PSPS Health & Safety Portal. 

2.3 Where this may present personal difficulty, the employee is urged to discuss the matter 
with the Health and Safety Department and their GP at the earliest opportunity.  

2.4 The outcome of the risk assessment may indicate an adjustment in work activities to 
remove the hazard for the period of pregnancy and breastfeeding. Where this is not 
possible for operational reasons, then the employee will need to be found alternative 
duties of an appropriate nature.  

2.5 If it is not feasible to find alternative duties of an appropriate nature then the employee 
may be suspended from work on paid leave for as long as necessary to protect their 
Health and Safety, and/or that of the child. 

 

 

Page 102



5 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

3. Maternity Leave Entitlements 

 
3.1 All expectant mothers are entitled to 26 weeks’ ordinary Maternity Leave followed by 

26 weeks’ additional Maternity Leave, giving a total of 52 weeks’ continuous leave, the 
‘Maternity Leave period’.  

3.2 The ‘Maternity Leave Period’ shall commence no earlier than 11 weeks before the 
‘Expected Week of Childbirth’ (EWC) or if the baby arrives earlier maternity leave will 
automatically start on the day after the birth. 

3.3 It is up to the employee to decide how much of the 52 weeks’ ‘Maternity Leave’ they 
wish to take; the law requires that a minimum of two weeks’ leave must be taken from 
the date of childbirth. 

3.4 If the employee is still working and the baby is born prematurely ‘Maternity Leave’ will 
start from the day immediately after the date of the birth of the baby.   

3.5 After the compulsory 2 week ‘Maternity Leave’ period that follows the birth of the baby 
the remaining leave may, subject to the eligible criteria, be transferred or shared under 
the provision of ‘Shared Parental Leave’. 

3.6 If the baby is stillborn after the twenty fourth week of pregnancy, or if the baby is born 
alive but dies after birth, the mother still qualifies for their right to a 52 week ‘Maternity 
Leave Period’. 

3.7 Maternity Leave and pay are separate entitlements.  
 

3.8 Entitlement to ‘Maternity Pay’ will depend on the length of service of the employee and 
on whether or not the employee returns to work following the period of Maternity 
Leave.  
 

 

4 Maternity Pay Entitlements 

 
4.1 All employees seeking ‘Occupational Maternity Pay’ (OMP) or ‘Statutory Maternity 

Pay’ (SMP) must provide the Council with a MATB1 (Maternity Certificate) as soon as 
possible during the pregnancy.   

 
4.2 The MATB1 is issued by a doctor or midwife no sooner than the 20th week before the 

baby is due. 
 
4.3 The Employee may choose when to start their ‘Maternity Leave’. However, the earliest 

date an employee can start ‘Maternity Leave’ and retain their rights is at the 11th week 
before the Expected Week of Childbirth (EWC).   

 
4.4 If an employee wishes to change the start date of their ‘Maternity Leave’ then they 

must give 28 days’ notice, where practicable. 

Page 103



6 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

 

 

Statutory Maternity Pay (SMP) 

 
4.5 If an employee falls pregnant after their first week of employment with the Council but 

before their 27th week of employment, then they may qualify for Statutory 
Maternity Pay (SMP).    

 

4.6 To qualify for Statutory Maternity Pay (SMP) the employee must have been: 
 

➢ Employed by the Council continuously for at least 26 weeks into the 15th week 
before the Expected Week of Childbirth (EWC) 
 

➢ Have average earnings above the Lower Earnings Limit (LEL) for the 8 week 
“relevant” period between weeks 17- 25 of the pregnancy.   The LEL is the amount 
you have to earn before you are treated as paying National Insurance 
contributions.   
 

4.7 If an employee satisfies the above criteria, then they will be eligible to: 
 

➢ 39 weeks statutory paid Maternity Leave and  
➢ Followed by 13 weeks unpaid Maternity Leave   

 
4.8 Employees who qualify for Statutory Maternity Pay will receive: 

 
➢ 90% of their average weekly earnings (before tax) for the first 6 weeks 
➢ Followed by 33 weeks paid at the Government SMP Rate or 90% of their average 

weekly earnings (whichever is lower) 
➢ Followed by 13 weeks unpaid Maternity Leave   

 
4.9 To secure these rights the employee must complete the ‘Notification of Maternity’ 

form which is available on the HR & Payroll Service Portal by the end of the 15th 
week before the Expected Week of Childbirth. 

 

Occupational Maternity Pay (OMP) 

 
4.10 To qualify for Occupational Maternity Pay (SMP) the employee must have been: 
 

➢ Employed by the Council continuously for at least 52 weeks into the 11th week 
before the Expected Week of Childbirth (EWC) 
 

➢ Have average earnings above the LEL (Lower Earnings Limit) for the 8 week 
“relevant” period between weeks 17- 25 of the pregnancy.   The LEL is the amount 
you have to earn before you are treated as paying National Insurance 
contributions.   

 

Page 104

https://www.gov.uk/maternity-pay-leave/pay


7 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

4.11 If an employee satisfies the above criteria then they will be eligible to full pay for the 
first 6 weeks of ‘Occupational Maternity Leave’ and an additional 12 weeks half pay 
in addition to ‘Statutory Maternity Pay’. 

 

4.12 Employees who qualify for ‘Occupational Maternity Pay’ will receive: 
 

➢ 100% of their average weekly earnings (before tax) for the first 6 weeks 
➢ Followed by 12 weeks paid at 50% of their average weekly earnings (before tax) in 

addition to the Government SMP Rate 
➢ Followed by 21 weeks paid at the Government SMP Rate or 90% of their average 

weekly earnings (whichever is lower) 
➢ Followed by 13 weeks unpaid Maternity Leave   

 
4.13 Payments made by the Council during ‘Maternity Leave’ under 4.12 above shall be 

made on the understanding that the employee will return to employment with the 
Council for a period of at least three months following a period of ‘Maternity Leave’. 

 
4.14 Should the employee not return to work for a period of three months following a 

period of ‘Maternity Leave’ then the Council may request that the employee repay 
the ‘Occupational Maternity Pay’ under 4.12. Payments made under ‘Statutory 
Maternity Pay’ are not repayable.  

 
4.15 Employees can choose to hold this payment in abeyance should they be undecided 

about a return to work at the cessation of their maternity leave. Holding the payment 
in abeyance simply means, not receiving this payment until the employee returns to 
work after their period of maternity leave. However, if the employee decides to take 
their Occupational Maternity Pay under 4.12 during their maternity leave and does 
not return to work at the end of this period of leave for a minimum of three months, 
they will be required to repay their Occupational Maternity Pay. 

 
4.16 To secure these rights the employee must complete the ‘Notification of Maternity’ 

form on the HR & Payroll Service Portal by the end of the 15th week before the 
Expected Week of Childbirth (EWC). 

 

Maternity Allowance 

 
4.17 Employees who have less than 26 weeks’ continuous service within the Council into 

the 15th week before the baby is due will not be entitled to ‘Occupational Maternity 
Pay’ or ‘Statutory Maternity Pay’, but may be entitled to state ‘Maternity Allowance’. 

 
4.18 ‘Maternity Allowance’ can be claimed via the employees local JobCentre Plus and 

further guidance can be found on the Government Website. 
 

 

 

 

Page 105

https://www.gov.uk/maternity-pay-leave/pay
https://www.gov.uk/maternity-pay-leave/pay
https://www.gov.uk/maternity-allowance


8 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

5 Absence due to Sickness 
 

5.1 Should you be absence from work for a pregnancy-related illness in the 4 weeks 

before the baby is due Maternity leave and Statutory Maternity Pay will start 

automatically. 

 

6 Annual Leave 

 
6.1 The Council’s ‘Annual Leave’ year runs from 1st April to 31st March. 
 
6.2 Employees that are on ‘Maternity Leave’ will continue to accrue ‘Annual Leave’ and 

Bank Holiday entitlement during a period of paid or unpaid ‘Maternity Leave’. 
 
6.3 It is not possible to take ‘Annual Leave’ whilst on ‘Maternity Leave’ therefore this 

must be taken at any alternative date as detailed below. 
 
6.4 Any ‘Annual Leave’ accrued before ‘Maternity Leave’ starts should be taken prior to 

commencing ‘Maternity Leave’ or immediately on return from ‘Maternity Leave’ 
thereby effectively extending the employee’s actual physical return to work. 

 
6.5 Any ‘Annual Leave’ accrued whilst on ‘Maternity Leave’ should be taken 

immediately on return from ‘Maternity Leave’ thereby effectively extending the 
employee’s actual physical return to work. 

 
6.6 Where it is agreed that an employee will return to work on reduced contractual 

hours, then the employee’s new reduced hours should not normally take effect until 
any ‘Annual leave’ accrued under the previous contractual hours has been taken.  

 

 

7 Employees on Fixed Term Contracts 

 
7.1 Where an employee has a fixed-term contract of employment which expires before 

the start of ‘Maternity Leave’ then the employee will be able to claim ‘Statutory 
Maternity Pay’ from the Council subject to their eligibility. 

7.2 Where an employees fixed-term contract of employment expires during the 
‘Occupational Maternity Pay’ period or prior to the completion of their 3 months’ 
return to work will be unable to fulfil the usual ‘Occupational Maternity Pay’ 
requirements to return to work following maternity leave and remain in work for at 
least 3 months.   

7.3 However, so long as all the other eligibility criteria are met, such employees will be 
able to claim ‘Occupational Maternity Pay’ up to the last day of their contract of 
employment.  Thereafter ‘Statutory Maternity Pay’ can be claimed subject to 
eligibility. 

Page 106



9 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

7.4 Where an employee’s fixed-term contract expires after the ‘Occupational Maternity 
Pay’ period but during the statutory pay period, such employees will continue to be 
paid ‘Statutory Maternity Pay’ subject to eligibility. 

8 Pension Contributions 

 
8.1 Employees on ‘Maternity Leave’ who are in receipt of full pay will continue to have 

‘Employee Pension Contributions’ deducted in the usual way. 
 
8.2 During periods of half pay or ‘Statutory Maternity Pay’, ‘Employee Pension 

Contributions’ will be deducted according to the total amount of pay received. The 
Council will make up the ‘Employee’s Pension Contributions’ and pay the 
‘Employers’ Pension Contributions’ as if the employee were on full pay for the 
period.  

 
8.3 During periods of unpaid leave i.e. 13 weeks unpaid ‘Maternity Leave’ the Council 

will only pay pension contributions if the employee does. 
 
 

9 Salary Progression 

 
9.1 Employees will continue to receive spinal point increases up to the top of their 

Grade whilst on ‘Maternity Leave’. 
 

10 Continuity of Service 

 
10.1 The contract of employment continues throughout any period of ‘Maternity Leave’. 
 
10.2 Continuity of service will not have been broken by a period of unpaid leave under 

the maternity provision, therefore entitlement to notice periods, holidays and sick 
leave which were accrued at the beginning of ‘Maternity Leave’ will not be lost. 

 

11 Communications 

 
11.1 It is recommended that employees and People Managers make arrangements to 

maintain reasonable contact during ‘Maternity Leave’ in order to keep the employee 
informed of important developments at work and to discuss plans for returning to 
work. 

 
11.2 People Managers should draw particular attention to any changes in structures 

within the department and ensure that the employee is aware of any possible 
promotion opportunities.  

 
11.3 Employees on ‘Maternity Leave’ should also ensure that they keep themselves 

informed as appropriate for example by regularly reviewing the Council’s current 
vacancies on the website. 

 
 

Page 107



10 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

 

12 ‘Keeping in Touch’ (KIT) Days 

 

12.1 Employees on ‘Maternity Leave’ can with the agreement of their People Manager 
work up to 10 days during their ‘Statutory Maternity Leave’ without bringing their 
‘Maternity Leave’ to an end.   

 
12.2 ‘Keeping in Touch’ (KIT) days are designed to allow contact with the workplace and 

can include work, training or any other activity to assist the employee in ‘Keeping in 
Touch’.  ‘KIT’ days can be taken at any time during ‘Maternity Leave’, however the 
2 weeks immediately following the birth of the baby are excluded. 

 
12.3 There is no obligation on either the Council or the employee to make use of these 

‘KIT’ days and there is no obligation for an employee who is on ‘Maternity Leave’ to 
attend work. 

 
12.4 ‘KIT’ day’s that are worked will not extend the total ‘Statutory Maternity Leave’ period 

that can be taken and do not affect an employee’s entitlement to ‘Maternity Leave’ 
or pay.   

 
12.5 Employees should make arrangements for ‘KIT’ days directly with their People 

Manager and will be paid at their normal daily rate for each day worked.   
 
12.6 Employees who attend work for a ‘KIT’ day during ‘Maternity Leave’ will need to 

complete a ‘Keeping in Touch Claim Form’ which is available on the HR & Payroll 
Service Portal. 

 
12.7 Employees will be paid for the number of hours worked during the ‘KIT’ day and 

attendance at work will counted as the use of one ‘KIT day’ even if only a few hours 
are worked. 

 

13 Returning to Work Following Maternity Leave 
 

13.1 Employees may exercise the right to return to work at any time during the period of 
‘Maternity Leave’, except in the 2 weeks immediately following the birth of the baby. 

 
13.2 If an employee returns to work following a period of ordinary ‘Maternity Leave’ i.e. 

up to 26 weeks, then they have the right to return to work and resume working in 
the same role. 

 
13.3 If an employee returns to work following a period of additional ‘Maternity Leave’ i.e. 

over 26 weeks, then the employee has a right to return to either the same job or, 
where this is not reasonably practicable, alternative employment shall be offered.  

 

13.4 The Council will consult with the employee where alternative employment is offered, 
and any offer of alternative employment should not be less favourable in respect of 
terms and conditions. 

 

Page 108



11 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

13.5 If an employee wishes to return to work before the end of the maximum period of 
‘Maternity Leave’ (52 weeks) then the employee must notify HR in writing giving at 
least 8 weeks’ notice of the date that they wish to return. If the employee fails to 
give the required notice, then the Council may postpone the return to work for up to 
8 weeks. 

 
13.6 Employees have a statutory entitlement to request an alternative working pattern or 

a change in hours of work under the ‘Flexible Working Policy’. The Council has a 
duty to give reasonable consideration to such requests but reserves the right to 
refuse on business grounds.  

 

13.7 The Council will give appropriate consideration to such requests, on either a 
temporary or permanent basis, from employees returning to work following 
‘Maternity Leave’.  

 

13.8 Applications for flexible working must be made as early as possible but not later 
than 8 weeks before the notified date of return to work. Further guidance on 
submitting an application for flexible working can be found in the ‘Flexible Working 
Policy’ which is available on the HR A-Z. 

 
13.9 The latest an employee can return to work is 52 weeks after the week they left 

to go on ‘Maternity Leave’ unless: 
 

➢ The employee is not well enough to return to work; if this is the case then the 
employee should follow the guidance set out in the Council’s ‘Managing 
Sickness Absence Policy’. 
 

➢ The employees return is delayed due to a statutory requirement prohibiting them 
from working in order to protect the health of the employee or that of their baby 
i.e. if there was a risk to the employee in the workplace that could affect them 
breastfeeding their baby. 
 

➢ The employee chooses to take time off under the ‘Parental Leave Policy’, if they 
are eligible to do so. 

 
13.10 If an employee chooses not to return to work at the end of ‘Maternity Leave’ then 

they should give the minimum written notice as specified in their contract of 
employment.  
 

13.11 If the employee has taken the ‘Occupational Maternity Pay’, then this element will 
be reclaimed by the payroll team in the final salary. Payments made under 
‘Statutory Maternity Pay’ are not repayable. 

 

13.12 If there are not sufficient funds in the final salary to cover the over payment, then 
an overpayment letter will be sent to the employee’s home address detailing how 
to repay the overpayment. 

 

Page 109

http://www.bristol.ac.uk/hr/policies/flexwork.html


12 | P a g e  T e m p l a t e  P o l i c y  D a t e  V e r s i o n  N o .  
 

13.13 The contract of employment may be terminated if the employee fails to return 
to work and/or does not make contact with the People Manager to provide an 
adequate explanation. 

 
  

 

Page 110



1 | P a g e  2 0 2 2  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Paternity Policy 

 
 
Policy Title 
 

Paternity Policy  

Policy Author HR Team - PSPS Limited 

Policy Issue date  December 2022 

Policy Review date  December 2026, or earlier if required 

Policy Consultation  Trade Unions recognised by the Council 
Council Reader Panel 
Senior Leadership Team 

Policy Sign-off Head of Paid Service / SHDC Council  

 

Logo here 

Page 111



2 | P a g e  2 0 2 2  
 

Introduction 

 
The Council is committed to supporting employees balance the needs of work and family life 
and in doing so offers enhanced ‘Paternity Leave’ benefits. 
 
In addition to this ‘Paternity Leave Policy’ the Council provides a suite of ‘Family Friendly’ 
policies aimed at supporting employees to achieve work/life balance. 
 
The Council’s Family Friendly Polices include: 
 

➢ Maternity Leave Policy 
➢ Adoption Leave Policy 
➢ Shared Parental Leave Policy 
➢ Parental Leave Policy 
➢ Time off Work Policy 
➢ Annual Leave Policy 
➢ Flexible Working Policy 
➢ Agile Working Policy 

Scope 

 
The Council is committed to ensuring equality and diversity across the organisation 
and the purpose of this ‘Paternity Leave Policy’ is to provide an opportunity for our 
employees to integrate the development of a career with family responsibilities. 

This document sets out the paternity provisions to which employees are entitled, both 
before and after the birth of their baby. These paternity provisions comply with the 
relevant legislation and apply to all eligible employees employed by the Council. 

Key Points 

 
Paternity provisions refer to the leave and pay to which employees are entitled to under 
the statutory provision, and their right to resume employment with the Council, following the 
period of ‘Paternity Leave’.  

Employees are entitled to take ‘Statutory Paternity Leave’ as either one or two consecutive 
paid weeks off from work following the birth of their baby or adoption of a child.  

This benefit applies to employees with new parenting responsibility for bringing up a child, who 
may be the biological father, or married to, or the partner of the primary carer (normally the 
mother but may be an adoptive parent). 

A partner is someone who lives with the mother or adoptive parent in an enduring family 
relationship but is not an immediate relative and may include a partner in a same sex 
relationship. 

 

 

Page 112



3 | P a g e  2 0 2 2  
 

Contents 
1. Criteria ......................................................................................................... 3 

2. Time off for Antenatal Appointments ........................................................ 4 

3. Paternity Leave and Pay Entitlements ...................................................... 4 

4. Notification of Paternity Leave ................................................................... 5 

5. Annual Leave ............................................................................................... 6 

6. Continuity of Service .................................................................................. 6 

 

1. Criteria 
 

1.1 A new father, partner or a new adoptive parent who is not taking ‘Maternity Leave’ or 
‘Adoption Leave’ will be entitled to ‘Paternity Leave’ subject to the following: 

 

➢ The leave must be taken for the specific purpose of caring for a newborn child or 
supporting the mother, or  

➢ For the purpose of caring for a child newly placed for adoption and supporting the 
adoptive parent. 
 

1.2 ‘Paternity Leave’ is provided in addition to an employee's normal annual holiday 
entitlement. If the baby is born early, paternity leave must be taken from the time of the 
birth but within 56 days of the actual date of childbirth.  
 

1.3 ‘Paternity Leave’ can start either from the date the child is born or placed for adoption or 
from a chosen number of days or weeks after that date. 
 

1.4 ‘Paternity Leave’ is available to employees who: 

➢ have or expect to have responsibility for the child's upbringing 
➢ are the biological father of the child, the mother's husband or partner; including 

same sex relationships or the partner of the primary adopter 
➢ have worked continuously for the Council for 26 weeks ending with the 15th week 

before the baby is due, or the end of the week in which the child's adopter is notified 
of being matched with the child (UK Adoption), or the date the child enters the UK 
(Overseas Adoptions). 

1.5 There is no distinction between live and still births in the granting of ‘Paternity Leave’. 

 

 

 

Page 113



4 | P a g e  2 0 2 2  
 

2. Time off for Antenatal Appointments 
 

2.1 Fathers and partners including same sex couples of a pregnant woman are entitled to 
unpaid time off work to attend up to two antenatal appointments. 
 

2.2 Employees should discuss time off with their People Manager and submit a request 
through First4HR. 

 
Following the first appointment a People Manager may request to see evidence of an 
appointment. 
 

2.3 It is expected that time off work to attend antenatal appointments should not exceed half 
a day per appointment. Should an employee require additional time off work then they 
should discuss this with their People Manager and refer to the companies ‘Time off Work 
Policy’ 
 

2.4 The right to two unpaid antenatal appointments also includes employees who will become 
parents through a surrogacy arrangement if they expect to satisfy the conditions for, and 
intend to apply for, a Parental Order. 
 

2.5 Please refer to the company ‘Maternity Policy’ for further information in relation to 
‘Maternity Leave’ 

 

3. Paternity Leave and Pay Entitlements 

 
3.1 All employees seeking to take Paternity Leave and receive Paternity Pay must provide the 

Council with a copy of the MATB1 (Maternity Certificate) as soon as possible during the 
pregnancy.   
 

3.2 The MATB1 is issued by a doctor or midwife to the pregnant woman no sooner than the 
20th week before the baby is due. 

 

Statutory Paternity Leave (SPL) and Statutory Paternity Pay (SPP) 

 

3.3 To qualify for Statutory Paternity Leave (SPL) and Statutory Paternity Pay (SPP) the 
employee must have been: 
 

➢ Employed by the Council continuously for at least 26 weeks into the 15th week 
before the Expected Week of Childbirth (EWC) 

➢ To receive SPP, have average earnings above the LEL (Lower Earnings Limit) 
for the 8 week “relevant” period between weeks 15 – 23 week of the pregnancy.   
The LEL is the amount you have to earn before you are treated as paying National 
Insurance contributions.   

 

3.4 Employees who qualify for Statutory Paternity Leave (SPL) and/or Statutory Paternity Pay 
(SPP) will receive: 
 

➢ Up to 2 weeks leave. 
➢ Up to 2 weeks of paid SPP for those who qualify. 
➢ SPP is paid at the government set SPP weekly rate or 90% of an employee’s  

average weekly earnings (whichever is lower).  
➢ The number of weeks taken is decided by the employee. 

Page 114

https://www.gov.uk/paternity-pay-leave/pay
https://www.gov.uk/paternity-pay-leave/pay


5 | P a g e  2 0 2 2  
 

➢ An employee must take the ‘Statutory Paternity Leave’ in full weeks, and no single 
days.  

➢ A week is the same amount of days that the employee would normally work - for 
example, a week is 2 days if an employee only works on a Monday and Tuesday. 

 

3.5 Employees get the same amount of ‘Statutory Paternity Leave’ regardless of multiple birth 
such as twins or triplets. 
 

3.6 Employees may request to take a single block of one or two weeks.  However, leave must 
be taken by the 56th day after the birth / adoption or 56 days after the date the baby is 
due, whichever is later. 

 

3.7 (ELDC & SHDC Employees only).The Council also provides the option of paying one 
week’s Occupational Paternity Pay, which is the equivalent of one week’s full pay, to those 
employees who have been employed for 1 year at the beginning of the 11th week before 
the Expected Week of Childbirth (this date can be found on the employee’s partner’s 
MATB1 form). Employees whose average weekly earnings are below that of the lower 
earnings limit for national insurance contributions will not be eligible for SPP. 
 

4. Notification of Paternity Leave 
 

4.1 To secure these rights the employee must complete the ‘Notification of Paternity’ form 
which is available on the HR & Payroll Service Portal by the end of the 15th week before 
the Expected Week of Childbirth (EWC). 
 

4.2 Where an employee wishes to request ‘Paternity Leave’ then they must complete Form 
HMC SC3 which available on the HR A-Z. 
 

4.3 Employees should give their People Manager 15 weeks' written notice of the date on which 
their partner's baby is due, the length of ‘Paternity Leave’ they wish to take and the date 
on which they wish the leave to commence.  
 

4.4 In the case of an adopted child, the employee must give written notice of their intention to 
take ‘Paternity Leave’ no later than seven days after the date on which notification of the 
match with the child was given by the adoption agency.  
 
The notice must specify the date the child is expected to be placed for adoption, the date 
the employee intends to start ‘Paternity Leave’ and the length of the intended paternity 
leave period and the date on which the adopter was notified of having been matched with 
the child. 
   

4.5 If an employee subsequently wishes to change the timing of requested ‘Paternity Leave’ 
then they must provide 28 days' written notice of the new dates. Flexibility will be exercised 
in regards to notice requirements in regards to earlier arrivals where partners are seeking 
time off immediately after the birth. 

 

 

Page 115



6 | P a g e  2 0 2 2  
 

5. Annual Leave 
 

5.1 The Council’s ‘Annual Leave’ year runs from 1st April to 31st March. 
 

5.2 Employees that are on ‘Paternity Leave’ will continue to accrue ‘Annual Leave’ and Bank 
Holidays. 
 

5.3 It is not possible to take ‘Annual Leave’ whilst on ‘Paternity Leave’ therefore this must be 
taken at an alternative date. 

 

5.4 Should an employee wish to take Annual Leave following a period of Paternity Leave then 
they should discuss this with their People Manger prior to seeking approval through the 
First4HR system. 

 

 

6. Continuity of Service 
 

6.1 The contract of employment continues throughout any period of ‘Paternity Leave’. 
 
7. Additional Entitlements 

 
An employee may also be entitled to take Shared Parental Leave in addition to 
the 2 weeks Paternity Leave. Please see the Shared Parental Leave Policy for 
more information and to see how to apply. 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 116



1 | P a g e   M a y  2 0 2 2  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Shared Parental 
Leave Policy 
 

 

Policy Title 
 

Shared Parental Leave Policy  

Policy Author HR Team - PSPS Limited 

Policy Issue date  December 2022 

Policy Review date  December 2026, or earlier if required 

Policy Consultation  Trade Unions recognised by the 
Council 
Council Reader Panel 
Senior Leadership Team 

Policy Sign-off Head of Paid Service / SHDC Council  
  

Logo here 

Page 117



2 | P a g e   M a y  2 0 2 2  
 

Shared Parental Leave Policy 
 

Introduction 

Shared Parental Leave can give parents more flexibility in how they share the care of their 
child in the first year following birth or adoption. 

Shared Parental Leave (ShPL) enables eligible mothers, fathers, partners and adopters to 
choose how to share time off work after their child is born or placed for adoption. This could 
involve returning to work for part of the time and then resuming leave at a later date. 
 

Scope 

 
This policy applies to eligible mothers, fathers, partners and adopters who meet the current 
minimum legislation criteria and are employed by the Council. 

All eligible parents have a statutory right to take Shared Parental Leave (ShPL) if they or their 
partner chooses to end their maternity or adoption leave at any point after the initial 2 week 
compulsory maternity/adoption leave period, following the birth or adoption of a child.  The 
remaining leave will be available as Shared Parental leave (ShPL).  

Key Points 

 
 
Eligible parents can share up to 50 weeks of leave and up to 37 weeks of pay and 
choose to take the leave and pay in a more flexible way, each parent can take up to 
3 blocks of leave, interspersed with periods of work. 
 
 
For example:   A mother takes 20 weeks` ‘Maternity Leave’ and receives 20 weeks` 
‘Maternity Pay’:       
  

 Leave: 50 weeks` less 20 weeks = 30 weeks of ‘Shared Parental Leave’ 
available     

 
 Pay:    39 weeks` less 20 weeks = 19 weeks of ‘Shared Parental Pay’ 

available 

Eligible parents can be off work together or alternatively, stagger their leave and pay 
so that one of them is always at home with their baby in the first year. 

 

This policy should be read in conjunction with:  

 

➢ Maternity Leave Policy  

➢ Paternity Leave Policy 

➢ Adoption Leave Policy 

➢ Parental Leave Policy  

Page 118



3 | P a g e   M a y  2 0 2 2  
 

➢ Time Off Work Policy 

➢ Flexible Working Policy 

➢ Agile Working Policy 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 119



4 | P a g e   M a y  2 0 2 2  
 

Contents 

 

1. Who Can Apply for Shared Parental Leave (ShPL) ..................................... 4 

2. Amount of Shared Parental Leave (ShPL) ................................................... 5 

3. Ending Maternity Leave or Adoption Leave and Opting into Shared 

Parental Leave ................................................................................................... 5 

4. Evidence of Entitlement ................................................................................ 6 

5. How to Apply for ShPL and Shared Parental Pay ....................................... 6 

6. Split Periods of ShPL .................................................................................... 6 

7. Cancelling or Changing the Date of ShPL ................................................... 7 

8. Shared Parental Pay (ShPP) ......................................................................... 7 

9. Returning to Work ......................................................................................... 7 

10. Shared Parental Leave in Touch Days (SPLIT) ......................................... 8 

11. Annual Leave Whilst on ShPL .................................................................... 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Who Can Apply for Shared Parental Leave (ShPL)  

 
1.1 To qualify for ShPL an employee must, be a primary or secondary carer/adopter 

for the child. 
 

1.2 Must have at least 26 weeks continuous employment with the Council by the end 
of the Qualifying Week or on the date of the adoption placement, and still be 
employed by the Council in the week before the leave is to be taken.  
 

1.3 An employee’s partner must have worked (in an employed or self-employed 
capacity) in at least 26 of the 66 weeks before the Expected Week of Childbirth 
(EWC) or the date of the adoption and have had average weekly earnings of at 
least £30 during 13 of those weeks. 
 

1.4 You and your partner (the other parent) must give the necessary statutory notices 
and declarations as summarised below, including notice to end any ‘Maternity 
Leave’, ‘Adoption Leave’, ‘Statutory Maternity Pay’ (SMP) or ‘Statutory Adoption 
Pay’ (SAP) or ‘Maternity Allowance’ (MA) periods. 

 

Page 120



5 | P a g e   M a y  2 0 2 2  
 

2. Amount of Shared Parental Leave (ShPL) 

 

2.1 The minimum amount of SPL is one week; the maximum amount of SPL as 
previously illustrated is 50 weeks.   
 

2.2 The first two weeks of ‘Maternity Leave’ or ‘Adoption Leave’ cannot be shared. 
 

2.3 ShPL must be taken in whole complete weeks. 
 
2.4 If you are the child's secondary carer, you should consider using your two weeks' 

‘Paternity Leave’ and Company Paternity Leave if you are eligible before taking 
ShPL.  

 
2.5 Once you start ShPL you will lose any untaken ‘Paternity Leave’ entitlement.  
 
2.6 ShPL entitlement is in addition to your ‘Paternity Leave’ entitlement. 
 

3. Ending Maternity Leave or Adoption Leave and Opting into Shared Parental 

Leave 

 
3.1 If you are the child's mother and are still on ‘Maternity Leave’ then you must give 

the Council at least eight weeks' written notice (a “curtailment notice”) to end your 
‘Maternity Leave’ before your partner can take ShPL.   
 
You should do this by completing the Application for Shared Parental Leave Form 
which is available on the HR & Payroll Services Portal. 
 

3.2 The other parent, your partner may commence ShPL from their employer before 
your ‘Maternity Leave’ ends, provided you have given the curtailment notice and 
submitted the Application for Shared Parental Leave.  
 

3.3 The curtailment notice is binding and cannot be revoked except where ‘Maternity 
Leave’ has not yet ended and one of the following applies: 

 
➢ You realise that neither you nor the other parent are in fact eligible for 

Shared Parental Leave or Shared Parental Pay; in these circumstance you 
can revoke the curtailment notice in writing up to eight weeks after it was 
submitted. 
 

➢ You gave the curtailment notice before giving birth, in these circumstance 
you can revoke it in writing up to eight weeks after it was given, or up to six 
weeks after the birth, whichever is later; or  
 

➢ If the other parent has died. 
 
3.4 If you are the child's father or the mother's partner, you will only be able to take 

Shared Parental Leave once the mother has either: 
 

➢ technically returned to work; 

Page 121



6 | P a g e   M a y  2 0 2 2  
 

➢ given her employer a curtailment notice to end her ‘Maternity Leave’; 
➢ given her employer a curtailment notice to end her ‘Statutory Maternity Pay’ 

(SMP) if she is entitled to SMP but not ‘Maternity Leave’; or 
➢ given a curtailment notice to the benefits office to end her ‘Maternity 

Allowance’ if she is not entitled to ‘Maternity Leave’ or ‘Statutory Maternity 
Pay’. 

 

4. Evidence of Entitlement 

 

4.1 You must provide: 
 

➢ A copy of the birth certificate or documentary evidence ; and 
➢ A completed Application for Shared Parental Leave.  

 
 

5. How to Apply for ShPL and Shared Parental Pay 

 
5.1 Employees who are looking to apply for ShPL should discuss this with their People 

Manager. Having an early and informal discussion can provide an opportunity for 
both the employee and employer to talk about their preference regarding when 
ShPL is taken. 
 

5.2 You must submit an Application for Shared Parental Leave which is available on 
the HR & Payroll Services Portal at least eight weeks before the start of your 
planned ShPL. 
 

5.3 If your ‘Period of Leave Notice’ gives dates for a single continuous block of ShPL 
then you will be entitled to take the leave set out in the notice 
 

5.4 You can give up to three ‘Period of Leave Notices’. This may enable you to take 
up to three separate blocks of ShPL. 

 

5.5 Agreeing to one request for ShPL will not set a precedent or create the right for 

another employee to be granted a similar pattern of ShPL.   

 

6. Split Periods of ShPL 

 
6.1 In general, a ‘Period of Leave Notice’ should set out a single continuous block of 

leave.   
 
The Council may, in some cases consider a ‘Period of Leave Notice’ where the 
ShPL is split into shorter periods (of at least a week) with periods of work in 
between.   
 
Employees should discuss this with their People Manager and HR Team in 
advance of submitting any formal ‘Period of Leave Notices’.  
 

Page 122



7 | P a g e   M a y  2 0 2 2  
 

This will enable the Council time to consider the request and hopefully agree a 
pattern of leave. 

 
6.2 Employees must submit a ‘Period of Leave Notice’ setting out the requested 

pattern of leave at least eight weeks before the requested start date. 
 

6.3 In circumstance where the Council may be unable to agree the request straight 
away, then there will be a two-week discussion period. 
 
At the end of that period, the Council will confirm any agreed arrangements in 
writing.  
 

6.4 Agreeing to one request for ShPL will not set a precedent or create the right for 
another employee to be granted a similar pattern of ShPL.   
 

7. Cancelling or Changing the Date of ShPL 

 
7.1 An employee may cancel a ‘Period of Leave’ by notifying the Council in writing at 

least eight weeks before the start date in the ‘Period of Leave Notice’. 
 

7.2 An employee may change the date for a ‘Period of Leave’ by giving the Council at 
least eight weeks' notice before the original start date and the new start date. 
 

7.3 Employees do not need to give eight weeks' notice if the change in dates of the 
ShPL is because your child has been born earlier than the Expected Week of 
Childbirth. 

 
7.4 A notice to cancel or change a period of ShPL will count as one of the three ‘Period 

of Leave’ notices, unless: 
 

➢ the variation is a result of your child being born earlier or later than the 
Expected Week of Childbirth; 

➢ the variation is at the Council requests; or 
➢ it is agreed otherwise. 

 

8. Shared Parental Pay (ShPP) 

 
8.1 ShPP is paid at a rate set by the government each year further details can be 

found on the HMRC website. 
 

9. Returning to Work 

 
9.1 If an employee wishes to end a period of ShPL early, then they must give the 

Council eight weeks' prior notice of the return date. 
 

9.2 If an employee would like to extend their ShPL then they must submit a new 
‘Period of Leave Notice’ at least eight weeks before the date they are due to 
return to work.  

 

Page 123

https://www.gov.uk/shared-parental-leave-and-pay/what-youll-get


8 | P a g e   M a y  2 0 2 2  
 

This is assuming that the employee still has ShPL entitlement remaining and has not 
already submitted three ‘Period of Leave’ notices. 

 
9.3 If an employee is unable to request additional ShPL then they may be able to 

request ‘Annual Leave’ or ‘Unpaid Parental Leave’ through the policy which is 
available on the HR A-Z. 

 
9.4 An employee is normally entitled to return to work in the position they held prior 

to starting ShPL, and on the same terms of employment.   
 

9.5 However, if it is not reasonably practicable for the Council to facilitate a return 
into the same position, then the Council may offer another suitable and 
appropriate role on terms and conditions that are not less favorable. 

 

9.6 This may be applicable in the following circumstances:  
 

➢ if the employee ShPL and any Maternity, Adoption, Paternity or 
Parental Leave taken adds up to more than 26 weeks in total, 
whether or not taken consecutively. 

 
9.7 Should an employee wish to change their hours or other working arrangements 

on return from ShPL then a request should be made under the ‘Flexible Working 
Policy’. It is helpful if such requests are made as early as possible and 
discussed with the People Manager. 

 
9.8 If an employee decides not to return to work then they should give notice of 

resignation in accordance with their contract of employment. 
 
9.9 If circumstances change and the employee is no longer responsible for caring 

for a child your entitlement will immediately cease and you must notify HR. 
 

10. Shared Parental Leave in Touch Days (SPLIT)  

10.1 Employees on ShPL can with the agreement of their People Manager work up 
to 20 days during their ‘Statutory Shared Parental Leave’ without bringing their 
ShPL to an end.   

10.2 ‘SPLIT’ days are designed to allow contact with the workplace and can include 
work, training or any other activity to assist the employee in ‘Keeping in Touch’.   

10.3 ‘SPLIT’ days can be taken at any time during ShPL. 

10.4 There is no obligation on either the Council or the employee to make use of 
these ‘SPLIT’ days and there is no obligation for an employee who is on ShPL 
to attend work. 

10.5 ‘SPLIT’ day’s that are worked will not extend the total ShPL period that can be 
taken and do not affect an employee’s entitlement to ShPL or pay.   

Page 124



9 | P a g e   M a y  2 0 2 2  
 

10.6 Employees should make arrangements for ‘SPLIT’ days directly with their People 
Manager and will be paid at their normal daily rate for each day worked.   

10.7 Employees who attend work for a ‘SPLIT’ day during ShPL will need to complete 
a ‘SPLIT Claim Form’ which is available on the HR & Payroll Service Portal. 

10.8 Employees will be paid for the number of hours worked during the ‘SPLIT’ day 
and attendance at work will be counted as the use of one ‘SPLIT’ day’ even if 
only a few hours are worked. 

 

11. Annual Leave Whilst on ShPL  

 

11.1 An employee will continue to accrue ‘Annual Leave’ during ShPL during a period 
of paid or unpaid ‘ShPL however this does not include Bank Holidays, which are 
not accrued. 

 

11.2 Employees on ShPL who, are unable to take all of their ‘Annual Leave’ 
entitlement in a particular year are allowed to carry forward any untaken ‘Annual 
Leave’ to the following leave year.  

 

11.3 Prior to starting ShPL it is recommended that the employee discuss 
arrangements for using ‘Annual Leave’ with their People Manager. 

 

11.4 ‘Annual Leave’ cannot be taken during a period of ShPL. It must be taken either 
prior to or following ShPL. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 125



10 | P a g e   M a y  2 0 2 2  
 

Flowchart- I want to take Shared Parental Leave (ShPL) – what do I need to do? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submit a ‘Period of Leave Notice’ for each period of leave you will to 

take 

You can request up to 3 periods of leave.  A request for a single block of leave 

must be authorised by your manager.  If the leave is in discontinuous blocks 

your manager may request you adjust your request.  There is a 14 day 

discussion period and if no compromise is agreed you are entitled to take the 

leave requested in one continuous block 

Are you eligible? 

Check in the Shared Parental Leave Policy & Procedure that you 

and your partner meet all of the eligibility criteria to take the leave 

and/or receive the pay. 

Decide what leave you want 

You and your partner can split up to 50 weeks leave and up to 37 

weeks pay.  You can request the leave to be taken in one block or a 

number of discontinuous periods. 

Submit a Notice of Entitlement and Intention 

Once you have decided what leave and/or pay you wish to take you must 

complete a notice of entitlement (Form 1) and intention to your manager at least 

8 weeks before your first period of leave.  This is a declaration that you are 

eligible for the leave and details when you intend to take the leave throughout 

the SPL period 

(If mother/adopter) Issue a curtailment notice or return to work from 

Maternity/adoption leave 

To commence SLP the mother/adopter must either return to work from their 

Maternity/Adoption Leave or issue their employer with a curtailment notice (Form 

2).  If the mother/adopter is not a Council employee they must use the form 

provided by their employer to do this.  This must be submitted at least 8 weeks 

before the first period of leave is taken 

 

Your manager will send all completed forms to HR who will 

write to you to confirm your agreed leave and will adjust 

your pay accordingly 

 

Page 126



 

REPORT TO: South Holland District Council 

DATE: Wednesday, 23 November 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Special Urgency - Non-Key Decisions - Application of Call-In 

 

To report to Council reasons for urgency relating to a Non-Key 

Decisions, as required by the Council’s Constitution 

KEY DECISION: N  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder for Assets & Planning 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Assistant Director – Governance (Monitoring Officer) 

Forrest White, Democratic Services Assistant 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: All Wards 

EXEMPT REPORT? N 

 

SUMMARY 

Part 4D of the Constitution (Access to Information Procedure Rules) details a number of 

situations where call-in of a decision may be waived, subject to certain criteria being met and 

the relevant Urgency Notice being published. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the information contained within the report be noted. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To comply with the Council’s Constitution. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

The report is for noting only. 

 
Page 127

Agenda Item 12.



1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Paragraph 14 of Part 4D of the Constitution lays out how this applies to Non-Key Decisions. 

 
1.2 Where, for any Non-Key Decision, any delay likely to be caused by the call-in process would 

seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public’s interest, the Executive Decision shall not be 

subject to call-in subject to: 
 

• The Chairman of the Performance Monitoring Panel agreeing both that the decision 

proposed is reasonable in all the circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of 

urgency (in the absence of the Chairman, the Chairman of the Council or in his/her 

absence the Vice-Chairman of the Council’s consent shall be required. In the absence 

of all three, the Head of the Paid Service or his/her nominee’s consent shall be 

required); and 
• The decision notice stating that the decision is not subject to call-in and the reasons 

why the delay caused by the call-in procedure is considered to be seriously 

detrimental to the Council’s or the public’s interest; and  

• A report being submitted to the next available meeting of full Council indicating the 

reasons for the urgency. 

 

2. REPORT 

2.1 Two decisions have been made since the last full Council meeting, that have fallen under 

the Special Urgency rules for Non-Key decisions detailed above. These decisions are 

detailed within Appendix A, attached to this report. The decisions met the criteria detailed 

within the Constitution, and agreement was obtained from the Chairman of the 

Performance Monitoring Panel. The decisions have been/are shortly due to be published on 

the Council’s website and the Councillors advised of the decision upon publication. The 

decisions can be viewed in full on the website via the following link:  

 

https://democracy.sholland.gov.uk/DelegatedDecisions 

 

3. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

3.1 Reporting reasons for urgency will ensure that the requirements of the Constitution are 
complied with and demonstrates transparent decision-making. 

 
5.    IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1.1 Paragraph 14 of part 4D (Access to Information Procedure Rules) of the Constitution 

requires that a report be submitted to the Council, indicating reasons for urgency of 

decisions made under the Special Urgency rules for Non-Key Decisions. 

6. ACRONYMS 

6.1 None 

 

Page 128

https://democracy.sholland.gov.uk/DelegatedDecisions


APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Table explaining the reasons for urgency or urgent non-key 

decisions made 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Forrest White 

FWhite@sholland.gov.uk   

Signed off by: Assistant Director - Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 

John.Medler@e-lindsey.gov.uk  

Approved for publication: Portfolio Holder for Assets & Planning (if required) 

 

Page 129

mailto:John.Medler@e-lindsey.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

Decision Decision Maker Date of Decision Reason for urgency 

Potential acquisition of an asset – 
To agree the potential acquisition of 
an asset 

Portfolio Holder for Assets and 
Planning 

25th October 2022 Due to time pressures surrounding 
the acquisition of the asset. 

 

P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: South Holland District Council 

DATE: Wednesday, 23 November 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Health Scrutiny for Lincolnshire Report 

 
To provide South Holland District Council with an update following 
the latest meeting of the Health Scrutiny for Lincolnshire 
Committee 
 

KEY DECISION: N  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: N/A 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Councillor Glynis P Scalese 

Samantha Bradley Democratic Services Support Officer 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A 

EXEMPT REPORT? N 

 

SUMMARY 

This report is provided in accordance with Standing Order 5 of Part 4A (Procedural Standing 
orders) of the Council’s Constitution which states that written reports will be received from 
Councillors who represent the Council on outside bodies. Reports will normally be for 
information 
only, however, members may recommend that a matter be considered or investigated by 
officers 
and that the investigating officer be asked to submit a further detailed report. 
Councillor Scalese is SHDC’s representative to the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire. 
This report is provided for information purposes only, and members are requested to note it. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the report be noted 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To provide members with an update following the latest meeting of the Health Scrutiny Page 133

Agenda Item 14.



Committee for Lincolnshire, in line with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Not to note the report; or 
To note the report and request that a matter be considered or investigated by officers, and that 
the investigating officer submit a further detailed report. 

 

Health Scrutiny Report 

 

Update from East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust. 

• Within the workforce a new ASC role has been introduced, and 27 new staff have joined the 

Division, 12 of these positions are Paramedic/Technician specialists, and 15 in UCA/ECA 

roles. 

• 43 leavers – 16 Paramedics, 22 technicians and 5 UCA/ECA. 

• Full complement of pathway leads now in place, and enhanced working with Lincolnshire 

Community Health Service, and the Urgent care response team, although an increase in 

incidents have been passed to LCHS. 

• Mental health Development leads now in place, giving a matured and respected tactical 

relationship with United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust on a day-to-day bases. 

• Development of future education and career paths with Lincoln University and Nottingham 

Trent University. 

• Military engagement and development. 

• Hospital Ambulance Liaison Officer post at acute sites over winter period. 

• Acute cohorting plans to offset staff and patients being harmed. 

 

Voluntary Support 

• To continue to work with volunteers from the Lincolnshire Community who provide a first 

response function. This includes contributions from LIVES, Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue, RAF 

responders and Lincolnshire Emergency Medical Response. Combined these services aid 

approximately 10% of our highest priority life threatening CI Incidents. 

 

Top Priorities Winter 2022/23 

• To deliver safe and effective care. 

• To focus on patient safety and quality to be performance driven. 

• To promote staff welfare and development – post Covid and considering continued hospital 

delays. 

 

East Midlands Ambulance Service Performance 

• Calls to EMAS are up 7.9% 

• Hear and treat up 52.82 %. Hear and treat is the telephone advice that callers who do not 

have serious or life-threatening conditions receive from the ambulance service after calling 

999. 

• Category 1 (Most life threatening) up 29.67%. 

• Category 2 combined calls up 14.79%, responses down 6%, but Hear and Treat up 72%. 
Page 134



 

• Lincolnshire maintaining an Emergency Department, conveyance position is lower than the 

National and Regional average 48%, Region 49.4 % and National 51.5%. 

 

Transactional Changes 

New Organisational Structure 

• Tactical Commander team monitoring call cycle efficiencies. 

• Active and dynamic cohorting plans to offset staff and patient harm. 

• Wellbeing focus from Station Managers. 

• Increased clinical care delivery, by Senior Clinical Leaders. 

• 6- and 12-month reshaping review. 

• Development of relationships with Acutes (physical illnesses and conditions which require 

diagnostic tests and follow up care). 

 

Transformational Achievements 

• Pathway leading the field for Lincolnshire. 

• Enhance working with Lincolnshire Community Health Services (LCHS) and the Urgent Care 

Response Team. 

• Increase in incidents being passed to LCHS and Lincs CAS (Clinical Assessment Service). 

• Mental Health Development. 

• HALO posts at acute sites. 

• Increased focus on Specialist Paramedics providing remote triage of care. 

• Development of future education and career path with Lincoln University and Nottingham 

Trent University. 

• Military engagement and development. 

• Reviewing work with Lincs Fire regarding medical response. 

 

ASHLEY HOUSE SERVICE CHARGE 

• Ashley House is a 15 bedded low - dependency, open mental health rehabilitation unit sited 

in Grantham. It has a twin unit in Boston named Maple Lodge. People who use these 

services are normally at the end of their journey through mental health inpatient care, this 

being the final step before community living. 

• In 2019 Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust received funding as part of a 

national pilot to test a new model of community living. 

• The service is working well. However, it cannot be expanded to the other parts of the 

county without additional investment. At this time, no further funding opportunities have 

been identified or agreed. Page 135



• Ashley House had been closed since 10th February 2019. LPFT took this decision at the 

height of the Covid -19 pandemic as part of business continuity arrangements to ensure 

safe staffing across our inpatient services. 

• Staff from Ashley House were redeployed to Ash Villa in Sleaford (female acute mental 

health service) and some to the community rehabilitation service. To temporarily extend its 

reach and provide targeted support for those who would otherwise be admitted to Ashley 

House or Maple Lodge. 

• Since the temporary closure, all patients requiring low - dependency open rehabilitation 

have either been treated at Maple Lodge in Boston, or by the expanded Community 

Rehabilitation Service. No patients have had to travel out of Lincolnshire to access low - 

dependency open rehabilitation care, nor have patients had to wait longer to access care 

locally. 

• Feedback about the new way of working from staff, patients, service users and carers has 

been positive, with people preferring to be supported at home rather than hospital. 

 

REPLACEMENT OF LINCOLNSHIRES ADULT ACUTE MENTAL HEALTH WARDS 

• The Care Quality Commission advise that shared sleeping accommodation in Mental Health 

inpatient setting is no longer suitable. 

• Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust previously received £37 million to support 

the eradication of dormitory accommodation across its three remaining adult acute mental 

health wards still using shared accommodation. 

• All other wards at Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust are compliant having 

single occupancy bedrooms. 

• The wards still using dormitory accommodation are located at Peter Hodgkinson Centre and 

ward 12 at Boston Pilgrim Hospital. Work has commenced on the Lincoln site, with an 

extension to Peter Hodgkinson Centre to provide two brand new ground floor wards, 

providing 19 individual en-suite bedrooms each, with vastly improved patient 

environments, natural light, outside views, access to outdoor space and modern and 

relaxing therapeutic space. This is expected to be completed by April 2023. 

• The Boston proposed initially looked at re-providing the ward on the Pilgrim Hospital site, 

however this was not viable due to other developments on the site available for 

development. 

• Instead unused land at Norton Lea in Boston has been identified as the preferred option for 

building a new ward, with co-located clinical support services. 

 

LAKESIDE MEDICAL PRACTICE STAMFORD -update. 

• The ICB Quality Team will strengthen their links with the Practice team and ensure that 

information flows are improved and will provide constructive feedback. 

• The ICB will arrange for the MMO team to support the Practice. 

• The South GP Clinical Lead will link with the Practice lead GP and provide some mentoring 

coaching and personal support. 

• Quality, review aims and outcomes  

• Patient care, safety and experience are optimised. 

• Practice resilience and capacity is supported. 

• Patient-practice relationships are constructive and support positive outcomes. 

 
Page 136



APPENDICES 

None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Samantha Bradley 

Samantha.Bradley@sholland.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Assistant Director - Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 

Approved for publication: Christine Morgan 

 

 

 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 139

Agenda Item 18.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	9. Key Decision Plan
	10. Report from Cabinet meeting on 15 November 2022
	APP A UKSPFCabinetSouthHollandReportFinal
	APP B Appendix1SHDCUKSPFInvestmentPlan
	Response ID ANON-QPA8-9P1F-T
	Investment priorities
	Navigating your investment plan submission 

	About your investment plan
	Get help 

	Your location
	In which region is the lead authority based? 

	Your location: East Midlands
	Select the lead authority 

	Your details
	Full Name 
	Email address 
	Phone number 
	Organisation 

	Local challenges and opportunities
	Local challenges and opportunities: Communities and Place
	Are there any local challenges you face which fall under the Communities and Place investment priority ? 

	Local challenges and opportunities: Communities and Place
	Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible 

	Local challenges and opportunities: Communities and Place
	Are there any local opportunities which fall under the Communities and Place investment priority that you intend to support? 

	Local challenges and opportunities: Communities and Place
	Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible 

	Local challenges and opportunities: Supporting Local Business
	Are there any local challenges you face which fall under the Supporting Local Business investment priority ? 

	Local challenges and opportunities: Supporting Local Business
	Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible 

	Local challenges and opportunities: Supporting Local Business
	Are there any local opportunities which fall under the Supporting Local Business investment priority that you intend to support? 

	Local challenges and opportunities: Supporting Local Business
	Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible 

	Local challenges and opportunities: People and Skills
	Are there any local challenges you face which fall under the People and Skills investment priority? 

	Local challenges and opportunities: People and Skills
	Describe these challenges, give evidence where possible 

	Local challenges and opportunities: People and Skills
	Are there any local opportunities which fall under the People and Skills investment priority that you intend to support? 

	Local challenges and opportunities: People and Skills
	Describe these opportunities, give evidence where possible 

	Interventions
	Interventions: Communities and Place
	Does your investment plan meet the Communities and Place investment priority? 

	Interventions: Communities and Place
	What are the outcomes you want to deliver under this investment priority? Select all that apply. 

	Interventions: Communities and Place
	Select the interventions you intend to use which meet this priority. You can select as many as you like. 

	Interventions: Communities and Place
	Do you plan to use any interventions not included on this list? 

	Interventions: Communities and Place
	Have you already identified any projects which fall under the Communities and Place investment priority?  

	Interventions: Supporting Local Business
	Does your investment plan meet the Supporting Local Business investment priority? 

	Interventions: Supporting Local Business
	What are the outcomes you want to deliver under this investment priority? Select all that apply. 

	Interventions: Supporting Local Business
	Select the interventions you intend to use which meet this priority. You can select as many as you like. 

	Interventions: Supporting Local Business
	Do you plan to use any interventions not included on this list? 

	Interventions: Supporting Local Business
	Have you already identified any projects which fall under the Supporting Local Business investment priority? 

	Interventions: People and Skills
	Does your investment plan meet the People and Skills investment priority? 

	Interventions: People and Skills
	What are the outcomes you want to deliver under this investment priority? Select all that apply. 

	Interventions: People and Skills
	Select the interventions you intend to use which meet this priority. Select all that apply. 

	Interventions: People and Skills
	Do you plan to use any interventions not included on this list? 

	Interventions: People and Skills
	Have you already identified any projects for 2024-2025 which fall under the People and Skills investment priority?  

	Interventions: People and Skills
	Have you identified a local voluntary and community provision at risk as part of this intervention? 

	Approach to delivery and governance
	Stakeholder engagement and support
	Have you engaged with any of the following as part of your investment plan? Select all that apply. 
	If so, describe how you have engaged with these organisations. Give examples where possible.  

	Stakeholder engagement and support
	Summarise the governance structures you have in place, including how any advisory panels or associated partnership groups are made up. 
	Have all the MPs covering your lead authority been invited to join the local partnership group? 

	Stakeholder engagement and support
	Are there MPs who are not supportive of your investment plan? 

	Project selection
	Are you intending to select projects in any way other than by competition for funding? 

	Working with other places: Communities and Place
	Do you intend to work with other places on any of the interventions which fall under the Communities and Place investment priority? 

	Working with other places: Communities and Place
	Which interventions do you intend to collaborate on? Select all that apply. 
	Describe any interventions not included in this list 
	Which places do you intend to collaborate with? 

	Working with other places: Supporting Local Business
	Do you intend to work with other places on any of the interventions which fall under the Supporting Local Business investment priority? 

	Working with other places: Supporting Local Business
	Which interventions do you intend to collaborate on? Select all that apply. 
	Describe any interventions not included in this list. 
	Which places do you intend to collaborate with? 

	Working with other places: People and Skills
	Do you intend to work with other places on any of the interventions which fall under the People and Skills investment priority? 

	Working with other places: People and Skills
	Which interventions do you intend to collaborate on? Select all that apply. 
	Describe any interventions not included in this list. 
	Which places do you intend to collaborate with? 

	Public sector equality duty
	How have you considered your public sector equality duty in the design of your investment plan? 
	How will you consider your public sector equality duty when implementing your investment plan, including in the selection of projects? 

	Risks
	Have you identified any key risks that could affect delivery, for example lack of staff or expertise? 

	Risks
	Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you have in place to mitigate them 

	Risks
	Have you identified any key fraud risks that could affect UKSPF delivery? 

	Risks
	Describe these risks or issues, including the contingency measures you have in place to mitigate them. 

	Capacity and capability
	Team resource
	How many people (FTE) will be put in place to work with UKSPF funding? 
	Describe what role these people will have, including any seniority and experience. 

	Team experience and capability
	How would you describe your team’s current experience of delivering funding and managing growth funds?  
	How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for procurement? 
	How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for procurement? 
	How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for subsidies? 
	How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for subsidies? 

	Capacity and capability: Communities and Place
	Does your lead authority have any previous experience of delivering the Communities and Place interventions you have selected? 
	How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for Communities and Place interventions? 
	Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering Communities and Place interventions. This may include challenges within your lead authority or your local/regional delivery system. 
	Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

	Capacity and capability: Communities and Place
	How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for Communities and Place interventions? 
	Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering Communities and Place interventions. This may include challenges within your lead authority or your local/regional delivery system. 
	Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

	Capacity and capability: Supporting Local Business
	Does your lead authority have any previous experience of delivering the Supporting Local Business interventions you have selected? 
	How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for Supporting Local Business interventions? 
	Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering Supporting Local Business interventions. This may include challenges within your lead authority or your local/regional delivery system. 
	Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

	Capacity and capability: Supporting Local Business
	How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for Supporting Local Business interventions? 
	Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering Supporting Local Business interventions. This may include challenges within your lead authority or your local/regional delivery system. 
	Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

	Capacity and capability: People and Skills
	Does your lead authority have any previous experience of delivering the People and Skills interventions you have selected? 
	How would you describe your team’s current capability to manage funding for People and Skills interventions? 
	Describe the key capability challenges (if you have any) for delivering People and Skills interventions. This may include challenges within your lead authority or your local/regional delivery system. 
	Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

	Capacity and capability: People and Skills
	How would you describe your team’s current capacity to manage funding for People and Skills interventions? 
	Describe the key capacity challenges (if you have any) for delivering People and Skills interventions. This may include challenges within your lead authority or your local/regional delivery system. 
	Describe what further support would help address these challenges. 

	Support to deliver UKSPF
	All lead authorities can use up to 4% of their UKSPF allocation to support the delivery of their chosen interventions, but by exception, lead authorities will be able to use more than 4%. Are you planning on using more than 4%? 
	If so, explain why you wish to use more than 4%. 

	Approvals
	Do you have approval from your Chief Executive Officer for this investment plan? 
	Do you have approval from your Section 151 Officer for this investment plan? 
	Do you have approval from the leader of your lead authority for this investment plan? 
	If you do not have approval from any of these people, explain why this is 

	Additional documents
	Have you completed and uploaded the two spreadsheets to the SharePoint folder as requested? 

	Edit your answers
	Next steps
	You told us you have not uploaded your documents


	App C Community Safety Strategy report
	App D Community Safety Strategy orig App A

	11. Implementation of revised HR Policies
	APPENDIX A - DRAFT Adoption Policy
	APPENDIX B - DRAFT Maternity policy SHDC
	APPENDIX C - DRAFT Paternity Policy
	APPENDIX D - DRAFT Shared Parental Leave Policy

	12. Special Urgency - Non-Key Decisions - Application of Call-In
	Appendix A for Special Urgency - Non-Key Decisions - Application of Call-In

	14. Health Scrutiny for Lincolnshire Report
	18. Restricted Minute

